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PART I
DISCLOSURE REGARDING FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

This report contains “forward-looking statementll’ statements other than statements of histofi@etl contained in this report are forward-
looking statements, including, without limitatiostatements regarding our plans, strategies, prtspad expectations concerning our busil
results of operations and financial condition. Yeaun identify many of these statements by lookingafords such as “believe,”
“project,” “anticipate,” “estimate,” “continue” asimilar words or the negative thereof.

expect,” “intend,”

”ou ”ou

Known material factors that could cause our actaallts to differ from those in these forwdodking statements are described belov
Part I, Item 1A (“Risk Factors”) and Part Il, Itefm(*“Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Finah€ondition and Results of Operationsf)
this report.

All forward-looking statements included in this report are Baseinformation available to us on the date of tieport. Except as required
law, we undertake no obligation to publicly updateevise any forwardboking statement, whether as a result of new m#édion, future events
otherwise. All subsequent written and oral forwhraking statements attributable to us or persotisg@on our behalf are expressly qualifies
their entirety by the foregoing cautionary statetaen

ltem 1. Business
General
Overview

We are a growtloriented Delaware limited partnership formed inel@012 by Susser Holdings Corporation ("Susserd)ienthen wholl
owned subsidiary and our general partner, Sunocd.IGP (formerly known as Susser Petroleum PartndPsLEC ), our "general partner"
“SGP”. We have been engaged in the primarilytiased wholesale distribution of motor fuels to 8ussd third parties in Texas, New Mex
Oklahoma, Louisiana, Kansas, Maryland, Virginianiessee, Georgia, and Hawaii. Recently we havenbeemgaged in the retail sale of m
fuel and the operation of convenience stores throaugpsidiaries that are classified as corporatfiond).S. federal income tax purposes.
September 25, 2012, we completed our initial pubifering (the “IPO”)and at that time our common units began tradintherNew York Stoc
Exchange under the symbol SUSP, as further deschiblow. On August 29, 2014, Energy Transfer PestrieP. (“ETP”) acquired 100%f the
outstanding common shares of Susser, referredrigirhas the ETP Merger and as further describedvwbelhe following simplified diagra
depicts our organizational structure as of Decerhef014.

Energy Transfer Partners, LP

100.0%
ownership
interest

Sunoco GP LLC

42 8% Limited

Partner Interest non-economic
general partner
interest

Public Unitholders
Common Units

57.2% Limited

Partner Interes\

Sunoco LP

100.0%
ownership
interest

Operating Subsidiaries




In the fourth quarter of 2014we completed strategic acquisitions of businesisas operate complementary motor fuel distributaom
convenience retail stores (see Acquisitions beldw)a result of these acquisitions, we now opet&teconvenience stores and fuel outletbvie
states, offering merchandise, food service, maiet &nd other services as of December 31, 2@4r retail stores operate under several br.
including our proprietary convenience store braridhA Island Mart™ , and other retail locations acquired from Midantic Convenienc
Stores, LLC ("MACS"), some of which we intend tabd APlus® during 2015 (see Acquisitions below). §isgributed approximatel$.9 billion
gallons of motor fuel during 2014 to Susser's 881p convenience stores and consignment locations, axiett independent convenience ¢
operators, and other commercial customers, in iaddiv the 83.4 milliorgallons sold by MACS and Aloha retail stores. Whelve our combine
retail/wholesale business model will make it pagsfbr us to achieve an optimal return on our itvest as we integrate new or acquired s
while minimizing overhead costs.

Initial Public Offering

On September 25, 2012 , we completed the IPO 250000 common units at a price of $20.50 per mperty and equipment was
contributed by Susser and its subsidiaries to exdamange for:

e 14,436 common units and 10,939,436 subordinatéd, representing an aggregate 50.1% limitechpaihterest in us as of the date of the
offering;

» All of the then outstanding incentive distributinghts (as discussed in our partnership agreemam

e An aggregate cash distribution of $206.0 million

The ETP Merger

On April 27, 2014, Susser entered into an AgreeraadtPlan of Merger with ETP and certain otherteel&ntities, under which ETP agr
to acquire 100%of the outstanding common shares of Susser (thd®"EErger"). This transaction was completed on Audi®%s 2014. B
acquiring Susser, ETP acquired 100.0% of the emoromic general partner interest and incentiv&ibligion rights in us, and directly a
indirectly acquired approximately 11.0 million afirocommon and subordinated units (representingoxppately 50.1%of our then outstandit
units).

Effective October 27, 2014, we changed our name fBusser Petroleum Partners LP to Sunoco LP antiakar symbol from SUSP
SUN. These changes align the Partnership's legaireamketing name with that of ETP's iconic brangh@&o0. As used in this document, the te
"Partnership”, "SUN", "we", "us" or "our" should henderstood to refer to Sunoco LP formerly knowiompto October 27, 2014 as Sus
Petroleum Partners LP.

As a result of the ETP Merger, SUN became a coteatad entity of ETP and applied “push dovatcounting that required its assets
liabilities to be adjusted to fair value as of Agg29, 2014. Due to the application of "push downtounting, the SUN audited consolid:
financial statements and certain footnote disclesware presented in two distinct periods to indiche application of two different bases
accounting between the periods presented. Thedsepidor to the ETP Merger are identified as “Posdsor’and the period after the ETP Mer
is identified as “Successor=or accounting purposes, management has desigthateatquisition date as August 31, 2014, as theatipg result
and change in financial position for the intervenperiod is not material.

Operating Segments and Subsidiaries

Prior to the fourth quarter of 2014, we operated lmusiness as one wholesale segment. With theiadif convenience store operati
from the acquisitions we completed in the fourtlarger of 2014described below, we have added a retail operaiegment, which includes 1
results generated by our compasperated convenience stores. Our operations arducted by the following consolidated wholly ow
subsidiaries:

e Susser Petroleum Operating Company LLC ("SPO&LDelaware limited liability company, distributemtor fuel to Susser's retail and
consignment locations, as well as third party austie in Texas, New Mexico, Oklahoma and Louisiana.
* T&C Wholesale LLC and Susser Energy Services Llh@h Texas limited liability companies, distributotor fuels, propane and lubricating
oils, primarily in Texas, Oklahoma and Kansas.
»  Susser Petroleum Property Company LLC (“PropCa’'Delaware limited liability company, primarilyvas and leases convenience store
properties.




e Southside Oil, LLC and MACS Retail LLC, both Winia limited liability companies (collectively "MB&S"), distribute motor fuel and own
and operate convenience stores, respectively.

* Aloha Petroleum, Ltd, a Hawaii corporation ("AlJ), distributes motor fuel and owns and operetewenience stores on the Hawaiian
islands.

See Note 20 of the Notes to Consolidated Finastatements included in Part I, Item 8. for addi&bfinancial information on our
segments.

Acquisitions

On December 16, 2014, we completed the acquisgfoHonolulu, Hawaiibased Aloha Petroleum, Ltd. Aloha is the largesiependel
gasoline marketer and one of the largest conveaistare operators in Hawaii, with an extensive whale fuel distribution network and six t
storage terminals on the islands. Aloha curremtfrkets through approximately 1@80oha, Shell, and Mahalo branded fuel stationsughmu
the state, about half of which are company operaldw adjusted purchase price for Aloha was appravely $267.0 milliorin cash, subject tc
post-closing earn-out, certain closing adjustmeartg, before transaction costs and other expenses.

On October 1, 2014, we acquired MACS from ETP fdotal consideration of approximately $768.0 roitli, subject to certain workit
capital adjustments. The consideration paid ctewsisf approximately 4.0 million of our common snénd $556.0 millionin cash. We initiall
financed the cash portion by utilizing availabilimder our $1.25 billiomevolving credit facility ("2014 Revolver"). TheaRnership subsequen
completed an offering of common units from whiclpregximately $406.0 million net proceeds were usepay down the 2014 Revolver.

The assets owned by MACS include approximately Tbonpany-operated retail convenience stores and @&flereperated ar
consignment sites that were previously acquire@&Dl. The combined portfolio includes locations ingifia, Maryland, Tennessee and Geol
This was the first transaction completed in a seoiepreviously announced dralewn plans by which ETP intends to transfer itaitetnd fue
distribution business to the Partnership. The asitipm was accounted for as a transaction betwagties under common control. Specifically,
Partnership recognized the acquired assets anchaddiabilities at ETP's carrying value, and haiporated MACS' results of operations ir
consolidated statement of operations beginningedaper 1, 2014, the date of common control.

On September 4, 2013, Susser acquired 100% ofutiséaading stock of Gainesville Fuel, Inc., a wkale fuel and lubricants business
“GFI Acquisition”), for net cash consideration o1&4 million and subsequently converted that company to a kiitbility company an
contributed the converted company (which at thetohcontribution held approximately $2.0 milliapt assets, including acquisition indebted
and other liabilities) to us (the "GFI ContributidnThe contributed indebtedness included a $14lfomterm debt, a $3.0 millioseller note ar
contingent consideration of $4.0 million , whichsaally paid in 2014 . In connection with this cobttion, we issued 64,87@mmon units t
Susser, valued at $2.0 millioThe number of units issued was determined baséHeoprice at the date of contribution. The cantiibn to SUS
was accounted for as a transfer of net assets éetamtities under common control.

See Note 4 of the Notes to Consolidated Finandak8ents included in Part II, Item 8. for addiibmformation on our acquisitions.
Available Information

Our principal executive offices are located at Bzist Airtex Drive, Houston, Texas 77073. Our teteghnumber is (832) 233600. Ou
internet address isttp://www.sunocolp.comWe make available through our website our anmeabrt on Form 10k, quarterly reports on Foi
10-Q, current reports on FormkBand amendments to those reports filed or furigh&rsuant to Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the SeiesriExchang
Act of 1934, as amended, or the Exchange Act, as 88 reasonably practicable after we electroniddd such material with, or furnish st
material to, the Securities and Exchange Commissiothe SEC. The SEC maintains an internet siteétpt//www.sec.gothat contains repor
proxy and information statements, and other infdiomaregarding issuers that file electronicallywihe SEC.

Our Relationship with Energy Transfer Partners, LP

ETP is one of the largest publicly traded masteitéd partnerships in the U.S. in terms of equigrket capitalization. ETP, through
wholly owned operating subsidiaries, is engagetharily in natural gas and natural gas liquids tpamtation, storage and fractionation servi
ETP is also engaged in refined product and crutleparations including transportation and retailrketing of gasoline and middle distilla
through its subsidiaries. Sunoco, Inc., a whollyned operating subsidiary of




ETP, operates a retail business with a network38f @ompanyeperated retail fuel outlets and convenience staqggroximately 4,400 retail fu
outlets operated by independent operators purgodongterm distribution agreements, as well as a comrakfael distribution business tt
supplies approximately 600 million gallons per yeaour commercial customers.

One of our principal strengths is our relationsWigh ETP. ETP owns (i) an indirect 100% equity net& in Susser, (ii) 100% of ¢
general partner, (iii) all of our incentive disuiion rights and (iv) a 42.8% limited partner irgglrin us. Given ETR'significant ownership in t
we believe ETP will be motivated to promote andpgupthe successful execution of our businessegiias. In particular, we believe it will be
ETP’s best interest to, and ETP has publically anced its intent to, contribute all of Susser’'s &@uhoco, Incs retail and wholesale fu
distribution assets to us over time and to fat¢ditarganic growth opportunities and accretive agitjans from third parties, although ETP is ur
no obligation to contribute any assets to us oepicany offer for its assets that we may chooseake.

We also continue to benefit from our continuingatiginship with Susser, which is now a whallyned indirect subsidiary of ETP. Sus
operated 656 retail convenience stores as of Deee@ihy 2014 under its proprietary Stripes® and Sd&®ac™ brands, primarily in growir
Texas markets. Stripesi® a leading independent operator of conveniermrestin Texas, based on store count and retail moéb volumes solt
Our business is integral to the success of Susstdd operations as Susser purchases substgralblbf its motor fuel from us. For the ye
ended December 31, 2014 , December 31, 2013 anehier 31, 2012 we distributed a total of 1.2 hillidl.1 billion , and 0.9 billioigallons o
motor fuel, respectively, to Stripes® convenienoees and Susser's consignment locations.

Susser constructed approximately 200 large-forroavenience stores from January 2000 through Dece&ihe2014, and intends |
construct 35 to 40 stores during 2015. Susser @sducts restaurant operations as Laredo Taco Quuipaa proprietary irkouse restaura
concept, and implemented it in over 390 Stripes®venience stores, and intends to implement itlimelvly constructed Stripes@nvenienc
stores.

Commercial Agreements

Two long-term, fee-based commercial agreements Sutser were contributed to us in connection wighlPO. These commercial
agreements with Susser consist of:

A fuel distribution agreement (the “Susser Dimttion Contract”) pursuant to which we are the exclusive distribatfomotor fuel tc
Susser's existing Stripes®nvenience stores and independently operatedgroment locations, and to all future sites purchdsy
the Partnership pursuant to the sale and leasatyattdn under the Omnibus Agreement. Under the $udssribution Contrac
motor fuel is purchased from us at cost, includargand transportation costs, plus a fixed profirgin of three cents per gallon,
a period of ten years. In addition, all future midigel volumes purchased by Susser for its own aecwill be added to the Sus
Distribution Contract pursuant to the terms of @mnibus Agreement; and

» A Transportation Contract (the “Susser Transgi@mh Contract”) pursuant to which Susser arranges for motor fuddetalelivere
from our suppliers to some of our customers asratmsistent with those charged to third partiesHe delivery of motor fuel, wi
the cost being entirely passed along to our custenrecluding Susser. The term of the Transpoma@ontract is ten years ending
2022.

Omnibus Agreement

In addition to the above commercial agreementsalse entered into an Omnibus Agreement with Susseonnection with the IPO (t
"Omnibus Agreement”). Pursuant to the Omnibus Agwe®, among other things, the Partnership recevtitteeyear option to purchase frc
Susser up to 75 of Susser's new or recently canistiuStripes®convenience stores at Susser's cost and leasdoties vack to Susser &
specified rate for a 1§ear initial term, and the Partnership will be thelusive distributor of motor fuel to such stofesa period of ten yes
from the date of purchase. The Partnership alseived a tenyear right to participate in acquisition opportigstwith Susser, to the extent
Partnership and Susser are able to reach an agreemeerms, and the exclusive right to distriballemotor fuel Susser purchases for its
account which would generally include all of Sussaewly constructed convenience stores and indispely operated consignment locations
addition, the Partnership agreed to reimburse #mei@l partner and its affiliates for the costsiined in managing and operating the Partner
The Ombinus Agreement also provides for certaieinaification obligations between Susser and thenPeship.

For more information regarding the commercial agrests and the Omnibus Agreement, please read 18eGertain Relationships,
Related Transactions and Director Independence.”




Our Business and Operations
Wholesale Operations Segment

We are a wholesale distributor of motor fuels atigepbpetroleum products, and we lease or sublead@state used primarily in the re
distribution of motor fuels to Susser, third-padalers, and independent operators of consignroeations.

We purchase motor fuel from refiners and distribupgimarily throughout Texas, New Mexico, OklahanKansas and Louisiana to
(i) Stripes® convenience stores; (ii) Susser'speaeently operated consignment locations; (iii)vesmnence stores and retail fuel outlets operated
by third parties and (iv) other commercial custasnés a result of the MACS and Aloha acquisitidmest tve completed in the fourth quarter of
2014, we now also distribute motor fuels in VirginMaryland, Tennessee, Georgia and Hawaii. Rsiout IPO, we supplied Susser's
consignment locations directly and therefore trsedes were included in thighrty sales. Subsequent to our IPO, we classifsgal Susser for i
Stripes® stores and consignment locations asaiffii sales. The following table highlights our lt@tholesale motor fuel gallons sold during each
of the last five fiscal years (gallons in thousands

Year Ended December 31,

2010 2011 2012 (1) 2013 2014
Customer Group
Affiliates 739,10: 789,57¢ 889,75! 1,053,25! 1,178,61
Third-party dealers and other commercial customers 494,20¢ 522,83. 560,19: 517,77! 749,92!
Total 1,233,31. 1,312,411 1,449,94 1,571,03. 1,928,54.

(1) Susser consignment gallons are included inrtiFparty dealers and other commercial customeist 5 September 25, 2012 and are included in Tiatés"
beginning September 25, 2012.

The following table highlights the number of locats to which we distributed fuel on a contract $asi of the end of each of the years
presented, by principal customer group:

Year Ended December 31,

2010 2011 2012 (1) 2013 2014
Customer Group
Affiliates 52¢ 541 64¢ 662 73€
Third-party contracted dealer locations 431 56& 49(C 504 793
Total 957 1,10¢ 1,13¢ 1,16¢ 1,52¢

(1) Susser consignment locations are included mirtfparty contracted dealer locations" prior tg®enber 25, 2012 and are included in "Affiliatesgimning
September 25, 2012.

Sales to Affiliates

Pursuant to the Susser Distribution Contract amdQ@mnibus Agreement, we are the exclusive diswibaf motor fuel purchased
Susser's Stripes@nvenience store locations and independently tgb@nsignment locations. We charge a fixed proéitgin of three cents
gallon to all Sussesupplied stores existing at the time of the IPO pmdthased by us pursuant to our purchase andokeeseption. Unless ott
fuel supply terms are negotiated between Sussewuanthe profit margin for other additional Stri@esr consignment locations will be at
alternative fuel sales rate, as determined annpallguant to the Omnibus Agreement.




As of December 31, 2014 , Susser operated a tb&8® Stripes® convenience stores, 610 of whichewerTexas, 29f which were i
New Mexico, ancl7 of which were in Oklahoma. As of December 31120651 Stripes@&onvenience stores that sell fuel were supplieds
predominately at a fixed profit margin of three tseper gallon. Approximately 81% of the Stripes@venience stores are open 24 hours &
365 days a year. Susser has built approximatelyStfipes® convenience stores since January 1, #000gh December 31, 2014These ne'
stores, which for the last five years average apprately 6,000 square feet, are built on large leith much larger motor fueling and park
facilities as compared to older stores and mangusfser's competitors' stores. According to a regfa?013 industry data issued by the Nati
Association of Convenience Stores, the averageddinew stores in the U.S. was 4,199 square feathan areas, and 4,383 square feet in
areas. The average size of existing stores imtgsiry is 2,657 square feet.

As of December 31, 2014 , Susser had consignmesmigements with independent operators ail@ations. We charge Susser a fi
profit margin of three cents per gallon on all fued deliver to these locations. At these consigrirtaations, Susser provides and controls n
fuel inventory and price and receives the actualilreelling price for each gallon sold, less a aassion paid to the independent operators of
locations.

Sales to Contracted Third Partie

As of December 31, 2014 , we distributed fuel uideg-term contracts to 73®nvenience stores and retail fuel outlets opeayetthirc
parties. No single third party dealer is mateiwabtir business. Under our distribution contract wiird parties, we agree to distribute a parsi
brand of, or unbranded, motor fuel to a locatiogy@up of locations and arrange for all transp@taand logistics. Our distribution contracts
typically constructed so that we either receiveea pper gallon equal to the posted purchase pritieeafuel supply terminal, plus transporta
costs, taxes and a fixed, volurbased fee, which is usually expressed in centggléan, or receive a variable cent per gallon ma(tilealer tan
wagon" or "DTW"). The initial term of most dealeisttibution contracts is ten years, and as of Ddmam31, 2014, our dealer distributic
contracts had an average remaining life of frears. These dealer distribution agreements reqaimeng other things, that dealers maintair
standards established by the applicable fuel brdrahy. As a result of the MACS and Aloha acquisis, we now have dealer distribut
contracts with initial terms ranging from threett@enty years.

As of December 31, 2014 , we distributed fuel urmersignment arrangements atlé&ations. Under these arrangements we provid
control motor fuel inventory and price at the siied receive actual retail selling price for eacliogasold, less a commission paid to
independent operators.

We continually seek to expand our dealer distrdoutietwork through additions of new dealers andsigmmment locations and throt
acquisitions of contracts for existing independentierated sites from other distributors. We evalgatential independent site operators bas:
their creditworthiness and the quality of theiesdind operations, including the site's size andtioe, projected monthly volumes of motor fi
monthly merchandise sales, overall financial penfmnce and previous operating experience. We mandxredit to certain dealers based or
credit evaluation process.

Dealer Incentives

In addition to motor fuel distribution, we offeralers the opportunity to participate in merchangisechasing and promotional progre
arranged with vendors. We believe the vendor ilatiips we have established through Susser's mgtaiations and our ability to deve
programs provide us with an advantage over ottstrillitors when recruiting new dealers into ounwoek, as well as retaining current deal
Our dealer incentives allow our dealers to accessdyets and services, such as ATM machines andretigal movie rental kiosks, that they wc
not likely be able to obtain either on their owrabiour discounted rates.

Sales to Other Commercial Custome

We also distribute unbranded fuel to numerous otlustomers, including convenience stores, unattefaeling facilities and certa
other commercial customers. These distribution ngeanents totaled approximately 300 million gallahging 2014. These customers
primarily commercial, governmental and other partieho buy motor fuel by the load or in bulk and wih@ not generally enter exclus
contractual relationships with us, if they entdpia contractual relationship with us at all. Satethese customers are typically made at a q
price based upon our cost plus taxes, cost of gratetion and a margin determined by us at timsatéd, and may provide for immediate payr
or the extension of credit for up to 30 days. Wem alell propane, lube oil and other petroleum petedto our commercial customers on both a
and contracted basis.

Fuel Supplier Arrangements

We distribute branded motor fuel under the Chevi@itgo, Conoco, Exxon, Mobil, Phillips66, Shamro&hell, Texaco, Sunocp
Valero, Aloha ™ and Mahalo™ brands. We purchase this branded motor fuel frojomeél companies and refiners under




supply agreements. We also distribute unbrandedmfio¢l, which we purchase either on a rack baagel upon prices posted by the refiner
fuel supply terminal, or on a contract basis wité price tied to one or more market indices.

During 2014 , Valero supplied approximately 25% &@itbvron supplied approximately 1186 our consolidated motor fuel purcha:
Our primary supply agreement with Valero expireguty 2018. We have been a distributor for Chegioce 1996. Susser Petroleum Oper:
Company LLC (“SPOC"), a whollpwned subsidiary of the Partnership, and Chevraered into a new branded marketer agreemen
“Chevron Agreement”) with an effective date of Mhy2014, which replaces the partigsior agreements for purchases of Chevron and T
branded gasoline and diesel fuel. The Chevron égent expires April 30, 2017. We purchase motor dti¢he supplier's applicable price at
terminal, which typically changes daily. Our supplyreements with other suppliers generally havimitial term of three years. In addition, e.
supply agreement typically contains provisionstie¢ato payment terms, use of the supplier's bnaahes, credit card processing, complii
with other of the supplier's requirements, insueanoverage and compliance with legal and envirotaherquirements, among others. A
typical in the industry, our suppliers generallyr¢arminate the supply contract if we do not compith any material condition of the contre
including our failure to make payments when duaud; criminal misconduct, bankruptcy or insolven@gnerally, our supply agreements t
provisions that obligate the supplier to sell upatoagreed upon number of gallons, subject to icelitaitations. Any amount in excess of t
agreed upon amount is subject to availability. Du¢he large volumes of motor fuel we purchase may receive volume rebates or incen
payments to drive volumes and provide an incerfivéoranding new locations. Certain suppliers regjthat all or a portion of any such branc
incentive payments be repaid to the supplier iretrent that the sites are closed or rebrandedmétistated number of years.

As a result of the acquisition of MACS, we becaraetypto additional agreements with Exxon to purehamonthly quantities of brand
Exxon fuel and the rights to execute franchise exgents with dealers for the sale of branded fuettaih agreements contain minimum purcl
requirements that, if not met, would permit Exxortédrminate the agreement. The agreements exp@lis and 2018. In addition, the agreem
by which MACS acquired certain sites from Exxonvide for the payment of liquidated damages if warge the brand of those sites be
2025. Exxon supplied 15% of our consolidated méiet purchases in 2014As a result of the acquisition of Aloha, we puasé all of our fuel i
Hawaii from one of the two suppliers in the state.

We have historically received early payment andinm+elated discounts from our suppliers, althoughdahiemo guarantee that we \
continue to receive these discounts in the futBkease read Part I, Item 1A. “Risk Fact®isks Related to Our Business". Certain of our raut
with suppliers currently have early payment andurarelated discounts which reduce the price we paynfotor fuel that we purchase fri
them. If we are unable to renew these contractsraitar terms, our gross profit may decrease.

Bulk Fuel Purchases

We may periodically purchase motor fuel in bulk dnadd it in inventory or transport it via pipelinie, which case we may mitigate
inventory risk through the use of commodity futucesitracts or other derivative instruments which aratched in quantity and timing to
anticipated usage of the inventory. Historicalhgge fuel hedging positions have not been materialir operations. In certain instances, we t
in various additives including ethanol and bio-mbased diesel. During 2012 , 2013 and 20tdlk fuel purchases represented approximatel
to 12% of our total gallons purchased.

Transportation Logistics

Pursuant to the Susser Transportation Contracsesysovides transportation logistics for most of motor fuel deliveries. Throu
third-party transportation providers or its own fleetfwdl transportation vehicles, Susser arranges faonfuel to be delivered from the stor.
terminals to the appropriate sites in our distitruthetwork at prices consistent with those histly charged to third parties for the deliven
fuel. Under this arrangement and pursuant to outraots with thirdparty customers and Susser, we pass through apoatation costs a
consequently do not incur any profit or loss relgtio transportation. We also deliver motor fuebgane, and lubricants using our own flee
vehicles, primarily to commercial customers invalie petroleum exploration and production, andotmations in our Hawaii market following 1
acquisition of Aloha.

Technology

Technology is an important part of our wholesalerafions. We utilize a proprietary wélsed system that allows our whole
customers to access their accounts at any time #rpersonal computer to obtain prices, place oraedsreview invoices, credit card transact
and electronic funds transfer notifications. Sufsadly all of our customer payments are procesSgcelectronic funds transfer. We use
internetbased system to assist with fuel inventory managéied procurement and an integrated wholesalesfigtém for financial accountir
procurement, billing and inventory management.




Real Estate and Lease Arrangemel

As of December 31, 2014 , we owned 274 locatiorduding 66 Stripe® locations purchased pursuant to our sale and laakeiptiot
under the Omnibus Agreement. We also leasedati@tional locations, some of which we rent or sakk to third parties. We collect rent fi
the lessees at these locations pursuant to leaseragnts with them. Our leases typically have m @&frfive to 15years, with some having a te
of 30 years or more.

Retail Operations Segment

As of December 31, 2014, our retail segment opeéréi® convenience stores and retail fuel outldtyiofy merchandise, food service,
motor fuel and other services. The following tatevides the number of sites operated as Decenihe&03 4 :

Number of Sites

Virginia 64
Hawaii 48
Tennessee 38
Maryland 3
Georgia 2

Total 15¢

Our retail convenience stores operate under sebesalds, including our proprietary brand Alohahslaviart ™ . Historically, sales ar
operating income are highest in the second and tnirarters during the summer activity months arndeki during the winter months. T
seasonality is mitigated by the addition of MACSI &loha. Our stores carry a broad selection of fdmVerages, snacks, grocery and foot
merchandise. For further detail of our segmentltesefer to “ltem 8. Financial Statements and $eiqmentary Data Notes to Consolidatt
Financial Statements - Note 20. Segment Reporting.”

Our MACS business purchases approximately 40% d@6ldf its total retail merchandise from Liberty Distntion Company, LLC ar
Core-Mark Holding Company, Inc., respectively. QAlbha business purchases approximately 48P4ts total merchandise from Han:
Distribution Group. These suppliers currently detiyproducts to all of our retail stores. We do maintain additional product inventories ot
than what is in our stores.

Sale of Regulated Produc

In certain areas where our convenience store®ea¢dd, state or local laws limit the hours of atien for the sale of alcoholic bevera
and restrict the sale of alcoholic beverages abhddwo products to persons younger than a certaéinStgte and local regulatory agencies hav
authority to approve, revoke, suspend or deny egijitins for and renewals of permits and licensksding to the sale of alcoholic beverages
well as to issue fines to convenience stores feritttproper sale of alcoholic beverages and tobacoducts. Failure to comply with these i
may result in the loss of necessary licenses amihtposition of fines and penalties on us. Suabsa br imposition could have a material adv
effect on our business, liquidity and results ofm@ions.

Competition

In our wholesale fuel distribution business, we pete primarily with other independent motor fuestdbutors. The markets 1
distribution of wholesale motor fuel and the laegel growing convenience store industry are higbipgetitive and fragmented, which result
narrow margins. We have numerous competitors, soimghich may have significantly greater resourcad aame recognition than we
Significant competitive factors include the availép of major brands, customer service, price,garof services offered and quality of sen
among others. We rely on our ability to provideweshdded and reliable service and to control our dpgy@osts in order to maintain our mar
and competitive position.

In our retail business, we face strong competitiothe market for the sale of retail gasoline aretehandise. Our competitors inch
service stations of large integrated oil companiedependent gasoline service stations, convenistmes, fast food stores, supermar
drugstores, dollar stores, club stores and othmeilasi retail outlets, some of which are wetieognized national or regional retail systems.
number of competitors varies depending on the geigcal area. It also varies with gasoline and eairence store offerings. The princi
competitive factors affecting our’s retail marketioperations include




gasoline and diesel acquisition costs, site looagawoduct price, selection and quality, site apgeee and cleanliness, hours of operation,
safety, customer loyalty and brand recognition. ¥éenpete by pricing gasoline competitively, combgniour retail gasoline business v
convenience stores that provide a wide varietyroflpcts, and using advertising and promotional GEgrs.

Seasonality

Our business exhibits some seasonality due to ugtomers' increased demand for motor fuel duriegdte spring and summer mor
as compared to the fall and winter months. Transglreation and construction activities typicallgrmase in these months in the geographic
in which we operate, increasing the demand for mintel. Therefore, the volume of motor fuel that distribute is typically somewhat highel
the second and third quarters of our fiscal yearour retail operations, we experience seasondlity to consumer purchase patterns ir
geographic area in which our stores are concedtréte a result, our results from operations may ¥esm period to period. The addition of
MACS and Aloha operations helps mitigate the seasiompacts, as their business has historicallyextitibited the same degree of seasonali
our Texas-centric business.

Working Capital Requirements

Prior to the acquisition of Aloha and MACS, we hathimal working capital requirements, as we did hotd significant amounts
inventory and we received payment for most of thkogs we sold on approximately the same paymentstas we had with our suppliers. A
giving effect to the acquisitions, our working dapineeds have increased as we now maintain cusgoleeels of fuel and merchand
inventories, and carry corresponding payables bekin suppliers of those inventories, relatinguoconvenience store operations. We also
rental obligations relating to leased locationg assult of our acquisition of MACS and Aloha. rQeorking capital needs will typically incree
as the price of crude oil increases, and will otz fluctuate within each month, primarily in resge to the timing of motor fuel tax, sales
interest and rent payments.

Environmental Matters
Environmental Laws and Regulation

We are subject to various federal, state and lenalronmental laws and regulations, including thodating to underground stor
tanks; the release or discharge of hazardous ralstémnio the air, water and soil; the generatioorage, handling, use, transportation and dis|
of regulated materials; the exposure of persomedalated materials; and the remediation of comated soil and groundwater. As a result o
acquisition of MACS and Aloha, we are now subjecstate petroleum franchise laws, specifically,Wirginia Petroleum Products Franchise
and the Maryland Gasohol and Gasoline Products iaugk Act, as well as laws specific to gasolinaitets in Tennessee. Aloha is subjec
Chapter 486H of the Hawaiian statutes relatinga®otjne dealers, among other statues and regusation

Environmental laws and regulations can restrigtrgract our business activities in many ways, sich a

* requiring remedial action to mitigate releaselyalrocarbons, hazardous substances or wastesdtchyur operations or
attributable to former operators;

* requiring capital expenditures to comply with eowimental control requirements;
* enjoining the operations of facilities deemed tarbeoncompliance with environmental laws and ratjahs

Failure to comply with environmental laws and regioins may trigger a variety of administrative,ilciand criminal enforceme
measures, including the assessment of monetanytigenghe imposition of remedial requirements ahd issuance of orders enjoining
otherwise curtailing future operations. Certainismmental statutes impose strict, joint and sdvigahility for costs required to clean up ¢
restore sites where hydrocarbons, hazardous swaestan wastes have been released or disposed oéoMw, neighboring landowners and o
third parties may file claims for personal injurgdaproperty damage allegedly caused by the relebbgdrocarbons, hazardous substanci
other wastes into the environment.

We believe we are in compliance in all materiapeeds with applicable environmental laws and retijuia, and we do not believe t
compliance with federal, state or local environmaktdws and regulations will have a material adeegBect on our financial position, results
operations or cash available for distribution t@ anitholders. Any future change in regulatory rieginents could cause us to incur signifit
costs. We incorporate by reference into this saatiar disclosures included in Note 14 of the Nate€onsolidated Financial Statements inclt
in Part Il, ltem 8.




Hazardous Substances and Relea

Certain environmental laws, including the Comprednen Environmental Response, Compensation and litjabAct of 198(C
(“CERCLA"), impose strict, and under certain circumstances} gnd several, liability on the owner and opera®mvell as former owners ¢
operators of properties for the costs of invesiigatremoval or remediation of contamination arsbampose liability for any related damage
natural resources without regard to fault. In @ddit under CERCLA and similar state laws, as pesseho arrange for the transportat
treatment or disposal of hazardous substances|seenzay be subject to similar liability at sitesewd such hazardous substances come
located. We may also be subject to thpatty claims alleging property damage and/or pexsimjury in connection with releases of or expestt
hazardous substances at, from or in the vicinitywfcurrent properties or off-site waste dispadals.

We are required to comply with federal and stataritial responsibility requirements to demonstthét we have the ability to pay
remediation or to compensate third parties for dggmancurred as a result of a release of regulataerials from our underground storage
systems. We meet these requirements primarily bgtaiaing insurance which we purchase from privageirers.

Environmental Reserve

As of December 31, 2014 , we had environmentalrveseof $0.8 millionfor estimated costs associated with investigating
remediation of known environmental matters relatiagour Aloha and MACS acquisitions. We have @8ned and operated sites relatin
MACS and Aloha at which we have remediation adésitoccurring. We currently have no remediationvais occurring at our former Sus
owned sites. Our Omnibus Agreement with Susserigesvthat Susser must indemnify us for costs tleatneur for environmental liabilities a
third-party claims that are based on environmental cmditin existence at the contributed propertiesrpio the IPO. The indemnity expi
September 2015.

Underground Storage Tanks

We are required to make financial expendituresotomdy with regulations governing underground steréanks adopted by federal, s
and local regulatory agencies. Pursuant to the lResdConservation and Recovery Act of 1976, as dewrthe Environmental Protection Age
(“EPA") has established a comprehensive regulatory prodoarthe detection, prevention, investigation andaadlup of leaking undergrou
storage tanks. State or local agencies are oftlegated the responsibility for implementing thedied program or developing and implemen
equivalent state or local regulations. We haveraehensive program in place for performing routar testing and other compliance activ
which are intended to promptly detect and investigany potential releases. We believe we are inpliante in all material respects w
requirements applicable to our underground stotaigies.

Air Emissions

The Federal Clean Air Act (the “CAA’and similar state laws impose requirements on éomisgo the air from motor fueling activities
certain areas of the country, including those tltahot meet state or national ambient air quatéydards. These laws may require the install
of vapor recovery systems to control emissionsaétie organic compounds to the air during the andtieling process. Under the CAA ¢
comparable state and local laws, permits are tilpicequired to emit regulated air pollutants iritee atmosphere. We believe that we currt
hold or have applied for all necessary air permitd that we are in substantial compliance with iapple air laws and regulations. Although
can give no assurances, we are aware of no chamgasquality regulations that will have a mateadverse effect on our financial conditi
results of operations or cash available for distidn to our unitholders.

Various federal, state and local agencies havethieority to prescribe product quality specificagofor the motor fuels that we s
largely in an effort to reduce air pollution. Faguto comply with these regulations can resultubssantial penalties. Although we can give
assurances, we believe we are currently in subistaompliance with these regulations.

Efforts at the federal and state level are curyentiderway to reduce the levels of greenhouse ‘@ad@”) emissions from variol
sources in the United States. At the federal le€@ehgress has considered legislation to reduce @miSsions in the United States but no ¢
legislation has been passed. Such federal legislatiay impose a carbon emissions tax or establpandrade program or regulation by
EPA. Even in the absence of new federal legislat®iAiG emissions have begun to be regulated by B#e fiursuant to the CAA. For example
April 2010, the EPA set a new emissions standardnfotor vehicles to reduce GHG emissions. New falder state restrictions on emission
GHGs that may be imposed in areas of the Unitetk&ia which we conduct business and that apptutooperations could adversely affect
demand for our products.
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Other Government Regulation

The Petroleum Marketing Practices Act, or "PMPA"aifederal law that governs the relationship betwe refiner and a distributor,
well as between a distributor and branded dealesyant to which the refiner or distributor pernatslistributor or dealer to use a tradema
connection with the sale or distribution of motoelf Under the PMPA, we may not terminate or faitdnew a branded distributor contract ur
certain enumerated preconditions or grounds fonitetion or nonrenewal are met and we also comjily the prescribed notice requirements
addition, we are subject to state laws that regudat relationships with third parties to whom wade sites and supply motor fuels.

Employee Safety

We are subject to the requirements of the Occupalti®afety and Health Act, or "OSHA," and compagablate statutes that regulate
protection of the health and safety of workersadidition, OSHA's hazard communication standardsiredhat information be maintained ak
hazardous materials used or produced in operasiodghat this information be provided to employetate and local government authorities
citizens. We believe that we are in substantial@ance with the applicable OSHA requirements.

Title to Properties, Permits and Licenses

We believe we have all of the assets needed, imgudases, permits and licenses, to operate ainéss in all material respects. \!
respect to any consents, permits or authorizatibas have not been obtained, we believe that therdéato obtain these consents, permit
authorizations will not have a material adversesaffon our financial position, results of operasiamr cash available for distribution to
unitholders.

We believe we have satisfactory title to all of agsets. Title to property may be subject to encanmdes, including repurchase rights
use, operating and environmental covenants andctésts, including restrictions on branded motaels that may be sold at such sites.
believe that none of these encumbrances will detnaterially from the value of our sites or fronr @uterest in these sites, nor will they inter
materially with the use of these sites in the ofi@naof our business. These encumbrances may, rewempact our ability to sell the site to
entity seeking to use the land for alternative pags.

Our Employees

We are managed and operated by the board of diseatal executive officers of our general partnemddo GP LLC ("SGP"). O
general partner has the sole responsibility foviginog the employees and other personnel necedsanonduct our operations. All of t
employees that conduct our business are employefusger and its affiliates or employed by our wholvned subsidiaries Susser Ene
Services, LLC and Susser Petroleum Property Compdny. Subsequent to the acquisition of Aloha, vesvrhave employees in Hawaii. As
December 31, 2014 our general partner and its affiliates had apipnakely 1,954 employees performing services for operations, ar
appropriate costs are allocated to us. We beliesewe and our general partner and its affiliageha satisfactory relationship with employ
With the exception of a limited number of employeesHawaii, hone of these employees are subjeatoltective bargaining agreemel
Information concerning the executive officers ofr @eneral partner is contained in "Item 10. DirestdExecutive Officers and Corpor
Governance."

Iltem 1A. Risk Factors
Risks Related to Our Business

Susser is our largest customer, and we are depehderSusser for a significant majority of our revees. Therefore, we are indirectly subje

to the business risks of Susser. If Susser chanigebusiness strategy, is unable to satisfy itsigdions under our various commercial
agreements for any reason, or significantly redudég volume of motor fuel it purchases under thesSer Distribution Contract, our revenues
will decline and our financial condition, resultsfaperations, cash flows and ability to make distutions to our unitholders will be adversely
affected.

For the year ended December 31, 2014 , Susserraechior approximately 60% of our revenues, 20%uwfgross profit and 60%f out
motor fuel volumes sold. We are the exclusive iflistor of motor fuel to Susser’s existing Strifeonvenience stores and independently ope
consignment locations pursuant to our long-terra, based fuel distribution agreement with Susser (Busser Distribution Contract"yVe are
subject to the risk of nonpayment or nonperformabgeSusser under the Susser Distribution Contfagithermore, the Susser Distribut
Contract does not impose any minimum volume olibgat
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on Susser and Susser will have a limited abilityetmove Stripes®@onvenience stores from the Susser Distributionti@oh If Susser changes
business strategy or significantly reduces the melwf motor fuel it purchases for its Stripes@nvenience stores and independently ope
consignment locations, our cash flows will be adebsr impacted. Any event, whether in our areaspafration or otherwise, that materially
adversely affects Susser's financial conditionultesof operation or cash flows may adversely dffear ability to sustain or increase ¢
distributions to our unitholders. Accordingly, wesandirectly subject to the operational and bussnésks of Susser, some which are related |
following:

» competitive pressures from convenience sto@slgne stations, and non-traditional fuel retaileuch as supermarkets, club stores
and mass merchants located in Susser's markets;

* volatility in prices for motor fuel, which could aersely impact consumer demand for motor
* increasing consumer preferences for alternativenfaels, or improvements in fuel efficien
» seasonal trends in the convenience store indwshigh significantly impact Susser's motor fuel s;

» the impact of severe or unfavorable weather itimms on Susser's facilities or communicationsmoeks, or on consumer behavior,
travel and convenience store traffic patterns;

« crossborder risks associated with the concentrationusfkgr's stores in markets bordering Me;
» Susses dependence on information technology syst
» Susser's ability to build or acquire and succelsiolegrate new store
« the operation of Susser's retail stores in closgimity to stores of our other customers;
* risks relating to Susser's dependence on us forftas generatior
Finally, we have no control over Susser, our largesirce of revenue and our primary customer. $usag elect to pursue a busin
strategy that does not favor us and our businessgéneral partner and its affiliates, includings&er and ETP, have conflicts of interest wit

and limited fiduciary duties and they may favorithmvn interests to the detriment of us and outhoiders.

We may not have sufficient cash from operationsléoling the establishment of cash reserves and paynué costs and expenses, including
cost reimbursements to our general partner, to elgabs to pay the minimum quarterly distribution taur unitholders.

We may not have sufficient cash each quarter totp@yull amount of our minimum quarterly distrilmrt of $0.4375 per unit, or $1.
per unit per year, which will require us to haveitable cash of approximately $15.3 million per e or $61.3 milliorper year, based on 1
number of common and subordinated units outstand:gf December 31, 2014The amount of cash we can distribute on our comiam
subordinated units principally depends upon thewarmof cash we generate from our operations, wiitlifluctuate from quarter to quarter ba:
on a number of factors, some of which are beyonctontrol, including, among other things:

» demand for motor fuel in the markets we serve uidiclg seasonal fluctuations in demand for motot;

» competition from other companies that sell mot@ foroducts or have convenience stores in our markeas

regulatory action affecting the supply of or demé&dmotor fuel, our operations, our existing ceets or our operating cos
* prevailing economic conditions; &
« volatility of prices for motor fue

In addition, the actual amount of cash we will havailable for distribution will depend on othectiars including:

« the level and timing of capital expenditures we &,
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« the cost of acquisitions, if ar
 our debt service requirements and other liabili
« fluctuations in our general working capital ne

» reimbursements made to our general partnertaraffiliates for all direct and indirect expengesy incur on our behalf pursuant to
the partnership agreement;

« our ability to borrow funds at favorable interestias and access capital marlk
* restrictions contained in debt agreements to whielare a party; al
 the amount of cash reserves established by ourggrartnel

Our financial condition and results of operationsra influenced by changes in the prices of motor fuehich may adversely impact our
margins, our customers' financial condition and thavailability of trade credit.

Our operating results are influenced by pricesnfiotor fuel, pricing volatility and the market foach products. General economic
political conditions, acts of war or terrorism aimgtability in oil producing regions, particularlg the Middle East and South America, cc
significantly impact crude oil supplies and pettotecosts. Significant increases and volatility @trpleum costs could impact consumer der
for motor fuel and convenience merchandise. Thlatilily makes it extremely difficult to predict ¢himpact future petroleum costs fluctuati
will have on our operating results and financiatdition. Our recent acquisition of MACS and Alolmerieases our exposure to such volatility
to the inherently greater degree of volatility @tail, versus wholesale, motor fuel margins. Aduitlly, with the consummation of the MACS
Aloha acquisitions, we are now subject to dealek taeagon pricing structures at certain locationghier contributing to margin volatility.
significant change in any of these factors couldemally impact both wholesale and retail fuel masgthe volume of motor fuel we distribute
sell at retail, and overall customer traffic, ea€twhich in turn could have a material adverseaftan our business and results of operation:
cash available for distribution to our unitholders.

In addition, when prices for motor fuel rise, soofeour customers may have insufficient credit tochase motor fuel from us at tr
historical volumes. Higher prices for motor fuel ynalso reduce our access to trade credit suppodaase it to become more expens
Significant decreases in wholesale motor fuel griceuld also result in lower motor fuel gross masgper gallon due to the reduction in valu
discounts from our suppliers.

Our fuel storage terminals are subject to operatarand business risks which, if occur, may advessaffect our financial condition, results «
operations, cash flows and ability to make distrtmns to our unitholders.

With the acquisition of Aloha, we now own fuel stge terminals in Hawaii. Our fuel storage termireais subject to operational ¢
business risks, the most significant of which ideuhe following:

e ourinability to renew a ground lease for certdiour fuel storage terminals on similar terms oalg

* our dependence on third parties to supply oursterhage terminal

» outages at our fuel storage terminals or infged operations due to weathretated or other natural caus
» the threat that the natianterminal infrastructure may be a future targeteaforist organization

» the volatility in the prices of the products stordour fuel storage terminals and the resultingttlations in demand for our stor.
services;

» the effects of a sustained recession or other advaronomic conditior

» the possibility of federal and/or state regulatithret may discourage our customers from storinglges diesel fuel, ethanol and jet f
at our fuel storage terminals or reduce the denbgrcbnsumers for petroleum products;

» competition from other fuel storage terminals tat able to supply our customers with comparablage capacity at lower prices; i
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» climate change legislation or regulations thatrigisemissions of GHGs could result in increasedraping and capital costs and redt
demand for our storage services.

The occurrence of any of the above situations, @nuthers, may affect the operations at our fugbsgg® terminals and consequently |
adversely affect our financial condition, result®perations, cash flows and ability to make dittions to our unitholders.

A significant decrease in demand for motor fuel the areas we serve would reduce our ability to maigtributions to our unitholders

A significant decrease in demand for motor fuethia areas that we serve could significantly reduaerevenues and, therefore, rec
our ability to make or increase distributions ta aaitholders. Our revenues are dependent on \ati@mds, such as trends in commercial 1
traffic, travel and tourism in our areas of opemtiand these trends can change. Furthermore,reddkactuations or regulatory action, includ
government imposed fuel efficiency standards, nilscademand for motor fuel. Because certain of aperating costs and expenses are fixet
do not vary with the volumes of motor fuel we diatite, our costs and expenses might not decreaaklyaor at all should we experienc
reduction in our volumes distributed. As a result, nay experience declines in our profit margiouf fuel distribution volumes decrease.

We currently depend on limited suppliers for the jodty of our motor fuel. A failure by a principakupplier to renew our supply agreement, a
disruption in supply or an unexpected change in osupplier relationships could have a material adsereffect on our business.

We currently depend on limited principal supplimsthe majority of our motor fuel in each of oyerating areas. If any of our princi
suppliers elect not to renew their contracts wihwe may be unable to replace the volume of mioterwe currently purchase from them
similar terms or at all. Moreover, our supply caets do not guarantee that we will receive alheftolumes that we need to fulfill the demanc
our distribution customers. In times of extreme keéidemand or supply disruption, we may be unablectjuire enough fuel to satisfy the -
demand of our customers. Furthermore, foreignipalievents may generally cause a disruption inptiiee and/or availability of crude oil. In t
event fuel supply becomes scarce or unavailahles io our markets, we may be unable to meet ouomess' demand for motor fuel.

We currently depend on a limited number of principsuppliers in each of our operating areas for alsstantial portion of our merchandis
inventory and our products and ingredients for ofwod service facilities. A disruption in supply @ change in either relationship could have
material adverse effect on our business.

We currently depend on a limited number of printgagopliers in each of our operating areas forkesstantial portion of our merchand
inventory and our products and ingredients forfood service facilities. If any of our principalliers elect not to renew their contracts witt
we may be unable to replace the volume of merckaendventory and products and ingredients we ctiyr@archase from them on similar tet
or at all in those operating areas. Further, augdissn in supply or a significant change in ouatilnship with any of these suppliers could ha
material adverse effect on our business, finardadtition and results of operations and cash availfr distribution to our unitholders.

Increasing consumer preferences for alternative mpfuels, or improvements in fuel efficiency, coultlversely impact our busines

Any technological advancements, regulatory chamgeshanges in consumer preferences causing a isamtifshift toward alternati
motor fuels, or norfuel dependent means of transportation, could redlemmand for conventional petroleum based motds.féalditionally, ¢
shift toward electric, hydrogen, natural gas oreothlternative or non-fuglewered vehicles could fundamentally change conssinspendin
habits or lead to new forms of fueling destination;mew competitive pressures. Finally, new tecbgiels have been developed and governm
mandates have been implemented to improve fudiefity. Any of these outcomes could potentiallyulem decreased consumer demanc
motor fuel, which could have a material adverseafbn our business, financial condition, resultsperations and cash available for distribu
to our unitholders.

The wholesale motor fuel distribution industry idaracterized by intense competition and fragmentati and our failure to effectively compete
could result in lower margins.

The market for distribution of wholesale motor filhighly competitive and fragmented, which resutt narrow margins. We he

numerous competitors, some of which may have scgmifly greater resources and name recognition tisarWe rely on our ability to provi
value-added, reliable services and to control arating costs in order to maintain our margins and
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competitive position. If we were to fail to maimahe quality of our services, certain of our cosos could choose alternative distribution sot
and our margins could decrease. While major integrail companies have generally continued to divetil sites and the corresponc
wholesale distribution to such sites, such majbcompanies could shift from this strategy and dedbo distribute their own products in di
competition with us, or large customers could afteto buy directly from the major oil companies.eTbccurrence of any of these events ¢
have a material adverse effect on our businesmdial condition, results of operations and castilabe for distribution to our unitholders.

The convenience store industry is highly compettiand impacted by new entrants and our failure tifeetively compete could result in low
sales and lower margin:

The geographic areas in which we operate are higitypetitive and marked by ease of entry and cotsteange in the number and t
of retailers offering products and services oftife we sell in our stores. We compete with otluervenience store chains, independently o\
convenience stores, motor fuel stations, supernmrileugstores, discount stores, dollar stored) stares, mass merchants and local restau
Over the past 15 years, several m@ditional retailers, such as supermarkets, hypdtets, club stores and mass merchants, have iethdw
convenience store industry, particularly in the graphic areas in which we operate, by enteringnttotor fuel retail business. These non-
traditional motor fuel retailers have capturedgniicant share of the motor fuels market, and waeet their market share will continue to gr
In some of our markets, our competitors have beexistence longer and have greater financial, etantg and other resources than we do.
result, our competitors may be able to respondbgttchanges in the economy and new opportunitien the industry. To remain competiti
we must constantly analyze consumer preferences@mgetitors’offerings and prices to ensure that we offer actiele of convenience produ
and services at competitive prices to meet consutaarand. We must also maintain and upgrade oupmestservice levels, facilities a
locations to remain competitive and attract custotragfic to our stores. We may not be able to cetesuccessfully against current and ft
competitors, and competitive pressures faced mpukl have a material adverse effect on our busiaed results of operations and cash ava
for distribution to our unitholders.

Severe weather could adversely affect our busingsslamaging our suppliers or our customers' fadgis or communications network:

A substantial portion of our wholesale distributiand retail networks are located in regions sufglepto severe storms, includi
hurricanes. A severe storm could damage our f@slir communications networks, or those of oupBegs or our customers, as well as inter
with our ability to distribute motor fuel to our st@mers or our customers' ability to operate thaiations. If warmer temperatures, or o
climate changes, lead to changes in extreme weathasts, including increased frequency, duratiosemerity, these weatheslated risks cou
become more pronounced. Any weathelated catastrophe or disruption could have a mahtadverse effect on our business and resu
operations, potentially causing losses beyondiithiés| of the insurance we currently carry.

Negative events or developments associated withboanded suppliers could have an adverse impacbon revenues

We believe that the success of our operations femtdent, in part, on the continuing favorable repoih, market value and na
recognition associated with the motor fuel brarmld at our convenience stores as well as at stipested by our independent, branded de.
Erosion of the value of those brands could havaduerse impact on the volumes of motor fuel weribiiste, which in turn could have a mate
adverse effect on our business, financial conditiesults of operations and ability to make disttitins to our unitholders.

If we are unable to make acquisitions on economigacceptable terms from ETP or third parties, ofuture growth and ability to increas
distributions to unitholders will be limited.

A portion of our strategy to grow our business armtease distributions to unitholders is depenaenbur ability to make acquisitic
that result in an increase in cash flow. The adétois component of our growth strategy is basedange part, on our expectation of ongc
divestitures of retail and wholesale fuel distribntassets by industry participants, including EEPP has no contractual obligations to contri
any assets to us or accept any offer for its assatsve may choose to make. If we are unable tkena@quisitions from ETP or third parties
any reason, including if we are unable to idené&ftractive acquisition candidates or negotiate pied#e purchase contracts, we are unak
obtain financing for these acquisitions on econathicacceptable terms, we are outbid by competiborae or the seller are unable to obtain
necessary consents, our future growth and abditpndrease distributions to unitholders will beitied. In addition, if we consummate any ful
acquisitions, our capitalization and results ofrafiens may change significantly, and unitholdeit mot have the opportunity to evaluate
economic, financial and other relevant informatileat we will consider in determining the applicatiof these funds and other resources.

15




Pursuant to the Omnibus Agreement between the étahtip and Susser, upon the closing of our IPO e \granted a thregear optiol
to purchase up to 75 new or recently constructagdelt® convenience stores from Susser and lease thentb&alsser on specified terms set f
in a lease agreement, including a specified leas® for an initial term of 15 years. However, ssgecified terms may not be economic
favorable to us in the future, and we may not cedoscontinue to exercise this option.

In addition, we expect to grow through additioralesand leaseback transactions with Susser beyendption set forth in the Omnit
Agreement. However, Susser is under no obligatigoursue acquisitions with us, enter into additiade and leaseback arrangements with
generally pursue projects that enhance the valweiobusiness. Finally, we may complete acquisitimhich at the time of completion we beli
will be accretive, but which ultimately may not &ecretive. If any of these events were to occur fature growth would be limited.

Any acquisitions, including any future contributios to us of assets by ETP, are subject to substamisks that could adversely affect o
financial condition and results of operations aneéduce our ability to make distributions to unithads.

Any acquisitions, including any future contributfoto us of assets by ETP, involve potential risgkduding, among other things:

« the validity of our assumptions about revenuesitabgxpenditures and operating costs of the aequiusiness or assets, as we
assumptions about achieving synergies with outtiagidusiness;

« the validity of our assessment of environmental ather liabilities, including legacy liabilitie

* the costs associated with additional debt or eqestyital, which may result in a significant increda our interest expense
financial leverage resulting from any additionabdimcurred to finance the acquisition, or the &se of additional common units
which we will make distributions, either of whiclowdd offset the expected accretion to our unith@deom such acquisition a

could be exacerbated by volatility in the equitydebt capital markets;

« a failure to realize anticipated benefits, suchineseased available cash per unit, enhanced cotinpegiosition or new custorr
relationships;

« adecrease in our liquidity by using a significpattion of our available cash or borrowing capatutjinance the acquisitic

« the incurrence of other significant charges, sushimpairment of goodwill or other intangible assedsset devaluation
restructuring charges; and

« the risk that our existing financial controls, infaation systems, management resources and humaurces will need to grow
support future growth and we may not be able totreaely.

Integration of the assets acquired in past acquisits, future acquisitions, or future contributionsy ETP with our existing business will be
complex, timeeonsuming and costly process, particularly giverathithe acquired assets will significantly increaserr size and diversify tt
geographic areas in which we operate. A failuredoccessfully integrate the acquired assets with existing business in a timely manner ir
have a material adverse effect on our businessafinial condition, results of operations or cash akable for distribution to our unitholders.

The difficulties of integrating Aloha and MACS, fue acquisitions, or future contributions by ETRhadur business include, amc
other things:

« difficulties operating in a larger combined orgatian in new geographic areas and new lines ofiess
« the inability to hire, train or retain qualifiedngennel to manage and operate our growing busaregasset

« difficulties in integrating management teams andplegees into our operations and establishing affeccommunication ar
information exchange with such management teameanudoyees;

« the diversion of managementttention from our existing busine

« difficulties in the assimilation of the acquiredsats and operations, including additional regujapwograms
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¢ loss of customers or key employe

¢ maintaining an effective system of internal colst and integrating internal controls, complianreler the Sarban&3xley Act of
2002 and other regulatory compliance and corpgaternance matters; and

- difficulties integrating new technology systems fioancial reporting

If any of these risks or unanticipated liabilities costs were to materialize, then any desired fitsnieom past acquisitions, futt
acquisitions, or contributions by ETP may not blyfuealized, if at all, and our future results gperations could be negatively impactec
addition, the assets acquired may actually perfatrievels below the forecasts we used to evallateatquired assets, due to factors the
beyond our control. If the acquired assets perfartevels below the forecasts, then our futureltesidi operations could be negatively impacted.

Also, our reviews of businesses or assets proposed acquired are inherently imperfect becaugerierally is not feasible to perform
in-depth review of businesses and assets involveddh acquisition given time constraints imposed dlless. Even a detailed review of as
and businesses may not necessarily reveal existipgtential problems, nor will it permit a buyerliecome sufficiently familiar with the asset
businesses to fully assess their deficiencies atehpal. Inspections may not always be performedeeery asset, and environmental probli
such as groundwater contamination, are not nedlgsshservable even when an inspection is underntake

Our operations are subject to federal, state anddblaws and regulations pertaining to environmeniarotection and operational safety that
may require significant expenditures or result ifabilities that could have a material adverse eff@n our business.

Our business is subject to various federal, statelacal environmental laws and regulations, intilgdthose relating to the release
discharge of regulated materials into the air, wated soil, the generation, storage, handling, tremsportation and disposal of hazarc
materials, the exposure of persons to regulatecenmlst, and the health and safety of our employé@ewiolation of, liability under c
noncompliance with these laws or regulations or fatyre environmental law or regulation, could havmaterial adverse effect on our busi
and results of operations and cash available fetridution to our unitholders. With the acquisitioh Aloha, we are subject to a numbe
additional environmental, health and safety program particular, there are a number of environmleand safety programs applicable to
terminals, including programs to respond to spitisl emergencies.

Regulations under the Water Pollution Control Atfi872 (the “Clean Water Act”), the Oil PollutioncAof 1990 (“OPA 90™)and stat
laws impose regulatory burdens on terminal opemati®pill prevention control and countermeasurairements of federal laws and state |
require containment to mitigate or prevent contatidm of waters in the event of a refined produariow, rupture, or leak from abowgrounc
pipelines and storage tanks. The Clean Water Agtires us to maintain spill prevention control @edntermeasure plans at our terminal facil
with aboveground storage tanks and pipelines. In additionA®B requires that most fuel transport and sto@@apanies maintain and upc
various oil spill prevention and oil spill contingey plans. Facilities that are adjacent to watquire the engagement of Federally Certified
Spill Response Organizations (“OSRO8)be available to respond to a spill on water framove ground storage tanks or pipelines. In auiy
the transportation and storage of refined prodoees and adjacent to water involves risk and pad#ytsubjects us to strict, joint, and potenti.
unlimited liability for removal costs and other segquences of an oil spill where the spill is inavigable waters, along shorelines or in
exclusive economic zone of the United States. énetbent of an oil spill into navigable waters, sabsal liabilities could be imposed upon us.
Clean Water Act also imposes restrictions andtstoatrols regarding the discharge of pollutants imavigable waters. The Clean Water Act
impose substantial potential liability for the \atibn of permits or permitting requirements. Foamyple, we may incur costs of up to $7 millio
more to install impervious liners within secondagntainment facilities at a terminal in Hawaii tong the terminal properties into complia
with the federal Claim Water Act, which costs,éhlized, may have a material adverse effect orbosiness, liquidity and results of operati
and cash available for distribution to our unitteskl In a related matter, Aloha is in negotiatiaith the U.S. Environmental Protection Age
(“EPA") and the Department of Justice regarding allegethtms of the Clean Water Act related to a spitinfi one of the same terminals
2011. It is possible that the final settlement dche greater than $100,000.

In addition, the terminal operations and associédeilities are subject to the Clean Air Act andmarable state and local statutes. U
these laws, permits may be required before cortirucan commence on a new source of potentiapiicant air emissions, and operat
permits may be required for sources that are ajreadstructed. If regulations become more stringadtitional emission control technolog
may be required to be installed at our facilitidey such future obligations could require us touinsignificant additional capital or operat
costs. For example, Aloha is in settlement discunssivith
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EPA and the Department of Justice regarding alleg@dtions of the New Source Performance Standandier the Clean Air Act. It is likely tF
the final settlement will be greater than $100,000.

Finally, terminal operations are also subject tditmhal programs and regulations under the Ocdopat Safety and Health A
("*OSHA"). A violation of, liability under or compliance witthese laws or regulations or any future safety lawsegulations, could have
material adverse effect on our business and resiuttperations and cash available for distributmour unitholders.

Compliance with and liability under existing and fure local, state and federal environmental regutat, including those that requir
investigation and remediation activities, may reqiisignificant expenditures or result in liabilitie that could have a material adverse effect
our business.

Our business is subject to various federal, statelacal environmental laws and regulations, intlgdthose relating to undergrot
storage tanks, the release or discharge of reguiateerials into the air, water and soil, the gatien, storage, handling, use, transportatior
disposal of hazardous materials, the exposurersbpe to regulated materials, and the health afedysaf our employees. A violation of, liabil
under or compliance with these laws or regulationany future environmental laws or regulationsjldchave a material adverse effect on
business and results of operations and cash alaftatdistribution to our unitholders.

Certain environmental laws, including the Compreiian Environmental Response, Compensation and lityalict (‘“CERCLA"),
impose strict, and under certain circumstancest jnd several, liability on the owner and operat®mwell as former owners and operatol
properties for the costs of investigation, remosalremediation of contamination and also imposbilltg for any related damages to nati
resources without regard to fault. In addition, @n€@ERCLA and similar state laws, as persons whange for the transportation, treatmer
disposal of hazardous substances, we also maybpecsto similar liability at sites where such haltaus substances come to be located. We
also be subject to thirgarty claims alleging property damage and/or pakanjury in connection with releases of or expestw hazardot
substances at, from or in the vicinity of our catrer former properties or offite waste disposal sites. The costs associatédtingtinvestigatio
and remediation of contamination, as well as asp@ated third party claims, could be substangiat| could have a material adverse effect ol
business and results of operations and our altditgervice our outstanding indebtedness. In additibe presence of, or failure to, remec
identified or unidentified contamination at our pesties could potentially materially adversely affeur ability to sell or rent such property o
borrow money using such property as collateral.

We are required to make financial expendituresotomdy with regulations governing underground steréanks adopted by federal, s
and local regulatory agencies. Compliance withtedsand future environmental laws regulating ugdeund storage tank systems of the kine
use may require significant capital expenditurethimfuture. For example, on September 23, 20 B1FPA sent a revised rulemaking origin
proposed in November 2011 to the federal OfficéMahagement and Budget for final review that, ondepéed by the EPA, would amend
existing federal underground storage tank rules manner that could require us to incur added d¢ostemply, which costs may be substar
The EPA currently projects that the revised ruleimglwill be adopted by the end of 2015. Expendguomder existing or future laws ¢
regulations may include upgrades, modifications| #re replacement of underground storage tankselated piping to comply with current ¢
future regulatory requirements designed to endheeletection, prevention, investigation and rentediaf leaks and spills.

In addition, the Clean Air Act and similar stateviaimpose requirements on emissions to the air frastor fueling activities in certa
areas of the country, including those that do neetstate or national ambient air quality standaftiese laws may require the installatiol
vapor recovery systems to control emissions oftilelarganic compounds to the air during the mdébeding process. While we believe we ar
material compliance with all applicable regulatoeguirements with respect to underground storagle sgstems of the kind we use, the regule
requirements may become more stringent or applgntancreased number of underground storage tankkeirfuture, which would requi
additional, potentially material, expenditures.

We are required to comply with federal and stataritial responsibility requirements to demonstthét we have the ability to pay
cleanups or to compensate third parties for damagesred as a result of a release of regulatecemadd from our underground storage 1
systems. We seek to comply with these requirenm@nteaintaining insurance that we purchase fromgpeivnsurers and in certain circumstar
rely on applicable state trust funds, which arelfchby underground storage tank registration fadsaxes on wholesale purchase of motor f
The coverage afforded by each fund varies and per#ent upon the continued maintenance and solveinepnch fund. More specifically,
Texas we met our financial responsibility requiretseby state trust fund coverage for claims asdgst®r to December 1998 (claims repo
after that date are ineligible for reimbursemend all claims covered by the fund were paid by Asidl, 2012 when the fund expired. We r
such requirements for claims asserted after Deced®®8 through insurance that we have obtained foarrate insurers through December
2014. We became self-insured up to $1.0 millioofa3ecember 15, 2014. We have private insurancerege
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should claims exceed $1.0 million. In Oklahoma &ledv Mexico, we meet our financial responsibilitgjuerements by state trust fund covel
for cleanup liability and meet the requirements foird-party liability through private insurance. In Tessee and Georgia, our finan
responsibility requirements are covered under thte grust fund up to the fund limits backed byaté insurance for those sites where cle
costs exceed the coverage of the fund and meettjudrements for thirgharty liability through private insurance. The site Virginia are covere
under the state fund for site cleanup, backed bgntal guarantees and private insurance at sitesenthe cleanup costs exceed fund limits
private insurance for thirgarty claims. Finally, in Maryland, we meet ourdirtial responsibility requirements through priviateurance for bot
cleanup costs and third-party claims.

We are currently responsible for investigating amohediating contamination at a number of our cureerd former properties. We
entitled to reimbursement for certain of these astder various thirgarty contractual indemnities, and insurance padicsubject to eligibilit
requirements, deductibles, per incident, annualaggtegate caps. To the extent third parties (@etuinsurers) do not pay for investigation
remediation as we anticipate, and/or insuranceoisamailable, we will be obligated to make thesditmhal payments, which could materiz
adversely affect our business, liquidity and ressaftoperations and cash available for distribut@our unitholders.

We believe we are in material compliance with aggille environmental requirements; however, we daamsure that violations of the
requirements will not occur in the future. Althougk have a comprehensive environmental, healtisafety program, we may not have identi
all of the environmental liabilities at all of oourrent and former locations; material environmeotaditions not known to us may exist; exis
and future laws, ordinances or regulations may sepoaterial environmental liability or complianagsts on us; or we may be required to n
material environmental expenditures for remediatbrcontamination that has not been discovereiatieg locations or locations that we n
acquire.

Furthermore, new laws, new interpretations of éxgstaws, increased governmental enforcement aftiexj laws or other developme
could require us to make additional capital expemds or incur additional liabilities. The occurcenof any of these events could have a ma
adverse effect on our business and results of peseand cash available for distribution to ouithwiders.

We are subject to federal, state and local laws aegulations that govern the product quality specétions of the refined petroleum products
we purchase, store, transport and sell to our distition customers.

Various federal, state and local government agenic@&ve the authority to prescribe specific produality specifications for certe
commodities, including commodities that we disttdbuChanges in product quality specifications, sashreduced sulfur content in refil
petroleum products, or other more stringent requingts for fuels, could reduce our ability to pracyroduct, require us to incur additic
handling costs and/or require the expenditure pitak If we are unable to procure product or remahese costs through increased sales, wt
not be able to meet our financial obligations. dailto comply with these regulations could resukubstantial penalties.

The dangers inherent in the storage of motor fueldd cause disruptions in our operations and cowddpose us to potentially significant
losses, costs or liabilities.

We store motor fuel in underground and above graacdhge tanks. Our operations are subject tofgignt hazards and risks inheren
storing motor fuel. These hazards and risks inglbdeare not limited to, fires, explosions, spitlsscharges and other releases, any of which
result in distribution difficulties and disruptignsnvironmental pollution, governmentally-imposétk$ or cleanip obligations, personal injury
wrongful death claims and other damage to our ptgseand the properties of others. Any such eweuntd significantly disrupt our operations
expose us to significant liabilities, to the extenth liabilities are not covered by insurance.réftge, the occurrence of such an event could
a material adverse effect on our business, finhnoiadition, results of operations and cash avéalédr distribution to our unitholders.

We may be subject to adverse publicity resultingnfr concerns over food quality, product safety, hbabr other negative events
developments that could cause consumers to avoidretail locations.

We may be the subject of complaints or litigatioisiag from foodrelated iliness or product safety which could havegative impact «
our business. Negative publicity, regardless oftivethe allegations are valid, concerning foodityydood safety or other health concerns, f
service facilities, employee relations or other terat related to our operations may materially asbigraffect demand for our food and o
products and could result in a decrease in custtraiic to our retail stores.

It is critical to our reputatiothat we maintain a consistent level of high quadityour food service facilities and other franchiseas
food offerings. Health concerns, poor food quatityoperating issues stemming from one store onadd
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number of stores could materially and adverselgatfthe operating results of some or all of ourestaand harm our companoyvned brand
continuing favorable reputation, market value aacha recognition.

We are not fully insured against all risks incidetd our business.

We are not fully insured against all risks incidenbur business. We may be unable to obtain ontaiai insurance with the coverage
we desire at reasonable rates. As a result of rmadalitions, the premiums and deductibles foraierof our insurance policies have incre:
and could continue to do so. Certain insuranceremeecould become unavailable or available onlydduced amounts of coverage. If we we
incur a significant liability for which we were ndally insured, it could have a material adversteafon our financial condition, results
operations and ability to make distributions to onitholders.

Future litigation could adversely affect our finanal condition and results of operations.

We are exposed to various litigation claims in ¢idinary course of our wholesale business operstimetluding dealer litigation a
industry-wide or class-action claims arising frdme £quipment or processes we use or employ ortirydsisecific business practices. If we wer
become subject to any such claims in the futuredetense costs and any resulting awards or setieamounts may not be fully covered by
insurance policies. Additionally, our retail opéoas are characterized by a high volume of custdanadfic and by transactions involving a w
array of product selections. These operations carnygher exposure to consumer litigation risk whempared to the operations of compa
operating in many other industries. Consequently/ave frequently party to individual personal igjubad fuel, products liability and other le
actions in the ordinary course of our business.|&8We believe these actions are generally routineature, incidental to the operation of
business and immaterial in scope, if our assesseany action or actions should prove inaccurate financial condition and results
operations could be adversely affected.

Additionally, we are occasionally exposed to industide or classaction claims arising from the products we carhg equipment «
processes we use or employ or indusipgcific business practices. In recent years skrgtedlers have also experienced data breachealingsin
exposure of sensitive customer data, including gaytneard information. Any such breach of our systear any failure to secure our syst
against such a breach, could expose us to custiigation, as well as sanctions from the paymertidndustry. Retailers have also increasi
become targets of certain types of patent litigatiy “non-practicing entitiesivho acquire intellectual property rights solely faurposes ¢
instituting mass litigation.

While industryspecific or class action litigation of this typeléss frequent in occurrence than individual coresuataims, the cost
defense and ultimate disposition may be materiabdo financial condition, results of operation acash available for distribution to ¢
unitholders.

We rely on our suppliers to provide trade creditrtes to adequately fund our ongoing operations.

Our business is impacted by the availability ofi&raredit to fund fuel purchases. An actual or @ged downgrade in our liquidity
operations (including any credit rating downgrageabrating agency) could cause our suppliers t& seedit support in the form of additio
collateral, limit the extension of trade credit,@iherwise materially modify their payment termsiyAmaterial changes in our payments te
including early payment discounts, or availabibfytrade credit provided by our principal suppliecalld impact our liquidity, results of operati
and cash available for distribution to our unitreskl

Because we depend on our senior management's egpeg and knowledge of our industry, we could be erdely affected were we to lose |
members of our senior management team.

We are dependent on the expertise and continued<fif our general partner's senior management.téfafor any reason, our sen
executives do not continue to be active in our rgameent, our business, financial condition or rasaftoperations could be adversely affec
We do not maintain key man life insurance for amisr executives or other key employees.

Terrorist attacks and threatened or actual war magiversely affect our business.

Our business is affected by general economic conditand fluctuations in consumer confidence arehdmg, which can decline a
result of numerous factors outside of our conffelrrorist attacks or threats, whether within thetebh States or abroad, rumors or threats of
actual conflicts involving the United States or alties, or military or trade disruptions impactingr suppliers or our customers may adve
impact our operations. Specifically, strategic ¢éasgsuch as energy related assets (which coulddedlefineries that produce the motor fue
purchase or ports in which crude oil is deliverady be at greater risk of future terrorist attattlan other targets in the United States. T
occurrences could have an adverse impact on emeiggs, including prices for motor fuels, and awveade impact on our operations. Any 1
combination of these occurrences could
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have a material adverse effect on our businesmdial condition, results of operations and castilabe for distribution to our unitholders.

We rely on our information technology systems tomage numerous aspects of our business, and a disampof these systems or an act of
cyber-terrorism could adversely affect our business

We depend on our information technology (IT) systdm manage numerous aspects of our business dtmmsaand provide analytic
information to management. Our IT systems are aerg&l component of our business and growth sfiedeand a serious disruption to ou
systems could significantly limit our ability to mage and operate our business efficiently. Theses are vulnerable to, among other th
damage and interruption from power loss or natdisdsters, computer system and network failures, ¢ telecommunications services, phy:
and electronic loss of data, cyber-security breaobre cyberterrorism, and computer viruses. Any disruption ldocause our business
competitive position to suffer and cause our ofregatsults to be reduced.

Our future debt levels may impair our financial calition.

We had $870.5 million of debt outstanding as of &eber 31, 2014 . We have the ability to incur add#l debt under our revolving
credit facility. The level of our future indebtedisecould have important consequences to us, imgudi

» making it more difficult for us to satisfy our optitions with respect to our credit agreement gamgraur revolving credit facility

« limiting our ability to borrow additional amownto fund working capital, capital expendituresjuasitions, debt service
requirements, the execution of our growth stratgy other activities;

* requiring us to dedicate a substantial portibaur cash flow from operations to pay interesoon debt, which would reduce our
cash flow available to fund working capital, cap@apenditures, acquisitions, execution of our grostrategy and other activities;

» making us more vulnerable to adverse changgerieral economic conditions, our industry and gowvent regulations and in our
business by limiting our flexibility in planning foand making it more difficult for us to react gkily to, changing conditions; and

 placing us at a competitive disadvantage compaittdomr competitors that have less d

In addition, we may not be able to generate sefficcash flow from our operations to repay our mddéness when it becomes due ar
meet other cash needs. Our ability to service ebt dill depend upon, among other things, our fifimancial and operating performance, wl
will be affected by prevailing economic conditicausd financial, business, regulatory and other facttome of which are beyond our contro
addition, our ability to service our debt will degeon market interest rates, since we anticipatettte interest rates applicable to our borrow
will fluctuate. If we are not able to pay our debtsthey become due, we will be required to puosweor more alternative strategies, suc
selling assets, refinancing or restructuring odebtedness or selling additional debt or equitystes. We may not be able to refinance our
or sell additional debt or equity securities or assets on favorable terms, if at all, and if westraell our assets, it may negatively affect
ability to generate revenues.

Increases in interest rates could reduce the amoaohtash we have available for distributions as e the relative value of those distributiol
to yield-oriented investors, which could cause alilge in the market value of our common units.

Approximately $723.6 million of our outstanding élitedness as of December 31, 20&4rs interest at variable interest rates. Sl
those rates rise, the amount of cash we would wtkerhave available for distribution would ordimalie expected to decline, which could img
our ability to maintain or grow our quarterly dibtrtions. Additionally, an increase in interesteatn lower risk investment alternativesseh a
United States treasury securitie®uld cause investors to demand a relatively higlistribution yield on our common units, which, essg we al
able to raise our distribution, would imply a lowexding price of our common units. Consequentiing interest rates could cause a signifi
decline in the market value of our common units.
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Our credit facility has substantial restrictions ahfinancial covenants that may restrict our busirseand financing activities and our ability to
pay distributions to our unitholders

We are dependent upon the earnings and cash floerafed by our operations in order to meet our gdebtice obligations and to all
us to make cash distributions to our unitholderse Dperating and financial restrictions and covenam our credit facility and any futt
financing agreements may restrict our ability twafice future operations or capital needs, to engageexpand our business activities or to
distributions to our unitholders. For example, oradit facility restricts our ability to, among eththings:

* Incur certain additional indebtedne

* Incur, permit, or assume certain liens to exisbonproperties or asse

» Make certain investments or enter into certairrieste material contracts; a
» Merge or dispose of all or substantially all of asset:

In addition, our credit agreement contains covenaajuiring us to maintain certain financial ratiSge Part II, Item 7. "Manageme
Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition &websults of Operations - Liquidity and Capital Reses" for additional information.

Our future ability to comply with these restrict®and covenants is uncertain and will be affectedhle levels of cash flow from c
operations and other events or circumstances begondontrol. If market or other economic condisatteteriorate, our ability to comply w
these covenants may be impaired. If we violate @nayisions of our new credit facility that are retred or waived within the appropriate ti
period provided in the credit facility, a signifrdaportion of our indebtedness may become immegiatee and payable, our ability to mi
distributions to our unitholders will be inhibit@ahd our lenders' commitment to make further loansstmay terminate. We might not have, ¢
able to obtain, sufficient funds to make these lecated payments.

We depend on cash flow generated by our subsidarie

We are a holding company with no material assdterothan the equity interests in our subsidiati®e. have eight subsidiaries t
conduct all of our operations and own all of ouseds. These subsidiaries are distinct legal estéied, under certain circumstances, lega
contractual restrictions may limit our ability tbtain cash from our subsidiaries and our subsiBamay not be able to, or be permitted to, r
distributions to us. In the event that we do nakree distributions from our subsidiaries, we mayumable to meet our financial obligation:
make distributions to our unitholders.

The impact of derivatives legislation by the Unit8tiates Congress could have an adverse effect arability to use derivative instruments to
reduce the effect of changes in commodity priceslamterest rates and other risks associated withr business.

The United States Congress adopted comprehensiaacial reform legislation that establishes fedesadrsight and regulation of t
over-the-counter derivatives market and entitieshsas us, that participate in that market. Thesletipn, known as the Dodgrank Wall Stree
Reform and Consumer Protection Act (the “Dodd-FrAok) was signed into law on July 21, 2010 and requinesGommodities Futures Trad
Commission (the “CFTC")the SEC and other regulators to promulgate rulesragulations implementing the new legislation. TETC ha
issued final regulations to set position limits faertain futures and option contracts in the majoergy markets and for swaps that are
economic equivalent. Certain bona fide hedgingsaations or positions would be exempt from thessitipo limits. The financial refor
legislation may also require compliance with mangiguirements and with certain clearing and trexkecution requirements in connection \
certain derivative activities, although the apgiima of those provisions is uncertain at this tifibe financial reform legislation may also req
the counterparties to our derivative instrumentspio off some of their derivatives activities taeparate entity, which may not be as creditwc
as the current counterparty.

The final rules will be phased in over time accoglio a specified schedule which is dependent effitialization of certain other rules
be promulgated jointly by the CFTC and the SEC. DheldFrank Act and any new regulations could signifibaimcrease the cost of so
derivative contracts (including through requirensettt post collateral which could adversely affegt available liquidity), materially alter t
terms of some derivative contracts, reduce thelahilify of some derivatives to protect againsksisve encounter, reduce our ability to mone
or restructure our existing derivative contracts] potentially
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increase our exposure to less creditworthy couatégs. Any of these consequences could have arialagglverse effect on our financ
condition, results of operations and cash avail&drieistribution to our unitholders.

Risks Related To Our Structure

ETP owns and controls our general partner, which iaole responsibility for conducting our businessdamanaging our operations. Ot
general partner and its affiliates, including ETRave conflicts of interest with us and limited fidiary duties and they may favor their owv
interests to the detriment of us and our unitholder

ETP owns and controls our general partner and appail of the officers and directors of our gehgrartner. Although our gene
partner has a fiduciary duty to manage us in a miabeneficial to us and our unitholders, the exeeudfficers and directors of our general par
have a fiduciary duty to manage our general paitharmanner beneficial to ETP. Therefore, cordliot interest may arise between ETP an
affiliates, including our general partner, on thne dand, and us and our unitholders, on the ottwed.Hn resolving these conflicts of interest,
general partner may favor its own interests andrttegests of its affiliates over the interest®of common unitholders. These conflicts include
following situations, among others:

* Neither our partnership agreement nor any othezeagent requires ETP or Susser to pursue a bustrassgy that favors us. T
affiliates of our general partner have fiduciarytielsi to make decisions in their own best interasis in the best interest of tr
owners, which may be contrary to our interestaaddition, our general partner is allowed to take eccount the interests of par
other than us or our unitholders, such as ETP es&uin resolving conflicts of interest, which tilas effect of limiting its fiduciar
duty to our unitholders.

» Certain officers and directors of our general partare officers or directors of affiliates of ouengral partner, and also de\v
significant time to the business of these entiied are compensated accordingly.

» Other than as provided in the Omnibus Agreemefitiaéés of our general partner, including ETP, act limited in their ability t
compete with us and may offer business opportunidiesell assets to parties other than us.

» Our partnership agreement provides that our g partner may, but is not required, in connectidgth its resolution of a conflict of
interest, to seek “special approval” of such resofuby appointing a conflicts committee of the gl partner’s board of directors
composed of one or more independent directorsnesider such conflicts of interest and to eithesglft take action or recommend
action to the board of directors, and any resotutibthe conflict of interest by the conflicts cotittee shall be conclusively deemed
to be approved by our unitholders.

» Except in limited circumstances, our general paraes the power and authority to conduct our bgsingthout unitholder approv

» Our general partner determines the amount and giroinasset purchases and sales, borrowings, repayofiendebtedness a
issuances of additional partnership securitiestaadevel of reserves, each of which can affectatim@unt of cash that is distribu
to our unitholders.

« Our general partner determines the amount and gimirany capital expenditure and whether a capitpkenditure is classified a
maintenance capital expenditure or an expansioitataxpenditure. These determinations can affeetamount of cash that
distributed to our unitholders which, in turn, affethe ability of the subordinated units to cobt@icommon units.

« Our general partner may cause us to borrow fundsder to permit the payment of cash distributi@en if the purpose or effect
the borrowing is to make a distribution on the sdbmated units, to make incentive distributiongmaccelerate the expiration of
subordination period.

 Our partnership agreement permits us to digeilp to $25 million as operating surplus, evehig generated from asset sales, non-
working capital borrowings or other sources thatuldootherwise constitute capital surplus. This casky be used to ful
distributions on our subordinated units or the imise distribution rights.

» Our general partner determines which costs incuryeitland its affiliates are reimbursable by
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» Our partnership agreement does not restrict overgépartner from causing us to pay it or its &ffds for any services rendered t
or entering into additional contractual arrangersavith its affiliates on our behalf. There is nmitation on the amounts our gen
partner can cause us to pay it or its affiliates.

» Our general partner has limited its liability redjag our contractual and other obligatic

« Our general partner may exercise its right to @atl purchase common units if it and its affiliad@s more than 80% of the comn
units.

» Our general partner controls the enforcement ofgabbns owed to us by it and its affiliates. Inddibn, our general partner w
decide whether to retain separate counsel or otbgrarform services for us.

» ETP may elect to cause us to issue common unitsricconnection with a resetting of the targettiilmition levels related to ET}
incentive distribution rights without the approwalthe conflicts committee of the board of direstaf our general partner or «
unitholders. This election may result in lower digitions to our common unitholders in certain aitons.

Our general partner has limited its liability regding our obligations.

Other than with respect to our new credit faciifieur general partner has limited its liabilityden contractual arrangements so tha
counterparties to such arrangements have reconlg@gainst our assets, and not against our gepartier or its assets. Our general partner
therefore cause us to incur indebtedness or othlegations that are nonrecourse to our generahparOur partnership agreement provides
any action taken by our general partner to lingitlidbility is not a breach of our general partnéiduciary duties, even if we could have obta
more favorable terms without the limitation on llah. In addition, we are obligated to reimburseindemnify our general partner to the ex
that it incurs obligations on our behalf. Any sueimbursement or indemnification payments wouldioedthe amount of cash otherwise avail
for distribution to our unitholders.

Our general partner may, in its sole discretion,@pve the issuance of partnership securities an@afy the terms of such partnership
securities.

Pursuant to our partnership agreement, our gepartier has the ability, in its sole discretion anthout the approval of our unitholde
to approve the issuance of securities by the Patipe at any time and to specify the terms and itimms$ of such securities. The securi
authorized to be issued may be issued in one oe Klasses or series, with such designations, erefes, rights, powers and duties (which me
senior to existing classes and series of partnesstdurities), as shall be determined by our géparéer, including:

» the right to share in Partnerstagsrofits and losse

« the right to share in the Partnerskigdistributions

» the rights upon dissolution and liquidation of Bertnershig

» whether, and the terms upon which, the Partnersiaipredeem the securiti

» whether the securities will be issued, evidencedadsiificates and assigned or transferred

« theright, if any, of the security to vote onttees relating to the Partnership, including mattetating to the relative rights, preferences
and privileges of such security.

Our partnership agreement requires that we distrtbuall of our available cash, which could limit ouahility to grow and make acquisitions.

Our partnership agreement requires that we digeibll of our available cash to our unitholders] are will rely primarily upon external
financing sources, including borrowings under awotving credit facility and the issuance of debd &quity securities, to fund our acquisitions
and expansion capital requirements. As a resuthe@xtent we are unable to finance growth extiytraur cash distribution policy will
significantly impair our ability to grow.

In addition, because we distribute all of our aafal cash, our growth may not be as fast as thatisihesses that reinvest their avalil
cash to expand ongoing operations. To the exterssige additional units in connection with any asitions or expansion capital expenditu
the payment of distributions on those additionatsumay increase the risk that we will be unablen&intain or increase our per unit distribu
level. There are no limitations in our partnersagreement or our credit facility on our abilityissue additional units, including units rank
senior to the common units. The incurrence of damkowings or
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other debt to finance our growth strategy will fesw increased interest expense, which, in turayrmpact the available cash that we ha\
distribute to our unitholders.

Our partnership agreement limits the liability anduties of our general partner and restricts the redies available to us and our common
unitholders for actions taken by our general partnthat might otherwise constitute breaches of fidacy duty.

Our partnership agreement limitslihkility and duties of our general partner, wralso restricting the remedies available to our com
unitholders for actions that, without these limdas, might constitute breaches of fiduciary dubelaware partnership law permits s
contractual reductions of fiduciary duty. By pursimg common units, common unitholders consent tbdaend by the partnership agreement,
pursuant to our partnership agreement, each hafleommon units consents to various actions andlictmof interest contemplated in ¢
partnership agreement that might otherwise constébreach of fiduciary or other duties under vel& law. Our partnership agreement con
provisions that reduce the standards to which enetpl partner would otherwise be held by statecfaty duty law. For example:

» Our partnership agreement permits our general @atthmake a number of decisions in its individtegbacity, as opposed to its cape
as general partner. This entitles our general patthconsider only the interests and factorsittaggsires, and it has no duty or obliga
to give any consideration to any interest of, atdes affecting, our common unitholders. Decisiomsde by our general partner in
individual capacity will be made by ETP, as the ewnf our general partner, and not by the boardimctors of our general partn
Examples of these decisions include:

Whether to exercise its limited call rig

« How to exercise its voting rights with respect ty anits it may owr

Whether to exercise its registration rights;

Whether or not to consent to any merger or conatitid or amendment to our partnership agreel

e Our partnership agreement provides that our gemear@iher will not have any liability to us or ounitholders for decisions made in
capacity as general partner so long as it actggad faith, meaning it believed that the decisimese not adverse to the interests of
partnership.

e Our partnership agreement provides that our gemendher and the officers and directors of our ganeartner will not be liable fi
monetary damages to us for any acts or omissiotessirthere has been a final and appealable judgment entered by a cou
competent jurisdiction determining that our geng@aitner or those persons acted in bad faith othéncase of a criminal matter, ac
with knowledge that such person's conduct was oami

» Our partnership agreement provides that our geparaher will not be in breach of its obligationsder the partnership agreement ¢
duties to us or our limited partners with respecany transaction involving an affiliate if thersaction with an affiliate or the resolut
of a conflict of interest is:

« approved by the conflicts committee of the boardicdctors of our general partner, although ouregehpartner is not obligat
to seek such approval; or

« approved by the vote of a majority of the outstagdiommon units, excluding any common units owngdur general partn
and its affiliates; or

« the board of directors of our general partner astagbod faith in taking any action or failing toti

If an affiliate transaction or the resolution of@nflict of interest is not approved by our commanitholders or the conflicts commiti
then it will be presumed that, in making its demisitaking any action or failing to act, the boafddirectors acted in good faith, and in
proceeding brought by or on behalf of any limitexttper or the partnership, the person bringingrosgcuting such proceeding will have
burden of overcoming such presumption.

Cost reimbursements due to our general partner atsdaffiliates for services provided to us or onmoehalf will reduce cash available for
distribution to our unitholders. The amount and timg of such reimbursements will be determined byr @eneral partner.

Prior to making any distribution dretcommon units, we will reimburse our generalngaraand its affiliates for all expenses they i
and payments they make on our behalf pursuantt®thnibus Agreement and our partnership agreerNeither our partnership agreement
our Omnibus Agreement will limit the amount of erpes for which our general partner and its afésatmay be reimbursed. Our Omni
Agreement and partnership agreement provide thrageneral partner will
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determine in good faith the expenses that are alecto us. The reimbursement of expenses and payohidees to our general partner ant
affiliates will reduce the amount of cash availaiol@ay cash distributions to our unitholders.

Iltem 1B. Unresolved Staff Comments
None.
Item 2. Properties

The following table provides summary informationonfr owned and leased real property as of DeceBthe2014 , inclusive of executed
renewal options:

Leased Locations by Expirations

Owned 0-5 Years 6-10 Years 11-15 Years 16 + Years Total
Wholesale dealer and
consignment sites 141 24 8 19 59 251
Susser Stripe®
locations 66 — — — — 66
Company-operated
convenience stores 67 23 13 8 44 155
Total 274 47 21 27 103 472

Item 3. Legal Proceedings

Although we may, from time to time, be involveditigation and claims arising out of our operationshe normal course of business,
do not believe that we are a party to any litigatioat will have a material adverse impact on arfcial condition or results of operations.
However, prior to our acquisition of Aloha, the téu States Department of Justice and the EnvirotahBrotection Agency (the “EPA/DOJ")
notified Aloha on May 19, 2014 that improvementdm#o the loading rack at Aloha’s Hilo East ternhit@cated in Hilo, Hawaii (the “Hilo East
Terminal”), in 2006 and 2008 triggered the New SeuPerformance Standards of the CAA and that vapission controls therefore should have
been installed on the loading rack in 2006 andd®82 The EPA/DOJ also notified Aloha that the selemy containment area at the Hilo East
Terminal did not have a sufficiently imperviousdimand that Aloha would face a penalty for thegdbbnoncompliance. Aloha has disputed the
alleged CAA non-compliance.

The EPA/DOJ has advised Aloha that the penaltyHeralleged CAA noncompliance will be $651,000 (tBAA Penalty”) and that th
penalty for the alleged impervious liner non-coraptie at the Hilo East Terminal will be $249,00@ (tHlilo Penalty”and together with the CA
Penalty, the “Penalties”). Aloha is currently pumgusettlement discussions with the EPA/DOJ ondlreatters.

We believe we have rights of indemnification that allow us to recover any costs we are ultimatedguired to pay in connection with
the Penalties, including rights under the purclzagbsale agreement with Henger BV Inc. (“Hengéat)our acquisition of Aloha, which provide
for a specific indemnity and the funding of an esceccount to cover these potential liabilities.

Item 4. Mine Safety Disclosures

Not applicable.
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Part Il

Item 5. Market for Our Common Equity, Related Unitholder Matters and Issuer Purchases of Equity Secuies
Our Partnership Interest

As of February 20, 2015 , we had outstanding 241080 common units, 10,939,436 subordinated unitspraeconomic general partr
interest and incentive distribution rights, or IDRs of February 20, 2015 , Energy Transfer PastneiP. (“ETP”)directly and indirectly throug
its 100% ownership in Susser, owned approximatél9% of our outstanding common units and 106f%ur subordinated units, which toget
constitute a 42.8% limited partner ownership irgere us. Our general partner, SGP, is 100% owiyeHT# and currently owns a h@tonomir
general partner interest in us. ETP also ownsfallio IDRs. As discussed below, the IDRs reprefiemtight to receive increasing percentage
to a maximum of 50%, of the cash we distribute frgmerating surplus (as defined below) in excesd0o4375per unit per quarter. Our comrr
units, which represent limited partner interestssnare listed on the New York Stock Exchange (S&Y) under the symbol “SUN&and prior t
October 27, 2014, were traded under the symbol BBUS

Our common units have been traded on the NYSE stagember 20, 2012. The following table sets foith and low sales prices |

common unit and cash distributions declared pernsomunit for the periods indicated. The last reporsales price for our common units
February 20, 2015, was $51.51 .

Sales Price per Commol Quarterly Cash

Unit Distribution per
High Low Unit Distribution Date
Quarter Ended
December 31, 2014 $ 559¢ $ 422t $ 0.600( February 27, 2015
September 30, 2014 $ 59.9¢ $ 46.4¢ 9 0.5457 November 28, 2014
June 30, 2014 $ 479 % 35.06 $ 0.519° August 29, 2014
March 31, 2014 $ 37.4¢ % 3200 % 0.502: May 30, 2014
December 31, 2013 $ 3666 $ 30.0¢8 $ 0.485. February 28, 2014
September 30, 2013 $ 328 $ 286¢ $ 0.468" November 29, 2013
June 30, 2013 $ 32.7¢ % 26.8( $ 0.452¢ August 29, 2013
March 31, 2013 $ 3341 $ 254z % 0.437¢ May 30, 2013
December 31, 2012 $ 26.3¢ $ 23.0¢ $ 0.437¢ March 1, 2013
September 30, 2012 (1) $ 241C $ 225 % 0.028t November 29, 2012

(1) Sales price per common unit from Septembef@02, the commencement date of trading. Quarterd distribution per unit was prorated for thedays of
operation from September 25, 2012 to Septembe2(BIR.

Holders

At the close of business on February 20, 2015 haeksix holders of record of our common units. mhmber of record holders does not
include holders of units in "street names" or pessartnerships, associations, corporations @rathtities identified in security position listeg
maintained by depositories.

Distributions of Available Cash

Our partnership agreement requires that within®@@sdfter the end of each quarter, we distributeawailable cash to unitholders of
record on the applicable record date. The distidbuior the quarter ended September 30, 2012 wjastad for the number of days beginning v
the completion of the IPO.
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Definition of Available Cast

Available cash generally means, for any quartécash and cash equivalents on hand at the erie: @futarter;
less, the amount of cash reserves established by oargkpartner at the date of determination of atéél cash for the quarter to:

« provide for the proper conduct of our busin

« comply with applicable law, any of our debt instemts or other agreements or any other obligatit

« provide funds for distributions to our unithotddor any one or more of the next four quarters\juled that our general partner may not
establish cash reserves for distributions unledstérmines that the establishment of those resevilenot prevent us from distributing the
minimum quarterly distribution on all common urdisd any cumulative arrearages on such commonfonitse current quarter);

plus, if our general partner so determines on the diatketermination, all or any portion of the cashhamd immediately prior to the date of
determination of available cash for the quartesluding cash on hand resulting from working cadi@rowings made after the end of the quarter.

Minimum Quarterly Distributions

We intend to make a cash distribution to the haldérour common units and subordinated units onaatgrly basis to the extent we hi
sufficient cash from our operations after the dithinent of cash reserves and the payment of eost®€xpenses, including payments to our
general partner and its affiliates. However, themo guarantee that we will pay the minimum quértgistribution, as described below, on our
units in any quarter. Even if our cash distributpmticy is not modified or revoked, the amount @dtdbutions paid under our policy and the
decision to make any distribution is determinedby general partner, taking into considerationtémms of our partnership agreement.

Incentive Distribution Rights

The following table illustrates the percentage@lmns of available cash from operating surplus/ben the unitholders and the holder
of our IDRs based on the specified target distiiutevels. The amounts set forth under “margireatpntage interest in distributions” are the
percentage interests of our IDR holder and the comumitholders in any available cash from operasimgplus we distribute up to and including
the corresponding amount in the column “total qeryrtdistribution per unit target amount.” The pamtage interests shown for our unitholders
and our IDR holder for the minimum quarterly digtriion are also applicable to quarterly distribotaamounts that are less than the minimum
quarterly distribution. The percentage interestsa¢h below assume that there are no arrearagesmmon units. ETP has owned our IDRs
since September 2014; prior to that date the IDB®wwned by Susser.

Marginal percentage interest in
distributions

Total quarterly distribution per unit target

amount Unitholders IDR Holder
Minimum Quarterly Distribution $0.4375 10C% —
First Target Distribution Above $0.4375 up to $IB525 10C% —
Second Target Distribution Above $0.503125 up to $0.546875 85% 15%
Third Target Distribution Above $0.546875 up taGEH250 75% 25%
Thereafter Above $0.656250 50% 50%

Subordinated Units

Our general partner owns, directly or indirectly of our subordinated units. The principal diffece between our common units and
subordinated units is that in any quarter duriregghbordination period, holders of the subordinatgts will not be entitled to receive any
distribution until the common units have receiviee minimum quarterly distribution plus any arreas@ the payment of the minimum quarterly
distribution from prior quarters. To the extenttthe do not pay the minimum quarterly distribut@mmour common units, our common unitholc
will not be entitled to receive such payments i filture except during the subordination periodddinated units will not accrue arrearages. To
the extent that we have available cash in any éujuiarter during the subordination period in exaéske amount necessary to pay the minimum
quarterly distribution to holders of our commontanive will use this excess available cash to pgydistribution arrearages
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on the common units related to prior quarters teeéory cash distribution is made to holders of sdibated units. When the subordination period
ends, all of the subordinated units will convetbian equal number of common units.

The subordination period will end on the first mesis day after we have earned and paid at lea$1 (2% (the minimum quarterly
distribution on an annualized basis) on each outistg common and subordinated unit for each ofetlm@nsecutive, non-overlapping four-quarter
periods ending on or after September 30, 2015)d8Z%525 (150% of the annualized minimum quartdibgribution) on each outstanding comr
and subordinated unit and the related distribut@mmshe incentive distribution rights for the foguarter period immediately preceding that dat
each case provided there are no arrearages omwum@n units at that time.

The subordination period also will end upon theaeah of our general partner other than for caus® ifubordinated units or common
units held by the holder(s) of subordinated unittheir affiliates are voted in favor of that renahv

Equity Compensation Plal

For disclosures regarding securities authorizedsrance under equity compensation plans, sedlRéem 11. "Executive
Compensation".

Iltem 6. Selected Financial Data

Selected financial data set forth below is preskfae periods prior to our IPO on September 25,284d for the period from Septem
25, 2012 to August 31, 2014 prior to the ETP Mer@eidlectively the “Predecessor PeriodProm September 1, 2014 to December 31, -
financial data is presented for the Partnershigr dfte ETP Merger and under the application of Hpdiswn”accounting that required its assets
liabilities to be adjusted to fair value on AugB4t 2014 (“Successor PeriodThe following table sets forth selected financiatadas of and fi
the periods indicated and has been derived fronaodited historical consolidated financial stateteeRor the year ended December 31, 201:
have combined the Predecessor Period and the Socdesriod and presented the unaudited financial ola a combined basis for compare
purposes. This combination does not comply withegally accepted accounting principles or the rédesinaudited pro forma presentation, b
presented because we believe it provides the meahimgful comparison of our financial results.

The 2014 results also reflect the results of the@@Aacquisition beginning on September 1, 2014 jrthial date of common contre
since this acquisition is being accounted for asaasaction between entities under common condémod, the results of the Aloha acquisit
beginning on December 16, 2014.

Prior to our IPO, our wholesale assets were agfdite integrated operations of Susser. Accordiny gross profit in the period priot
our IPO includes only gross profit received froritdtparties for our wholesale distribution servicksaddition, the results of operations inclu
results from consignment contracts retained by &ugdlowing the IPO. For this reason, as well as dther factors described irtém 7
Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financ@hdition and Results of Operations{ir results of operations are not comparable befot
after the IPO. The selected financial data shoelddad in conjunction with the audited consoliddiedncial statements and related notes the
and Item 7. “Management’s Discussion and Analysiimancial Condition and Results of Operationsthis Annual Report on Form 10-K.
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Statement of Income Data:

Total revenues
Total gross profit

Operating expenses

Income from operations
Net income attributable to limited

partners

Net income per limited partner unit

(@)

Cash distribution per unit (2)

Cash Flow Data:

Net cash provided by (used in):
Operating activities
Investing activities

Financing activities

Balance Sheet Data (at period end):
Cash and cash equivalents

Property and equipment, net

Total assets
Total liabilities

Total equity

(1) Results include activity prior to our IPO orpBsmber 25, 2012 when our wholesale assets wegraied with Susser. Our results of operation§igoal
2012 are not comparable before and after Septe2H&012.
(2) Calculated based on operations since Septe2#h&012, the date of our IPO.

Item 7. Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financiald@hdition and Results of Operations

Predecessor Combined
Year ended December Year ended December Year ended December  Year ended December Year ended December
31, 2010 31, 2011 31,2012 (1) 31, 2013 31,2014
(in thousands, except per unit data)

2,729,470 $ 3,874,98! 432141, % 4,492,57" $ 5,382,01
36,09¢ 43,02: 51,50: 70,96¢ 175,92(
21,36: 26,06: 28,09( 30,02¢ 101,45¢
14,73¢ 16,96: 23,41 40,93¢ 74,46°

9,21¢ $ 10,59¢ 1757C % 37,027 $ 56,74
04z $ 1.6¢ $ 1.9¢
0.47 $ 1.84 $ 2.17
17,46¢ $ 14,66" 16,48¢ $ 50,68( $ 105,97!
(14,309 $ (29,159 (190,949 $ 6,35¢ (891,77)
1,14  $ (22) 180,97 $ (55,64() 844,79
Predecessor Successor
As of December 31,
2010 2011 2012 2013 2014
(in thousands)
4,74¢ 24C $ 6,752 $ 8,15( 67,15
35,247 39,04¢ 68,17 180,12 905,46!
202,58 231,31t 355,80( 390,08: 2,197,48.
97,37. 115,50: 277,46¢ 310,39: 1,060,74
105,21! 115,81: 78,33. 79,69: 1,136,73.

The following discussion and analysis of our finahcondition and results of operations shouldésedrin conjunction with our audited
consolidated financial statements and notes taedidonsolidated financial statements includedndisee in this report.

EBITDA, Adjusted EBITDA, and distributable cashwl@are non-GAAP financial measures of performanet tlave limitations and should
not be considered as a substitute for net incoeask see footnote (5) under “Key Operating Méttetow for a discussion of our use of
EBITDA, Adjusted EBITDA, and distributable cashwadn this “Management's Discussion and Analysi§iofincial Condition and Results of
Operations” and a reconciliation to net incometfa periods presented.
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Forward-Looking Statements

This report, including without limitation, our disssion and analysis of our financial condition eesllts of operations, and any information
incorporated by reference, contains statementsabdtelieve are “forward-looking statements”. Thisseard-looking statements generally can
be identified by use of phrases such as “belieigdn,” “expect,” “anticipate,” “intend,” “forecastor other similar words or phrases. Descripti
of our objectives, goals, targets, plans, strategiests, anticipated capital expenditures, expgemist savings and benefits are also forward-
looking statements. These forward-looking statesiarg based on our current plans and expectatiwhmaolve a number of risks and
uncertainties that could cause actual results gadte to vary materially from the results and esemtticipated or implied by such forwadmbking
statements, including:

« ETP's and Susser's business strategy and operatidriSTP's and Susser's conflicts of interest us
¢ Changes in the price of and demand for the morthat we distribut

¢ Our dependence on limited principal supplierd aar dependence on Susser and certain customesigfaficant portions of our
revenue;

«  Competition in the wholesale motor fuel distribatiodustry and convenience store indu:
« Changing customer preferences for alternate fugices or improvement in fuel efficien

e Our ability to make, complete and integrate asitjans from affiliates or thirgsarties

« Environmental, tax and other federal, state andlllzavs and regulatior

« The fact that we are not fully insured againstialts incident to our busine

« Dangers inherent in the storage and transportafiomotor fuel

e Our reliance on senior management, supplier treelditand information technology; &

e Our partnership structure, which may create leziafof interest between us and our general pagnd its affiliates, and limits the
fiduciary duties of our general partner and itsliates.

For a discussion of these and other risks and tainges, please refer to “Iltem 1A. Risk Factor@ik list of factors that could affect future
performance and the accuracy of forward-lookingestents is illustrative but by no means exhaustheeordingly, all forward-looking
statements should be evaluated with the understgraditheir inherent uncertainty. The forward-laukistatements included in this report are
based on, and include, our estimates as of timg fif this report. We anticipate that subsequeants/and market developments will cause our
estimates to change. However, while we may elegpttate these forward-looking statements at sorire pothe future, we specifically disclaim
any obligation to do so, even if new informatiorcmes available in the future.

Overview

We are a growth-oriented Delaware limited partngréirmed by Susser and formerly known as Susseoleam Partners LP, or "SUSP",
to engage in the primarily fee-based wholesaleildigion of motor fuels to Susser and third parti®e closed the initial public offering of our
common units on September 25, 2012 and our commits hegan trading on the NYSE under the symbolSBU We entered into several
agreements with Susser in connection with our 1B Part Ill. "Iltem 13. Certain Relationships, Ralalransactions and Director Independel
for information regarding related party transaction

On August 29, 2014, Susser completed its mergér EMtP and certain other related entities, undecwBTP acquired the then outstanding
common shares of Susser. By acquiring Susser, EbRbens the general partner interest and IDReérPartnership. ETP currently owns
15,002,284 common and subordinated units (repriespf?.8% of the Partnership's outstanding un@s) October 27, 2014, we changed our
name from Susser Petroleum Partners LP to Sunodgtidkér symbol: SUN). Additional information isgrided in Note 4 of our Notes to
Consolidated Financial Statements.

As used in this Management’s Discussion and AnslgEFinancial Condition and Results of Operatidhs,terms "Partnership”, "SUN",
"we", "us" or "our", refer to Sunoco LP and its sidlaries.
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As a result of the ETP Merger, we applied “push dbaccounting that required our assets and liabilttilse adjusted to fair value as of
date of the transaction. The periods prior to th® Berger are identified as “Predecessamnt the period after the ETP Merger is identifie
“Successor”.

In the fourth quarter of 2014, we completed striategquisitions of businesses that operate compitane motor fuel distribution ai
convenience retail stores (see Note 4 to our Catateld Financial Statements). As of December 314200ur retail segment operat&8=t
convenience stores and fuel outlets in Virginiary¥end, Tennessee, Georgia, and Hawalii offeringchreandise, food service, motor fuel and ¢
services. We anticipate we will continue to expamdl upgrade our operating portfolio through futdrep-downs from ETP. We expect (
affiliates to open a total of 35 to 40 new retadres during fiscal year 2015. In our wholesalensegt, we added 2&hird party sites, includir
275 related to acquisitions, and discontinued fb8 a total of 793 as of the end of December 31,420o0f which 206 and 58re attributable to tl
acquisitions of MACS and Aloha, respectively.

Susser operated 656 retail convenience stores itagepprietary Stripes® or Sac-N-P&¢ convenience store brands at year-end, primarily
in growing Texas markets. Stripes® is a leadingpahdent chain of convenience stores in Texas lmsstbre count and retail motor fuel
volumes sold. Our business is integral to the sscoé Susser's retail operations, and Susser mesisabstantially all of its motor fuel from us.
For the year ended December 31, 2014 , we diséblt2 billion gallons of motor fuel to Stripes®e®nience stores and Susser's consignment
locations, and 749.9 million gallons of motor fteelother third party customers. We purchase matek rimarily from independent refiners and
major oil companies and distribute it throughouxd® Louisiana, New Mexico, Oklahoma, Kansas, Marg| Tennessee, Georgia, Virginia, and
Hawaii to:

* 656 Stripes®&onvenience stores, pursuant to the Susser DistibContraci

« approximately 8®ther independently operated consignment locatidrese Susser sells motor fuel to retail custonsdss, pursuant t
the Susser Distribution Contract;

» approximately 55 independently operated consgmrtocations where we sell motor fuel under camsignt arrangements to retail
customers;

» approximately 738 convenience stores and ritalloutlets operated by independent operators;hwvee refer to as "dealers,” pursuant
to long-term distribution agreements; and

* approximately 2,000 other commercial customearduding unbranded convenience stores, otherdis#libutors, school districts and
municipalities and other industrial customers.

In addition, we sold 83.4 million retail gallongdligh MACS and Aloha in the period September 1420tough December 31, 2014 .
We believe we are one of the largest independetamiel distributors by gallons in Texas, and amtme largest distributors of Valero and
Chevron branded motor fuel in the United StateghWie acquisition of MACS, we believe we are nawe of the largest distributors of Exxon
branded motor fuel in the United States. In additmdistributing motor fuel, we also distributdet petroleum products such as propane and lub
oil, and we receive rental income from real estia# we lease or sublease.

Market and Industry Trends and Outlook

We expect that certain trends and economic or inghwgde factors will continue to affect our busese both in the short-term and lotegm.
We have based our expectations described belowamgptions made by us and on the basis of infoomatirrently available to us. To the exi
our underlying assumptions about or interpretatibavailable information prove to be incorrect, astual results may vary materially from our
expected results. Read “Item 1A. Risk Factorsddditional information about the risks associatéth ywurchasing our common units.

Regional Trends

A significant portion of our fuel distribution bumgss is conducted in Texas. The economy in Texasdrainued to fare better than many
other parts of the nation, partly as a result latively stable housing market and strong poprriagrowth and job creation. In 2014, Texas led
the nation in job growth for the fifth straight yesccording to the U.S. Bureau of Labor Statistes] also ranked first in the United States for
population growth. The strong oil and gas develapnrethe Permian Basin and Eagle Ford Shale hamtributed to our growth in fuel sales. ~
recent declines in crude oil pricing may resulaislowdown of economic activity in certain of owexs markets.
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The MACS and Aloha acquisitions in the fourth gaadf 2014 provide both geographic and businessrsification. MACS added retail
convenience stores and contracted dealer fuelldisitn locations in Virginia, Maryland, Tennesse®l Georgia. These states exhibited above
average population growth during 2014, and marhefinarkets in which our stores are located comgstrictions on new development, creating
barriers to new entrants. Aloha is a leading fustrithutor and convenience store operator acrassiftands of Hawaii, which has also
experienced stronger population and income grokdh the average for the United States.

Industry Consolidation

We believe that there is considerable opportumitycbnsolidation in our industry as major integdadd companies continue to divest sites
they own or lease, and independent dealers continexperience pressure from increased compefition non-traditional fuel suppliers, such as
Walmart and grocery store chains. We intend totapé on the relationship between our wholesatt@mplementary retail business by
pursuing mixed asset acquisition opportunities lidlependently or joint with Susser, Sunoco, Imd=®P, which may not be attractive to a pure
wholesaler or pure retailer. We believe these dppdres will provide for growth in our fuel voluregmerchandise sales and rental income.

Seasonality

Our business exhibits some seasonality due towsiomers' increasing demand for motor fuel duriveglate spring and summer months as
compared to the fall and winter months. Travelrgation and construction activities typically ingse in these months in the geographic areas in
which we operate, increasing the demand for matel@nd merchandise sales. Therefore, our revearedgpically somewhat higher in the
second and third quarters of our fiscal years. Aesalt, our results from operations may vary fipeniod to period. The addition of the MACS
Aloha operations helps mitigate the seasonal inspasttheir business has historically not exhibitedsame degree of seasonality as our Texas-
centric business.

Key Measures Used to Evaluate and Assess Our Busise

Our management uses a variety of financial measemtsno analyze our performance. Key measures evéousvaluate and assess our
business include the following:

* Wholesale and retail motor fuel gallons sdlthe of the primary drivers of our business is titaltvolume of motor fuel sold and
through each of our wholesale and retail chan@ls.long-term fuel distribution contracts with amnolesale customers, including
Susser, generally provide that we will distributetar fuel at a fixed, volume-based profit margiraban agreed upon level of price
support. As a result, our wholesale gross profitiisctly tied to the volume of motor fuel that distribute.

e Gross profit per gallonGross profit per gallon reflects the gross profitmotor fuel (excluding non-cash fair value adjustis)
divided by the number of gallons sold, which weitally express in terms of cents per gallon. Pidoour IPO, sales of motor fuel to
Stripes® convenience stores had been at cost anefdine, our earned profits included only galloolsl $o third parties. Pursuant to
the Susser Distribution Contract, we receive affigeofit margin per gallon on all of the motor fued distribute to Stripes®
convenience stores and to Susser's consignmetiblogaTl he financial impact of this profit margihit had been generated on our
historical volumes sold, is reflected in our dissiaa of pro forma results of operations later iis $ection. Our gross profit per gal
varies among our third-party customers and is ingghby the availability of certain discounts andates from our suppliers.
Pursuant to the Susser Transportation ContracseBasranges for motor fuel to be delivered fromsuppliers to some of our
customers, with the costs being passed entiretygaie our customers. As a result, our cost to mgeluel and any transportation
costs that we incur are generally passed throughitaustomers, and therefore do not have a suiatampact on our gross profit
per gallon related to volatility in transportatioasts. Our gross profit per gallon in the retagraent is also largely impacted by
volatile pricing and intense competition from chtores, supermarkets and other retail formats.

* Merchandise gross profit and margMerchandise gross profit represents gross sales pfimerchandise sold less the direct cost of
goods and shortages. Included in shortages armbezhandise and theft. Merchandise margin represeetchandise gross profit as
a percentage of merchandise sales. We do not imdtieér gross profit from ancillary products and/ees in the calculation of
merchandise gross profit.

« Adjusted EBITDA and distributable cash floAdjusted EBITDA is a term used throughout this doeat, which we define
earnings before net interest expense, income taates,depreciation, amortization and accretion, uathér adjusted to exclu
allocated noreash compensation expense and certain other appmtpenses that are reflected in our net incoratwie do nc
believe are indicative of our ongoing core operajcuch as the gain or loss on disposal of aasdtsioneash impairment charg
Effective September 1, 2014, as a result of the ETP
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Merger and in an effort to conform the method byickhwe measure our business to that of ETP's dpasatwe now defir
Adjusted EBITDA to also include adjustments for ealized gains and losses on commodity derivativesiaventory fair valu
adjustments. We define distributable cash flow afjusted EBITDA less cash interest expense, curietdme tax expens
maintenance capital expenditures and other nonadjsistments.

Adjusted EBITDA and distributable cash flow are fioancial measures calculated in accordance wAIAR For a reconciliation ¢
Adjusted EBITDA and distributable cash flow to theiost directly comparable financial measure calmd and presented in
accordance with GAAP, read “Key Operating Metribglow.

Beginning in late 2014, concurrent with the acdigisiof MACS, we began operating our business io primary operating
segments, wholesale and retail, both of whichrekided as reportable segments. See Note 20 aetttmnpanying Notes to
Consolidated Financial Statements for additiongireent reporting information.

Factors Affecting Comparability of our Financial Results

The Partnership's results of operations may nabbgparable to results of operations prior to o@ fBr the reasons described below:

Revenues and Gross Profitdrior to our IPO, our wholesale distribution asseere part of the integrated operations of Syseer we
distributed motor fuel and other petroleum prodactSusser without any profit margin. Accordinglye revenues and gross profits in our
historical consolidated financial statements ptooour IPO do not include profit margin on fueldgtd Susser. In addition, our results of opera
included results from certain consignment contrws were retained by Susser following the conimubedf the IPO, and were previously reflec
as third-party, but are now reflected as affilfmethe Partnership in our results of operationsnfithe date of the IPO forward.

General and Administrative Expense®rior to our IPO, our general and administrativeesses included direct charges for the
management of our operations as well as certaiaresgs allocated from Susser for general corpoeatécss. These expenses were charged, or
allocated, to us based on the nature of the expefbe Partnership continues to incur chargeshformanagement of the operations contributed to
the Partnership as well as an allocation for gémenr@orate services as provided by ETP and iikadéfs, including Susser. We also incur
additional incremental general and administratiMgemses as a result of being a separate publatiett partnership.

Other Operating Expenses and Depreciation, Amortina and Accretion. Other operating expenses and depreciation, amtotizand
accretion in periods prior to the IPO include dirgltarges related to certain consignment operatishigh were not contributed to the Partnership
in connection with the IPO.

Income Tax ExpenseAs a limited partnership, our income tax expengmauily consists of the applicable Texas franchése Prior to our
IPO, we were part of a taxable corporation, andueee allocated a portion of the federal and stateme taxes. Subsequent to the acquisition of
MACS and Aloha, we are subject to state tax expandtaryland, Virginia, Georgia, Tennessee and Hawa

Key Operating Metrics

The following table sets forth, for the periodsigaded, information concerning key measures weaalyo gauge our operating performal
Results of operations for fiscal year 2012 inclueults of operations prior to our IPO and as saohnot comparable to results of operations
the IPO for reasons described above under "Faéfesting Comparability of our Financial Result¥he combined results for 2014 presented
below include the Predecessor and Successor pegtaded to the ETP Merger, and also reflect thrgpisition of MACS from September 1, 2014,
the date of common control. See Notes 2 and 3eatitompanying Notes to Consolidated Financiak8tants for additional description of these
transactions. The following information is intendecprovide investors with a reasonable basis $sessing our historical operations, but should
not serve as the only criteria for predicting auufe performance.
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Predecessor Combined

Year Ended
December 31, 2012 (1) December 31, 2013 December 31, 2014 (2)
(dollars and gallons in thousands, except motor Fpeicing and gross profit per gallon)

Revenues:

Retail motor fuel sales (3) $ — 3 — 3 228,89

Wholesale motor fuel sales to third parties (4) 1,738,09 1,502,78: 1,987,77!

Wholesale motor fuel sales to affiliates (4) 2,570,75 2,974,12; 3,074,23

Merchandise sales — — 52,27¢

Rental and other income 12,55¢ 15,67: 38,84(
Total revenues $ 4,321,41: % 4,49257 $ 5,382,01
Gross profit:

Retail motor fuel $ — & — 3 30,39:

Wholesale motor fuel to third parties (4) 33,29: 26,307 61,14¢

Wholesale motor fuel to affiliates (4) 7,781 31,59° 35,73

Merchandise — — 13,45¢

Other 10,42¢ 13,06( 35,19¢
Total gross profit $ 51,50: $ 70,96 $ 175,92t
Net income attributable to limited partners $ 17,57C $ 37,020 $ 56,74
Total Adjusted EBITDA (5) $ 31,69 $ 51,88 $ 122,31
Distributable cash flow (5) $ 10,457 $ 47,67¢ $ 92,48¢
Operating Data:
Total motor fuel gallons sold:

Retail — — 83,41¢

Wholesale third-party 560,19: 517,77" 749,92!

Wholesale affiliated 889, 75! 1,053,25! 1,178,61!
Motor fuel gross profit cents per gallon (4, 6):

Retail — — 39.%¢

Wholesale third-party 5.c¢ 5.1¢ 9.€¢

Wholesale affiliated 0.S¢ 3.C¢e 3.C¢
Volume-weighted average for all gallons 2.&¢ 3.7¢ 7.C¢
Retail merchandise margin — — 25.7%

(1) Results include activity prior to our IPO wheur wholesale assets were integrated with SussePartnership activity beginning September
25, 2012. See "Factors Affecting Comparability of &inancial Results" of our financial results forther information.

(2) Reflects combined results of the Predecessaog from January 1, 2014 through August 31, 2@b4, the Successor period from September
1, 2014 to December 31, 2014. See Note 4 in thenaganying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statesent

(3) Retail motor fuel sales include sales of motor Atetompany operated convenience stores beginmptefber 1, 201

(4) For the periods presented prior to SeptembeR@12, affiliated sales only include sales tgp®8® convenience stores, for which we
historically received no margin, and third-partytorduel sales and gross profit cents per gall@tuies the motor fuel sold directly to
independently operated consignment locations, dsasesales to third-party dealers and other comialecustomers. Following our IPO on
September 25, 2012, we sell fuel to Susser for Baripes® convenience stores and Susser's indepiyndperated consignment locations at
a fixed profit margin of approximately three cep&s gallon. As a result, volumes sold to consignnmoations are included in the calculat
of third-party motor fuel revenue and gross priofithe operating data prior to September 25, 2@m8,in the calculation of affiliated motor
fuel gross profit cents per gallon beginning Seten?5, 2012.

(5) We define EBITDA as net income before mégtiiest expense, income tax expense and depregiatiwrtization and accretion
expense. Adjusted EBITDA further adjusts EBITDArédflect certain other non-recurring and non-casimg. Effective September 1,
2014, as a result of the ETP Merger and in an teffoconform the method by which we measure
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our business to that of ETP's operations, we ndimeléddjusted EBITDA to also include adjustments fiarealized gains and losses on
commodity derivatives and inventory fair value atijoents. We define distributable cash flow as Adidi€BITDA less cash interest
expense, current income tax expense, maintenapielexpenditures, and other non-cash adjustmBigsributable cash flow for the
year ended December 31, 2012 does not includesexfubperations prior to September 25, 2012.

We believe EBITDA, Adjusted EBITDA and distributabtash flow are useful to investors in evaluatingaperating

performance because:

Adjusted EBITDA is used as a performance measgnder our revolving credit facility;

securities analysts and other interested partiesush metrics as measures of financial performanikty to make distributior
to our unitholders and debt service capabilities;

they are used by our management for internalrptey purposes, including aspects of our consaitlaperating budget, and
capital expenditures; and

distributable cash flow provides useful inforinatto investors as it is a widely accepted finahitidicator used by investors to
compare partnership performance, as it providessitors an enhanced perspective of the operatifigrpemce of our assets a
the cash our business is generating.

EBITDA, Adjusted EBITDA and distributable cash flawe not recognized terms under GAAP and do ngigutito be alternatives to net
income (loss) as measures of operating performant®cash flows from operating activities as a soe@ of liquidity. EBITDA, Adjusted
EBITDA and distributable cash flow have limitatioas analytical tools, and one should not constaemtin isolation or as substitutes for
analysis of our results as reported under GAAP.&ofthese limitations include:

they do not reflect our total cash expendituresuture requirements for capital expenditures art@ctual commitment
they do not reflect changes in, or cash requirgsfr, working capital;

they do not reflect interest expense, or thé cagquirements necessary to service interest ncipal payments on our revolving
credit facility or term loan;

although depreciation and amortization are nasha@harges, the assets being depreciated andzedanill often have to be
replaced in the future, and EBITDA and Adjusted BBA do not reflect cash requirements for such regfaents; and

because not all companies use identical caloalgtour presentation of EBITDA, Adjusted EBITDAddistributable cash flow
may not be comparable to similarly titled measafesther companies.

(6)Concurrent with the ETP Merger, we adopted the Lig@ntory method for fuel inventory, and beganleding the non-cash inventory fair
value adjustment from our calculation of fuel cguds gallon gross profit. This adjustment was a.&h3illion write-down for 2014.
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The following table presents a reconciliation of ineome to EBITDA, Adjusted EBITDA and distributatcash flow:

Predecessor Combined
Year Ended
January 1, 2012 September 25, 2012
through September through December December 31, December 31,
24,2012 31, 2012 2013 2014
(in thousands)

Net income $ 8,42( $ 9,15( $ 37,027 $ 57,78t
Depreciation, amortization and accretion 5,73¢ 1,29¢ 8,681 26,95t
Interest expense, net 26¢ 54C 3,471 14,32¢
Income tax expense 4,80¢ 224 44C 2,352

EBITDA 19,23 11,21( 49,62t 101,42:
Non-cash compensation expense 81C 101 1,93t 6,08(
Loss on disposal of assets and impairment
charge 22¢ 112 324 2,631
Unrealized gains on commodity derivatives — — — (1,437
Inventory fair value adjustments — — 13,61

Adjusted EBITDA $ 20,27: 11,42: 51,88 122,31
Cash interest expense 43¢ 3,09( 12,02¢
Income tax expense (current) 71 30z 3,27¢
Maintenance capital expenditures 45€ 814 5,19¢
MACS acquisition adjustment (2) — — 8,28:
Earnings attributable to noncontrolling interes — — 1,04:

Distributable cash flow $ 10,457 $ 47,67¢ $ 92,48t

(1) Results include activity prior to our IPO whewr wholesale assets were integrated with SussePartnership activity beginning September 25, 2GE2
"Factors Affecting Comparability of our Financiabgults" of our financial results for further infoation.

(2) Adjustment includes MACS' recasted resultsp#rations for the period September 1, 2014 thr&egtember 30, 2014 (the date of common control), as
further adjusted for depreciation, amortization andretion, interest expense, income tax expergeter non-cash items, in accordance with the
Adjusted EBITDA definition.

Year Ended December 31, 2014 (Combined basis) Coethto Year Ended December 31, 2013

The following discussion compares our 2014 regaltsur 2013 results, in which 2014 consists of itexaf operations of our Predecessor
period prior to the ETP Merger and results of opiena of our Successor period, reflecting "push albaccounting after the ETP Merger. The
acquisition of MACS was considered a transactidwben entities under common control, and as sheheasults of MACS are reflected as of
September 1, 2014, the initial date of common @bfidr accounting purposes.

RevenueTotal revenue for 2014 was $5.4 billion , an inseaf $889.4 million , or 19.8% , from 2013, ofieth$534.0 million is
attributable to the acquisition of MACS and AloNdholesale motor fuel sales to third parties inceda®485.0 million , or 32.3%This increase |
primarily related to an increase of 232.2 milliohalesale gallons sold to third parties compare2Dtt3, partially offset by a decrease in the
selling price of wholesale motor fuel of 25.0 cemter gallon or 8.6% . Wholesale motor fuel saesffiliates increased $100.1 million or 3.4% .
This increase is primarily due to an increase &.42nillion wholesale gallons sold to affiliatesoared to 2013, partially offset by a decrease in
the wholesale selling price of motor fuel of 21ehts per gallon or 7.4% . Total retail fuel salese $228.9 million on 83.4 million gallons sold
by MACS and Aloha. Merchandise revenue was $52lBomiattributable to the MACS and Aloha acquisitioin the last quarter of 2014. Rental
revenue of $27.7 million increased $17.7 millioonfrlast year due to the purchase and subsequeebleek of 33 stores from Susser in 2014 and
rental income attributable to MACS. Other revemmeased $5.5 million to $11.1 million as compaed013.

Cost of Sales and Gross Profifotal gross profit for 2014 was $175.9 million ,ianrease of $105.0 million , or 147.9% , over 20G30ss
profit on wholesale motor fuel sales to third pestincreased $34.8 million or 132.4% . This incegasprimarily attributable to the increase in the
wholesale volume of gallons sold to third partesdiscussed above, as well as a
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4.6 cents per gallon increase in wholesale grasfitprhe increase in wholesale gross profit pdtogesold to third parties is due to the cost of
motor fuel sold decreasing by 29.0 cent s, paytiafiset by a 25.0 cent s per gallon decreasedmiholesale selling price of motor fuel. We sold
wholesale fuel to affiliates at a gross profit ppeoximately 3.0 cents per gallon, resulting in $3fillion and $31.6 million of wholesale gross
profit in 2014 and 2013, respectively. Total retadtor fuel gross profit was $30.4 million and daghe Aloha and MACS acquisitions in the
fourth quarter of 2014. We anticipate our totalsgrprofit per gallon to increase in 2015 due toféloe that we now operate retail convenience
stores, which typically have higher fuel gross nresgMerchandise gross profit was $13.5 millior26r7% of merchandise sales. Rental income
gross profit was $27.7 million and increased $1illlon as compared to 2013rimarily as a result of additional rental incofrem the purchas
and leaseback of additional stores to Susser id,2i4cussed above. Other income gross profit asee $4.5 million as compared to 2013
principally due to the MACS and Aloha acquisitions.

Total Operating Expenses:or 2014 , total operating expenses increased hyt$iillion , or 237.9% , from 2013The increase is primari
due to the following:

* transaction costs of approximately $6.5 millietated to the ETP Merger and the MACS and Alohaiisdipns;

« additional operating expenses of MACS and Alaloaifthe date of acquisition, as well as increadledation of salaries, bonus and
benefits related to annual compensation increasg¢fi@adcount additions during 2014 ;

» $6.1 million of non-cash unit-based compensatigpense, an increase of $4.1 million compared 1@ 2@ portion of which was
attributable to early vesting of grants concurmeith the ETP Merger;

* rent expense increasing $3.2 million as compr&d13 primarily due to additional leasehold prtips as a result of the MACS
acquisition; and

« depreciation, amortization and accretion expéos2014 of $27.0 million increasing $18.3 millipor 210.3% , from 2013 due to
depreciation and amortization on additional capiteéstments, including acquisitions in 2014, relyeconstructed assets being placed
into service and the stores purchased and leasédd&usser, in addition to the impact from "pdskwvn" accounting related to the ETP
Merger.

Income Tax Expensel-or 2014, income tax expense increased $1.9 millmn 2013. The effective tax rate for 2013 wa9d @mpared t
3.9% for 2014 primarily due to an increase in eagaifrom our subsidiary subject to state and fédiecame tax.

Year Ended December 31, 2013 Compared to Year Efdiecember 31, 2012

The following discussion compares 2013 resultsOtb22results, which includes activity preceding R® on September 25, 2012 when our
wholesale assets were integrated with Susser.@Ad 2results of operations prior to and followmg IPO are not comparable. See “Factors
Affecting Comparability of our Financial Results.”

RevenueTotal revenue for 2013 was $4.5 billion , an inseaf $171.2 million , or 4.0% , from 2012 . Mofoel sales to third parties
decreased $235.3 million , or 13.5% . This decreapéamarily related to 2012 consignment motor &ades of $270.3 million which, prior to the
IPO, were categorized as third-party sales buhaveincluded in affiliated sales. In addition, thiolesale selling price per gallon of motor fuel
decreased 6.5% , offset by gallons sold to thirtigmwhich increased 8.9%, on a comparable biskisor fuel sales to affiliates increased $403.4
million , or 15.7% , from 2012 . Of this increa$263.1 million related to 201&®nsignment motor fuel sales that were previousfiected in thirc
party sales for our Predecessor. The remainingaser consisted of an 8.1% increase in gallonstaalffiliates, on a comparable basis, partially
offset by a 2.3% decrease in the wholesale sdfiiicg of motor fuel. Rental revenue of $10.1 millincreased by $5.0 million from last year due
to the acquisition and subsequent leaseback ofi@fi@nal convenience store locations in 2013 fisusser.

Cost of Sales and Gross Profi&ross profit for 2013 was $71.0 million , an ineaf $19.5 million , or 37.8% , over 201@ross profit o
motor fuel sales to third parties decreased $7llmprimarily attributable to the shift of consiment sales from third party to affiliated sales, a
discussed above. The sales price of motor fueltedldird parties decreased by 20.0 cents pergahtbile the cost of fuel decreased 19.2 cents
per gallon, resulting in a 0.8 cents per gallorrease in gross profit cents per gallon. Prior tolB®, we sold motor fuel to affiliates at cost,
resulting in no gross profit on motor fuel salesffiliates for the period from January 1, 2012thgh September 24, 2012fter our IPO, we sol
fuel to affiliates at a gross profit of approximgta.0 cents per gallon, resulting in $7.8 milliand $31.6 million of gross profit in 2012 and 2013
respectively. Other gross profit of $13.1 millioxcieased by $2.6 million from 2012, primarily a®sult of additional rental income offset by
certain income streams not contributed to us atRe
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Total Operating Expenses:or 2013, operating expenses increased by $1.®bmilbr 6.9%, from 2012. The increase in operating expe
was primarily attributable to increased cost ofsak, bonus and benefits related to annual comatiendncreases and headcount additions during
2013, in addition to public company expenses iredigubsequent to our IPO. The increases were |padifset by a decrease in operating
expenses of $2.0 million due primarily to operatixpenses associated with activities not contribtdgeus in the IPO, as well as a decrease in ren
expense of $2.5 million due to leasehold propertiEsheing contributed to us. Depreciation, amation and accretion expense for 2013 of $8.7
million was up $1.7 million , or 23.6% , from 20@8e to depreciation and amortization on additi@agital investments, including acquisitions in
2013, recently constructed assets being placedséridace and the stores purchased and leased d&elsser.

Income Tax Expensef-or 2013, income tax expense decreased $4.6 mitiboon 2012. Income taxes for 2012 reflect state fedéral
income taxes as a corporate entity from Janua2p12? through the date of our IPO on September @B2.2During 2013, as a Partnership we v
a pass-through entity and were not subject to irctam. Activity during 2013 only reflects Texasrfcaise tax and the income tax expense of
PropCo.

Pro Forma Results of Operations

We have provided below certain supplemental prméoinformation for the year ended December 31, 26d@pared to historical results
for the year ended December 31, 2013. The pro famfoamation gives effect to (i) the contributiog Busser of substantially all of the assets and
operations comprising its wholesale motor fuelriistion business (other than its motor fuel consignt business and transportation assets and
substantially all of its accounts receivable anggide) and the contribution of certain conveniesioge properties and (ii) our entry into the Su
Distribution Contract, the Susser Transportationt€xt and the Omnibus Agreement as if such trdiosechad occurred at the beginning of the
period presented.

Our assets were historically a part of the integgtaiperations of Susser, and we distributed motgrend other petroleum products to
Susser, as opposed to third parties, without rewgiany profit margin. Accordingly, the gross ptafi our historical consolidated financial
statements, prior to our IPO on September 25, 2@1&es only to the profit margin received frorirdiparties for our wholesale distribution
services and from consignment contracts that wetegrred by Susser following the completion of d&®I The pro forma information presented in
the table below was derived based upon known vaduhistributed by us to Susser reflected in ouohical financial statements for which we did
not receive any profit margin, and adjusted forghafit margin that we receive currently pursuantite Susser Distribution Contract, applied to
those volumes. The pro forma information was alstived based upon the volumes distributed by ugednsignment arrangements, for which
we historically received variable margins, and wadpisted for the profit margin contained in the$r Distribution Contract and applied to th
volumes.

Management believes the pro forma presentatiosgfulito investors because, had it been in effedhd the historical periods presented,
the Susser Distribution Contract would have hadstantial impact on our historical results of @piens as a result of (i) the fixed profit margin
that we would have earned on the motor fuel distéd to Susser instead of no margin historicaliigcéed in our financial statements and (ii) the
fixed profit margin that we would have receivedadinvolumes sold to consignment locations instefath® variable and higher margin receivec
us under consignment contracts.
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Year ended December Year ended
31, 2012 December 31, 2013

Pro Forma (unaudited) Predecessor Actual

(in thousands, except gross profit per gallon)

Revenues:
Motor fuel sales to third parties $ 1,467,83 % 1,502,78!
Motor fuel sales to affiliates 2,853,05; 2,974,12.
Rental income 3,48¢ 10,06(
Other income 5,25t 5,611
Total revenue 4,329,62. 4,492,57!
Gross profit:
Motor fuel sales to third parties 20,957 26,307
Motor fuel to affiliates 29,20¢ 31,597
Rental income 3,48¢ 10,06(
Other 3,12¢ 3,00¢
Total gross profit $ 56,77: $ 70,96+

Operating Data:
Motor fuel gallons sold:

Third-party dealers and other commercial customers 475,50 517,77

Affiliated gallons 974,43 1,053,25!
Total gallons sold 1,449,94 1,571,03.
Motor fuel gross profit cents per gallon:

Third-party 4.4¢ 5.1¢

Affiliated 3.C¢ 3.C¢
Volume-weighted average for all gallons 3.5¢ 3.7¢

Actual Year Ended December 31, 2013 Compared to Fsana Year Ended December 31, 20

Pro Forma Revenue Total revenue for 2013 was $4.5 billion , an @ase of $163.0 million , or 3.8%ver pro forma 2012 revenue. Mo
fuel sales to third parties increased by $35.0ianilcompared to pro forma 2012, or 2.4% , due t8.8f6 increase in gallons sold and partially
offset by a 6.0% reduction in the selling price gallon. 2013 motor fuel sales to affiliates in@e@ $121.1 million , or 4.2% , compared to pro
forma 2012, due to an increase in gallons soldfiiiates of 78.8 million or 8.1%, partly offset kiy3.6% decrease in the selling price of fuel.
Rental revenue was $10.1 million, an increase 8f7% over the same pro forma period last year. Mb#te increase was due to rental revenue
from Susser in the purchase and leaseback of §&S® stores.

Pro Forma Cost of Sales and Gross ProfiTotal gross profit increased by $14.2 million28:0% compared to pro forma 2012. Motor fuel
gross profit from third-party sales for the yeasv6.3 million , an increase of $5.4 million ,25.5%, over pro forma 2012. This increase ca
attributed to an increase of 15.3% in third-pariysg profit cents per gallon or $3.2 million . T§&es price of motor fuel sold to third parties
decreased by 18.5 cents per gallon, while theafdsiel decreased by 19.1 cents per gallon, reguiti a 0.6 cent per gallon increase in gross
profit. Motor fuel gross profit from sales to affiles for the year was $31.6 million , an 8.2%eéase over pro forma 2012. The increase was
mostly due to an 8.1% increase in gallons soldftiiedes. Cost of sales per gallon increased comsueate with revenue per gallon, which
resulted in a 3.0 cents per gallon gross profitlieryear compared to pro forma 2012. Gross pirofit rental income was $10.1 million , an
increase of $6.6 million over the pro forma 201&ults, related to the new properties we purchasddee leasing to affiliated and third-party
customers.
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Liquidity and Capital Resources
Liquidity

Our principal liquidity requirements are to finarmerent operations, fund capital expenditureduitiog acquisitions from time to time,
service our debt and make distributions. We expecbngoing sources of liquidity to include cashegmated from operations, borrowings under
our revolving credit facility and the issuance afig-term debt or additional partnership units geegriate given market conditions. We expect
that these sources of funds will be adequate teigeedfor our short-term and long-term liquidity kse

Our ability to meet our debt service obligationd ather capital requirements, including capitalendglitures, as well as make acquisitions,
will depend on our future operating performancechhin turn, will be subject to general economiicafcial, business, competitive, legislative,
regulatory and other conditions, many of whichlzegond our control. As a normal part of our bussneepending on market conditions, we will
from time to time consider opportunities to rep@gdeem, repurchase or refinance our indebtednéssigés in our operating plans, lower than
anticipated sales, increased expenses, acquisdianthier events may cause us to seek additiomlateequity financing in future periods. There
can be no guarantee that financing will be avadlain acceptable terms or at all. Debt financingydilable, could impose additional cash payi
obligations and additional covenants and operatisgictions. In addition, any of the items dis@ts detail under "lItem 1A. Risk Factors" in
this Annual Report on Form 10-K may also signifitaimmpact our liquidity.

As of December 31, 2014 , we had $67.2 millionagtcand cash equivalents on hand and borrowingitapd $554.8 million under the
2014 Revolver (as defined below).

Cash Flows Provided by Operations

Cash flows provided by operations are our maina®of liquidity. We historically have relied prinilgron cash provided by operating
activities, supplemented as necessary from tintien® by borrowings under our credit facilities asttler debt or equity transactions to finance
operations and to fund our capital expenditures.daily working capital requirements fluctuate viitleach month, primarily in response to the
timing of payments for motor fuel, motor fuel taxdarent.

Cash flows from operations were $16.5 million , $5@illion and $106.0 million for the years endedd@mber 31, 2012 , 2013 and 2014 ,
respectively. The growth in cash flows from openadiis primarily attributable to growth in the ungliing business, particularly the acquisition:
MACS and Aloha in 2014. Cash flows also fluctuatthwncreases or decreases in accounts receivatla@ounts payable which are impacted
by increasing or decreasing motor fuel prices arsls; as well as organic growth in volumes soldaridme increases due to acquisitions. We
also began receiving gross profit mark-up in aftéd sales subsequent to our IPO, which we didenaive prior to September 25, 2012.

Cash Flows Used in Investing Activities

Capital expenditures, including purchase of inthleg, were $44.0 million , $116.3 million , and $1¥ million for the years ended
December 31, 2012, 2013 and 2014 , respectivetyuded in the 2012 amount is $15.0 million and.®28illion related to new stores purchased
before and following our IPO through a sale andéback transaction with Susser. Included in ouitaiagxpenditures for the year ended
December 31, 2013 was $115.5 million in expansapital of which $104.2 million relates to the puask and leaseback transactions with Susser
$11.3 million relates to four purchased dealertiocs and other growth capital projects, includiregv dealer supply contracts, and $0.8 miliion
maintenance capital. Cash used in investing aig$vituring 2014 includes cash payments for the @Akrid MACS acquisitions (see Note 4 to our
Consolidated Financial Statements). We also indues8.1 million in expansion capital, which inobadthe purchase and leaseback of 33 stores
from Susser for $152.1 million , and $4.9 for man@nce capital, excluding MACS and Aloha.

Our capital spending program is focused on expandur wholesale distribution network and retailtfmio and maintaining our owned
properties and equipment. Capital expenditure pdaagenerally evaluated based on return on invegtand estimated incremental cash flow.
We develop annual capital spending plans basedstorical trends for maintenance capital, plus fdiexd projects for new sites and revenue-
generating capital. In addition to the annuallyureing capital expenditures, potential acquisitipportunities are evaluated based on their
anticipated return on invested capital, accretimpdct to operating results, and strategic fit.
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Other Investing Activities

During the year ended December 31, 2014 , we fisi$c26.0 million of the purchases of retail stdrem Susser with proceeds from
liquidating the balance of our marketable secgitie

Cash Flows from Financing Activities

On October 27, 2014, we sold 8,000,000 common tmitise public at a price of $46.25 per unit. Weereed net proceeds of $358.9
million , after deducting underwriting discountdazsommissions, but before other offering expenselslovember 2014, we sold an additional 1.1
million units for net proceeds of $47.1 million]aked to the underwriters' exercise of their optmpurchase additional common units. We used
the net proceeds from the offering to repay inddtdes under our revolving credit facility and fengral partnership purposes.

In September 2012, we completed our IPO of 49.9%spfance of nogentrolling interests in us, receiving net proceeflapproximatel
$206.0 million , after deducting fees and expeifses Note 2 for further information). Approximat&5.0 million of the proceeds were
distributed to Susser for reimbursement of previoimcurred capital expenditures for the prior 2dnths, and the balance of $180.7 million was
invested in marketable securities. The Partnemhipred into a Term Loan and Security Agreemeset (Term Loan”) under which we borrowed
$180.7 million , and pledged the marketable seiegrib obtain better terms. The Term Loan was tegaiing the first quarter of 2014.

The 2012 Revolver was set to expire on Septemhe2@& . In December 2013, the 2012 Revolver comsnitsiwere increased by
$150.0 million to a total of $400.0 million whiletaining the ability to increase the 2012 Revolwean additional $100.0 million . On September
25, 2014, we entered into a new $1.25 billion revg credit facility with a syndicate of banks esipg September 25, 2019 (which date may be
extended in accordance with the terms of the cegglitement). The 2014 Revolver includes an accofdiature thus providing flexibility to
increase the facility by an additional $250.0 roilli, subject to certain conditions. Borrowings urttie 2014 Revolver were used to repay and
cancel the 2012 Revolver, of which $1.6 milliorumamortized loan fees were fully amortized to iestexpense.

Borrowings under the 2014 Revolver bear interestladse rate (a rate based off of the higher dhé&ederal Funds Rate (as defined
therein) plus 0.5% , (b) Bank of America’s priméerar (c) one-month LIBOR (as defined therein) @u30% ) or LIBOR, in each case plus an
applicable margin ranging from 1.50% to 2.50%thi& case of a LIBOR loan, or from 0.50% to 1.50#the case of a base rate loan (determ
with reference to the Partnershifeverage Ratio (as defined therein)). Upon ttet fichievement by the Partnership of an investmete cred
rating, the applicable margin will decrease torageaof 1.125% to 2.00% , in the case of a LIBOR)aa from 0.125% to 1.00% , in the case of a
base rate loan (determined with reference to thditcrating for the Partnership’s senior, unsecunet-credit enhanced long-term debt). Interest
is payable quarterly if the base rate appliehaend of the applicable interest period if LIBObplies and at the end of the month if daily flog:
LIBOR applies. In addition, the unused portiontaf 2014 Revolver is subject to a commitment fegiranfrom 0.250% to 0.350% , based on the
Partnership’s Leverage Ratio (as defined ther&lppn the first achievement by the Partnership ahaastment grade credit rating, the
commitment fee will decrease to a range of 0.126%275% , based on the Partnership’s credit ratdescribed above.

The 2014 Revolver requires the Partnership to ramirat Leverage Ratio of not more than 5.50 to 10f%e maximum Leverage Ratio is
subject to upwards adjustment of not more than ®0000 for a period not to exceed three fiscartprs in the event the Partnership engages in
an acquisition of assets, Equity Interests, (amddftherein) operating lines or divisions by tlztRership, a Subsidiary, (as defined therein) an
Unrestricted Subsidiary (as defined therein) aviatVenture for a purchase price of not less 0.0 million . Effective October 7, 2014 in
connection with the acquisition of MACS, we enteir® a Specified Acquisition period, as furthefided in the 2014 Revolver credit agreem
in which our leverage ratio compliance requiremevese adjusted upward. Indebtedness under the R8¢dlver is secured by a security interest
in, among other things, all of the Partnership&spgnt and future personal property and all of tkeemt and future personal property of its
guarantors, the capital stock of its material siibsies (or 66% of the capital stock of materiakign subsidiaries), and any intercompany debt.
Upon the first achievement by the Partnership ahaastment grade credit rating, all security iatts securing the 2014 Revolver will be
released.

As of December 31, 2014 , there were $683.4 miltiotstanding borrowings under the 2014 Revolver&kid8 millionin standby letters ¢
credit. Borrowings under the 2014 Revolver weraluserepay the 2012 Revolver and to fund the MA@& Aloha acquisitions. The unused
availability on the 2014 Revolver at December 311 £was $554.8 million , and we were in compliawité all covenants.

We intend to pay a cash distribution to the holaérsur common and subordinated units on a qugrbasis, to the extent we have suffic
cash from our operations after establishment df caserves and payment of fees and expenses, imglpdyments to our general partners and its
affiliates. We do not have a legal obligation tg plais distribution. Our minimum quarterly distrifian of $ 0.4375 per common and subordinated
unit equates to approximately $15.3 million per
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quarter, or $61.3 million per year, based on thalmer of common and subordinates units outstandiraf Becember 31, 2014 . During the year
ended December 31, 2013, we paid the fourth quaet? and first, second and third quarters of 2fi&Bibutions totaling $39.3 million . We
paid cash distributions on February 28, 2014, May2B14, August 29, 2014, and November 28, 205dingt $51.6 million . On January 30,
2015, we declared a quarterly distribution of $2hilion or $0.60 per unit, related to the fourthagter of 2014. Additionally, we paid incentive
distributions to our IDR holders of $0.3 millionrig 2014, and declared a $0.9 million paymentteeldo the fourth quarter 2014 to be paid a
end of February 2015.

Contractual Obligations and Commitments

Contractual Obligations We have contractual obligations which are reqlicebe settled in cash. Our contractual obligatias of
December 31, 2014 were as follows:

Payments Due by Year

Less than 1 More than 5
Total Year 1-3 Years 4-5 Years Years

(in thousands)

Long-term debt obligations, including current

portion (1) $ 870,51f $ 13,757 $ 50,97 $ 694,51( $ 111,27
Interest payments (2) 156,65( 25,48¢ 48,49: 40,74« 41,93
Operating lease obligations (3) 157,96: 16,21( 28,01( 21,80: 91,94

Total $ 1,185,13 % 55,45. $ 127,47"  $ 757,05! $ 245,15:

(1) Payments for 2015 through 2019 and thereaitdude required principal payments on our debtitablgase obligations, sale leaseback financingations,
and VIE Debt (see Note 11 to our Consolidated FirsiStatements). Assumes the balance of the 2@¥dlfRer, of which the balance at December 31, 2014
was $683.4 million , remains outstanding until teeolver maturity in September 2019.

(2) Includes interest on outstanding debt, capg@sde obligations, sale leaseback financing olitigatand VIE Debt. Includes interest on the 2014dResr
balance as of December 31, 2014 and commitmenbfedse unused portion of the facility through ®epber 2019 using rates in effect at December 31,
2014 .

(3) Includes minimum rental commitments under naneelable leases, net of sublet rental income.

We also make various other commitments and becoiject to various other contractual obligationg the believe to be routine in nature
and incidental to the operation of our businesshss fuel supply commitments which we believe dibhave a material impact on our business,
financial condition or results of operations.

We periodically enter into derivatives, such asifes and options, to manage our fuel price riskngantory in the distribution system. Fuel
hedging positions are not significant to our operet. We had 277 positions, representing 11.6 onil§allons, outstanding at December 31, 2014
with a positive fair value of $1.3 million .

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

We do not maintain any off-balance sheet arrang&srfenthe purpose of credit enhancement, hedgargsactions or other financial or
investment purposes.

Impact of Inflation

The impact of inflation has minimal impact on oesults of operations, as we generally are ablass plong energy cost increases in the
form of increased sales prices to our customefigtion in energy prices impacts our sales and ebstotor fuel products and working capital
requirements. Increased fuel prices may also requsrto post additional letters of credit or ott@tateral if our fuel purchases exceed unsecured
credit limits extended to us by our suppliers. Aligh we believe we have historically been ableagsn increased costs through price increases
and maintain adequate liquidity to support anyeased collateral requirements, there can be nosassithat we will be able to do so in the
future.

Quarterly Results of Operations

See "ltem 8. Financial Statements and Supplemebaty - Notes to Financial Statements - Note 2fc&=d Quarterly Financial Data
(unaudited)" for financial and operating quartatita for each quarter of 2013 and 2014 .
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Recent Accounting Pronouncements

For information on recent accounting pronouncemgnpgcting our business, see Note 3 of the notésetaudited consolidated financ
statements included in Part Il, Item 8.

Application of Critical Accounting Policies

We prepare our consolidated financial statementsiriormity with GAAP. The preparation of thesesdiiitial statements requires us to
make estimates and assumptions that affect thetegpamounts of assets, liabilities, revenues apérses and disclosure of contingent asset
liabilities as of the date of the financial stateise and the reported amount of revenues and egpelsing the reporting period. Actual results
could differ from those estimates.

Critical accounting policies are those we belieke l@th most important to the portrayal of our ficial condition and results of operatic
and require our most difficult, subjective or compjudgments, often as a result of the need to reakimates about the effects of matters the
inherently uncertain. Judgments and uncertaintfeecting the application of those policies may tesn materially different amounts bei
reported under different conditions or using diferassumptions. We believe the following policiéé be the most critical in understanding
judgments that are involved in preparation of amsolidated financial statemen

Business Combinations and Intangible Assets, Indingl Goodwill and Push Down AccountingVe account for acquisitions using
purchase method of accounting. Accordingly, asaetgliired and liabilities assumed are recordedeit #stimated fair values at the acquisi
date. The excess of purchase price over fair vafluet assets acquired, including the amount asdigmidentifiable intangible assets, is reco
as goodwill. Given the time it takes to obtain et information to finalize the acquired companlyalance sheet, it may be several que
before we are able to finalize those initial faéue estimates. Accordingly, it is not uncommontfa initial estimates to be subsequently rev
The results of operations of acquired businessemaluded in the consolidated financial statemé&ots the acquisition date.

Our recorded identifiable intangible assets pritpariclude the estimated value assigned to certaistomer related and contrdese:
assets. Identifiable intangible assets with fitikes are amortized over their estimated usefuddjwvhich is the period over which the ass
expected to contribute directly or indirectly torduture cash flows. Supply agreements are amartirea straightine basis over the remaini
terms of the agreements, which generally range fiieento fifteen years. Favorable/unfavorable leas@angements are amortized on a straight
line basis over the remaining lease terms. Thermé@ation of the fair market value of the intangilslsset and the estimated useful life are t
on an analysis of all pertinent factors includiig the use of widelyccepted valuation approaches, the income appratie cost approac
(2) the expected use of the asset by us, (3) theaoted useful life of related assets, (4) any legulatory or contractual provisions, incluc
renewal or extension periods that would cause anbat costs or modifications to existing agreeragiaind (5) the effects of obsolesce
demand, competition, and other economic factoreulshany of the underlying assumptions indicaté¢ tha value of the intangible assets migt
impaired, we may be required to reduce the carry@mge and subsequent useful life of the assdghdfunderlying assumptions governing
amortization of an intangible asset were later rieiteed to have significantly changed, we may bauireg to adjust the amortization perioc
such asset to reflect any new estimate of its lisiéfu Any write-down of the value or unfavorable change in thewldgé of an intangible ass
would increase expense at that time.

At December 31, 2014 , we had goodwill recordeccamjunction with past business acquisitions totpl$#863.5 million. Under thi
accounting rules, goodwill is not amortized. Ingtegoodwill is subject to annual reviews on thetfitay of the fourth fiscal quarter for impairrr
at a reporting unit level. The reporting unit oritarused to evaluate and measure goodwill for inmpant are determined primarily from
manner in which the business is managed or operategporting unit is an operating segment or a gonent that is one level below an opere
segment. We have assessed the reporting unit tigfimiand determined that we have two operatingnea¢s that is appropriate for test
goodwill impairment.

The impairment analysis performed in the fourthrteraof 2014, which considered only qualitative factors, indézhno impairment
goodwill. In applying the qualitative approach, determined that both the retail and wholesale ssinnits more likely than not had a fair v.
which exceeded their respective carrying valuemesof the factors considered in applying theses testude the consideration of macroeconc
conditions, industry and market considerationst éastors affecting the businesses, the overadirfaial performance of the business segm
and the performance of the unit price of the Pastnip.

Some of the factors considered in applying theitpiade test include the consideration of macroeeoic conditions, industry and mar
considerations, cost factors affecting the businasd the overall financial performance of the bess. In
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addition, the key inputs used to determine faiugalere considered, including industry multiplé® weighted average cost of capital, anc
cash flow.

Long-Lived Assets and Assets Held for Sdleng-ived assets at the individual site level are rereié for impairment whenever events
changes in circumstances indicate the carrying amofi the asset may not be recoverable. If indisagxist, we compare the estime
undiscounted future cash flows related to the assiie carrying value of the asset. If impairmisrindicated, we then would write down the a
to its net realizable value (fair value less cassell). Assumptions are made with respect to dasts expected to be generated by the re
assets based upon management projections. Any ehamdey assumptions used to compile these projestparticularly site level performar
or market conditions, could result in an unantitddaimpairment charge. For instance, changes irkehatemographics, traffic patter
competition and other factors may impact the oVeyadrations of certain individual locations andymequire us to record impairment charge
the future.

Properties that have been closed and other exeakproperty are recorded as assets held and arsg@dyre written down to the lower of ¢
or estimated net realizable value at the time weeckuch stores or determine that these proparties excess and intend to offer them for
We estimate the net realizable value based onqerience in utilizing or disposing of similar alssand on estimates provided by our own
third-party real estate experts. Although we have noegepced significant changes in our estimate ofrealizable value, changes in real e:
markets could significantly impact the net valueslized from the sale of assets. When we haverdeted that an asset is more likely than n
be sold in the next twelve months, that assetaissified as assets held for sale and reflectethar current assets.

Insurance Liabilities. We use a combination of self-insurance and tpady insurance with predetermined deductibles toaer certai
insurable risks. Our costs are allocated from Suss®l Susser carries a liability which represemtsestimate of the ultimate cost of cla
incurred as of the balance sheet dates. The estimatdiscounted liability is established based uanalysis of historical data and inclu
judgments and actuarial assumptions regarding ec@noonditions, the frequency and severity of ciirtlaim development patterns and cl
management and settlement practices. Although we m®t experienced significant changes in actugepditures compared to actua
assumptions as a result of increased costs orencélrates, such changes could occur in the fatgecould significantly impact our results
operations and financial position.

Stock and Unit-Based CompensatioRrior to our IPO, certain employees supporting @perations were historically granted lotegrr
incentive compensation awards under Susser's saskd compensation programs, which consist of stptikns and restricted common st
We were allocated expenses for such stoaed compensation costs. These costs are incindedr general and administrative exper
Following our IPO, our general partner now issulearpom unit awards to certain directors and em@syender the 2012 LTIP (see Note 1
our Consolidated Financial Statements), and relatpénse is included in general and administrativair consolidated statement of operations.

Income TaxesAs a limited partnership we are generally not scibfe state and federal income tax and would tloeeehot recogniz
deferred income tax liabilities and assets fordkpected future income tax consequences of tempditierences between financial staten
carrying amounts and the related income tax b&ges.are, however, subject to a statutory requirentgaitt our norgualifying income cann
exceed 10% of our total gross income, determined oalendar year basis under the applicable indaserovisions. If the amount of our non-
qualifying income exceeds this statutory limit, weuld be taxed as a corporation. Accordingly, éertectivities that generate naqualifying
income are conducted through our wholly owned texabrporate subsidiary for which we have recoghideferred income tax liabilities a
assets at December 31, 2Q1%hese balances, as well as income tax expereseletermined through management's estimationspietation o
tax law for multiple jurisdictions and tax plannirifjour actual results differ from estimated reéswdue to changes in tax laws, our effective
rate and tax balances could be affected. As shesetestimates may require adjustments in theefutsradditional facts become known ¢
circumstances change.

The benefit of an uncertain tax position can ordyrécognized in the financial statements if managerooncludes that it is more liki
than not that the position will be sustained witle tax authorities. For a position that is likebyle sustained, the benefit recognized ir
financial statements is measured at the largestuatrihat is greater than 50 percent likely of bereglized. In determining the future
consequences of events that have been recognizedrifinancial statements or tax returns, judgmientequired. Differences between
anticipated and actual outcomes of these futuredasequences could have a material impact onangotidated results of operations or finar
position.
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Item 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures &out Market Risk
Interest Rate Risk

We are subject to market risk from exposure to gbarnn interest rates based on our financing diesviWe currently have a $1.25 billion
revolving credit facility ("2014 Revolver") and datelated to our consolidated VIE (resulting frdme MACS acquisition) which bear interest at a
variable rate. We had $683.4 million outstandingdwings on the 2014 Revolver and $40.2 milliorvafiable interest VIE debt as of
December 31, 2014 . The annualized effect of apgmeentage point change in floating interest ratesur variable rate debt obligations
outstanding at December 31, 2014 would changenperast expense by approximately $7.2 million . frimary interest rate exposure relates to:

« Interest rate risk on shakfm borrowings; ar
e The impact of interest rate movements on our ghilitobtain adequate financing to fund future asigjons

While we cannot predict or manage our ability tinance existing debt or the impact interest ratwements will have on our existing de
management evaluates our financial position onrgoiog basis. From time to time, we may enter interest rate swaps to reduce the impact of
changes in interest rates on our floating rate.d&ethad no interest rate swaps in effect durinb32agr 2014.

Commodity Price Risk

Historically, we have had minimal commodity priégkras we purchased the majority of our motor &rdy when we receive an order from
one of our customers and took title to the motet @nly for the short period of time (typically &ethan a day) between pick-up and delivery. In
addition, a substantial majority of our gross prigfigenerated by fixed fees that we charge foh gatlon sold and any transportation costs the
incur are passed through to our customers.

SPOC also periodically purchases motor fuel in lauld holds in inventory. Starting in the fourth qaaof 2014 with the acquisition of
Aloha, we have terminals on all four major Hawaiislands which hold purchased fuel until it is detied to customers (typically over a two to
three week period). The commodity price risk assed with bulk inventories is hedged through the afsfuel futures contracts that are matched
in quantity and timing to the anticipated usag¢hefinventory. These fuel hedging positions havehigiorically been material to our operations.
We had 277 positions with a positive fair valugaf3 million outstanding at December 31, 2014 .

Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data

See Index to Consolidated Financial StatementsdtlP, Item 15.

Item 9. Changes in and Disagreements With Accountason Accounting and Financial Disclosure

None.

Item 9A. Controls and Procedures
Disclosure Controls and Procedures

We maintain disclosure controls and proceduresléfised in Rule 13a-15(e) and Rule 15d-15(e) offkehange Act), that are designed to
provide reasonable assurance that the informatiminwe are required to disclose in the reportsil®ef submit under the Exchange Act is
recorded, processed, summarized and reported withitime periods specified in the SEC's rulesfamus, and such information is accumulated
and communicated to our management, including diefExecutive Officer and Chief Financial Officeis appropriate, to allow timely decisic
regarding required disclosure. It should be nobed], because of inherent limitations, our disclestantrols and procedures, however well
designed and operated, can provide only reasoredienot absolute, assurance that the objectivieafisclosure controls and procedures are
met.

As required by paragraph (b) of Rule 13a-15 unlderBxchange Act, our management with the particpaif our Chief Executive Officer
and Chief Financial Officer, has evaluated theatifeness of our disclosure controls and procedures
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(as such term is defined in Rules 13a-15(e) and1Bd) under the Exchange Act) as of the end opéred covered by this Form 3Q-Based ol
such evaluation, our management, including our {ecutive Officer and Chief Financial Officer,sheoncluded, as of the end of the period
covered by this Form 10-K, that our disclosure malatand procedures were effective at the reaseragsurance level for which they were
designed in that the information required to beldsed by the Partnership in the reports we filsudomit under the Securities Exchange Act of
1934 is recorded, processed, summarized and relpeitein the time periods specified in SEC ruled éorms and such information is
accumulated and communicated to our managemehigding our Chief Executive Officer and Chief FinaldOfficer, as appropriate, to allow
timely decisions regarding required disclosure.

Management’s Report on Internal Controls over Finartial Reporting

Our management is responsible for establishingnaaidtaining adequate internal control over finahaaorting as defined in Rule 13a-15
(f) and 15d15(f) under the Securities Exchange Act. Our irdeoontrol over financial reporting is a procesattis designed under the supervis
of our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Finandificer, and effected by our board of directors nagement and other personnel, to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliabilitynafitial reporting and the preparation of finanstatements for external purposes in accordance
with accounting principles generally accepted m lthmited States of America. Our internal contradrofinancial reporting includes those policies
and procedures that:

» Pertain to the maintenance of records that@sonable detail, accurately and fairly reflecttthasactions and dispositions of our
assets;

» Provide reasonable assurance that transactiome@eed as necessary to permit preparation ofiiahstatements in accordance v
accounting principles generally accepted in theddhStates of America, and that receipts and expead recorded by us are being
made only in accordance with authorizations ofrmanagement and board of directors; and

» Provide reasonable assurance regarding preveotibmely detection of unauthorized acquisitinge or disposition of our assets that
could have a material effect on our financial stegets.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal cohtver financial reporting may not prevent or detmisstatements. Also, projections of any
evaluation of effectiveness to future periods atgexct to the risk that controls may become inadégjbecause of changes in conditions, or that
the degree of compliance with the policies and @doces may deteriorate.

Management conducted its evaluation of the effeatdss of internal control over financial reportarggof December 31, 2014 , based on the
framework in Internal Control-Integrated Framewimsued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizatidrise Treadway Commission (1992
Framework). Management’'s assessment included doagioa of the design of its internal control o¥ieancial reporting and testing the
operational effectiveness of its internal contnegiofinancial reporting. Management reviewed ttmuilts of the assessment with the Audit
Committee of the board of directors. Based onsteasment, management determined that, as of Dec@&hl2014 , it maintained effective
internal control over financial reporting.

On December 16, 2014 and October 1, 2014, we caetptbe acquisitions of Aloha and MACS, respectivBanagement has
acknowledged that it is responsible for establigl#ind maintaining a system of internal controlsrdvencial reporting for Aloha and MACS and
is in the process of integrating these businessektherefore has excluded Aloha and MACS frorb#@sember 31, 2014 assessment of the
effectiveness of internal control over financigbeging. For Aloha and MACS, total revenue was $24illion and $509.3 million, total net
income was $0.7 million and $31.9 million, totasets were $334.8 million and $805.5 million, andassets were $280.7 million and $579.0
million, respectively, and are included in our colidated financial statements as of December 314 2(d for the period from September 1, 2014
through December 31, 2014 . The impact of the Al MACS transactions has not materially affeeted is not expected to materially affect
our internal control over financial reporting. Asesult of these integration activities, certaintcols will be evaluated and may be changed. We
believe, however, that we will be able to maintstfficient controls over the substantive resultswf financial reporting throughout this
integration process.

Ernst & Young LLP, the independent registered puaticounting firm that audited the consolidatedriicial statements of the Partnership
included in this Annual Report on Form 10-K, hasuid an attestation report on the effectivenetiseolPartnership’s internal control over
financial reporting as of December 31, 2014 . Tdmort, which expresses an unqualified opinion enetiectiveness of the Partnership’s internal
control over financial reporting as of December@&114 , is included in this Item under the head®egort of Independent Registered Public
Accounting Firm.
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Changes in Internal Control over Financial Reporting

There have been no changes in our internal coowel financial reporting during the fourth quardéfiscal 2014 that have materially
affected, or are reasonably likely to materiallieef, our internal control over financial reporting

From time to time, we make changes to our intecoatrol over financial reporting that are intende&nhance its effectiveness and which

do not have a material effect on our overall indoontrol over financial reporting. We will contie to evaluate the effectiveness of our disclc
controls and procedures and internal control ovemcial reporting on an ongoing basis and wilktaktion as appropriate.
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accountingrirm

The Board of Directors of Sunoco GP LLC and Unitleos of Sunoco LP

We have audited Sunoco LP's internal control overricial reporting as of December 31, 2014, basettiteria established in Internal Control-
Integrated Framework issued by the Committee ohSpong Organizations of the Treadway Commissi@®2lframework) (the COSO criteria).
Sunoco LP's management is responsible for maingigffective internal control over financial repogd, and for its assessment of the
effectiveness of internal control over financighogting included in the accompanying ManagemergjsdR on Internal Controls over Financial
Reporting. Our responsibility is to express an mpiron the Partnership's internal control overiiitial reporting based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the stadsdof the Public Company Accounting Oversighti8d@nited States). Those standards
require that we plan and perform the audit to abtaasonable assurance about whether effectivenaiteontrol over financial reporting was
maintained in all material respects. Our auditudeld obtaining an understanding of internal corgwelr financial reporting, assessing the risk
a material weakness exists, testing and evalugtimgesign and operating effectiveness of interaatrol based on the assessed risk, and
performing such other procedures as we considezeelssary in the circumstances. We believe thadwdit provides a reasonable basis for our
opinion.

A company's internal control over financial repagtis a process designed to provide reasonableassuregarding the reliability of financial
reporting and the preparation of financial statetsiéor external purposes in accordance with gelyesiabepted accounting principles. A
company's internal control over financial reportingludes those policies and procedures that (tiipeto the maintenance of records that, in
reasonable detail, accurately and fairly refleetttiansactions and dispositions of the assetsatdimpany; (2) provide reasonable assurance that
transactions are recorded as necessary to pempiation of financial statements in accordanch getnerally accepted accounting principles,
and that receipts and expenditures of the companpeing made only in accordance with authorizatimirmanagement and directors of the
company; and (3) provide reasonable assurancediaggsrevention or timely detection of unauthorizedjuisition, use or disposition of the
company's assets that could have a material effettie financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal cohtver financial reporting may not prevent or detmisstatements. Also, projections of any
evaluation of effectiveness to future periods atgexct to the risk that controls may become inadégjbecause of changes in conditions, or that
the degree of compliance with the policies or pdoces may deteriorate.

As indicated in the accompanying Management's Repointernal Controls over Financial Reporting magement's assessment of and
conclusion on the effectiveness of internal condradr financial reporting did not include the imak controls of Aloha Petroleum, Ltd and Mid-
Atlantic Convenience Stores, LLC, which are incldide the 2014 consolidated financial statementSwfoco LP and constituted $334.8 million
and $805.5 million of total assets, respectivehd $280.7 million and $579.0 million of net asse¢spectively, as of December 31, 2014 , and
$24.7 million and $509.3 million of revenues, regtpely, and $0.7 million and $31.9 of net incomespectively, for the period from September
1, 2014 through December 31, 2014 . Our audittefival control over financial reporting of Sunod® &also did not include an evaluation of the
internal control over financial reporting of Mid4antic Convenience Stores, LLC and Aloha Petrolelutah,

In our opinion, Sunoco LP maintained, in all matkrespects, effective internal control over finahoeporting as of December 31, 2014, base
the COSO criteria.

We also have audited, in accordance with the stdsdz the Public Company Accounting Oversight Blo@snited States), the consolidated
balance sheets of Sunoco LP as of December 31,&@dDecember 31, 2013, and the related consdlidgéd¢ements of operations and
comprehensive income, partners' equity and casisffor periods from September 1, 2014 through Déeer81, 2014 and January 1, 2014
through August 31, 2014, and the years ended Degegih 2013 and 2012, and our report dated Febigr2015 expressed an unqualified
opinion thereon.

/s/ Ernst & Young LLP

Houston, Texas
February 27, 2015
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Item 9B. Other Information

None.

Part Il
Item 10. Directors, Executive Officers and Corporate Governace
Executive Officers and Directors of our General Pamner
The following table shows information for the extiee officers and directors of our general partieeferences to "our officers," "¢
directors,” or "our board" refer to the officerdredtors, and board of directors of our generatrar Directors are appointed to hold office t

their successors have been elected or qualifieshiiirthe earlier of their death, resignation, rerdoor disqualification. Executive officers serv
the discretion of the board.

Name Age Position With Our General Partner

Sam L. Susser 51 Chairman of the Board

Robert W. Owens 61 Director, President and Chiefcutive Officer

Rocky B. Dewbre 49 Executive Vice President, Channel Operations

Mary E. Sullivan 58 Executive Vice President, &@htinancial Officer and Treasurer
Christopher P. Curia 59 Director and Senior Vice President, Human Resoutféser
Marshall McCrea lll 55 Director

Matthew S. Ramsey 59 Director

Martin Salinas, Jr. 43 Director

K. Rick Turner 56 Director

William P. Williams 77 Director

Sam L. Susser-Chairman of the Boardlr. Susser was appointed as the Chairman of thedbafadirectors in August 2014. Mr. Sus
previously served as Chairman, President and Ghietutive Officer of Susser Holdings Corporatioiopto the ETP Merger in 2014. Prior
founding the Southguard Corporation (predecessdsusser Holdings) in 1988, Mr. Susser was with @alo Brothers Inc. in the corpor
finance division and in the mergers and acquisitigroup from 1985 to 1987. He received a B.B.Afinance from the University of Texas
Austin. Mr. Susser is currently a member of the i&dry Board of the McCombs School of Business atlimiversity of Texas; a Trustee
Chairman of the Driscoll Foundation, which owns Bréscoll Children's Hospital System in South Texa®irector of The Texas State Aquaril
a member of the Board of Visitors at MD Andersamg gerves on numerous other boards and advisorgniters. Mr. Susser was admitted to
Texas Business Hall of Fame in 2009, named Bord&aii of the Year in 2013 and Retail Leader of tearyby CSP Business Media in 2014.
Susser family has been in the fuel distributionitess for over 75 years. Mr. Susser provides insigb all aspects of our business. We bel
that his financial industry experience along with im-depth knowledge of our business provides valuablepgective to our board of director:
setting strategic, financial and operating straegi

Robert W. Owens-Director and President and Chiefegutive Officer.Mr. Owens was appointed to the board of directoraugus
2014. Mr. Owens is President and Chief Executiviic®f of Sunoco LP and Sunoco, Inc., roles he ledd since August 2014 and October 2
respectively. He previously served as Senior Vimsident of Marketing of Sunoco Inc., which waswaeed by ETP in 2012. In this role, M
Owens was responsible for the Sunoco, Inc. Ret&ork; all commercial supply and trading actistiavolving crude oil, refined products, ¢
petrochemicals; as well as wholesale marketingteantsportation operations for the company. Prigotoing Sunoco, Inc. in 1997, Mr. Owe
held executive positions at Ultramar Diamond ShakyrcAmerada Hess and Mobil Oil Corporation. Mr. Gwweholds a B.S. in Busine
Administration and Marketing from California Polgtenic State University and a M.B.A. from the KellpGraduate School of Managemer
Northwestern University. Mr. Owens was selected asember of our board of directors based on hisindsstry experience and his knowle
of our business as CEO, along with the valuablspsstive he brings to our board of directors irirsgtour business operating and finar
strategies.

Rocky B. Dewbre-Executive Vice President, Channgle@ations.Mr. Dewbre has held the role of Executive Vice Riest-Channe

Operations, since August 2014. Prior to that, Mewbre served as President and Chief Executive @ffa¢ our general partner beginn
September 2013, and, prior to that, was our Presated Chief Operating Officer of our general
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partner since June 2012. Mr. Dewbre served as BaigSecutive Vice President and President/Chiedraging OfficerWholesale from Janue
2005 until its acquisition by ETP. Mr. Dewbre sahas Susser's Executive Vice President and Chiefdiipg OfficerWholesale from 1999
2005, as Vice President from 1995 to 1999 and asalgler of Finance and Administration from 1992 t83.Before joining SUSS in 1992, |
Dewbre was a corporate internal auditor with AflaRichfield Corporation, a petroleum/chemical camp, from 1991 to 1992 and an auditor
consultant at Deloitte & Touche LLP from 1988 td919 Mr. Dewbre serves as a director of Tank Owneiriders Insurance Company.

Dewbre has notified the board of directors of ksignation effective April 21, 2015.

Mary E. Sullivan-Executive Vice President, Chief ii@ncial Officer and TreasurerMs. Sullivan was appointed as the Executive '
President, Chief Financial Officer and Treasureowf general partner in June 2012. Ms. Sullivandeased as Susser's Executive Vice Presi
Chief Financial Officer and Treasurer from NovemB865 and prior to that was Susser's Vice PresioeRinance from February 2000 to 2C
Prior to joining SUSS in 2000, Ms. Sullivan senadDirector of Finance for the City of Corpus Ctifiom 1999 to 2000. Ms. Sullivan's previt
experience includes serving as the Controller aethber of the board of directors of Elementis Chromia producer of chromium chemic
from 1993 to 1999, and various positions with Calmffower and Light Company, culminating in Treasuoger the 13 year period from 197¢
1992. Ms. Sullivan has notified the board of dicestof her resignation effective April 25, 2015.

Christopher P. Curia-Director and Senior Vice Pregnt-Human ResourcesMr. Curia was appointed to the board of directm
August 2014. Mr. Curia joined ETP in July 2008 avak appointed the Executive Vice President andfChienan Resources Officer of Ene
Transfer Equity, L.P. in January, 2015. Prior toijjog ETP, Mr. Curia held HR leadership positiorisbath Valero Energy Corporation ¢
Pennzoil and brings with him more than three desamfeHuman Resources experience in the oil andfigis He also has several years’
experience in the retail sector of the energy itrgudvir. Curia earned a masterdegree in Industrial Relations from the Universf Wes
Virginia. Mr. Curia was selected to serve as a memudf the board of directors due to the valuablespective he brings from his extens
experience working as a human resources profedsiottee energy industry, and the insights he sitgthe board of directors on matters suc
succession planning, compensation, employee marageand acquisition evaluation and integration.

Marshall McCrea llI-Director. Mr. McCrea was appointed ot the board of directer&ugust 2014. Mr. McCrea has served as Pres
and Chief Operating Officer of ETP since June 20@&or to that, he served as PresideMidstream of ETP from March 2007 to June 2
Previously, since the combination of ETP’s midstieand propane operations in January 2004, Mr. MeGerved as Senior Vice President -
Commercial Development over midstream operatior$oi® January 2004, Mr. McCrea served as Senice Fiesident Business Developme
and Producer Services of EBRhidstream operations, having served in that é¢gpsiace 1997. He also serves on the Boards afdbirs of ETF
Energy Transfer Equity, L.P., and Sunoco Logisiestners L.P. Mr. McCrea was selected to serve wnBwmard or Directors based on
extensive project development and operational éspes and ability to assist the board of directarsreating and executing the Partnership’
strategic plans.

Matthew S. Ramsey-DirectoMr. Ramsey was appointed to the board of directordugust 2014. Mr. Ramsey is President of F
Exploration, Ltd., a private oil and gas exploratjgartnership generating and drilling prospectshenTexas Gulf Coast. He is also Preside
Ramsey Energy Management, LLC, the General Paofnieeamsey Energy Partners, |, Ltd.; of Dollarhidadgement, LLC, the General Par
of Deerwood Investments, Ltd.; and of Gatesheadl®@IiC, all of which are private oil and gas parstéps. In 2014, Mr. Ramsey joined the b
of directors of RSP Permian, Inc. (NYSE: RSPP), nehee serves as chairman of the compensation coeerand as a member of the a
committee. Previously, Mr. Ramsey was PresidemDD Energy, Inc. until its sale in 2002. From 198662000, he served as President and
of OEC Compression Corporation, Inc., a publicided oil field service company. Earlier, Mr. Ramses Vice President of Nuevo Ene
Company, a publicly traded independent E&P compawiglitionally, he was employed by Torch Energy Asvs, Inc., last serving as Execu
Vice President. Mr. Ramsey also serves on the Baafr@Directors of Energy Transfer Equity, L.P., afdkegency GP LLC. He holds a B.B.A
Marketing from the University of Texas at Austindaa J.D. from South Texas College of Law. He isradgate of Harvard Business Sct
Advanced Management Program. Mr. Ramsey chairsc@ubB’s Audit Committee and also serves on our Compars&ommittee. Mr. Rams
was appointed to serve on our board of directore@ognition of his vast knoweldge of the energsicgpand valuable industry, operational
management experience.

Martin Salinas, Jr.-Director. Mr. Salinas was appointed to the board of director&\ugust 2014. Mr. Salinas has served as (
Financial Officer of ETP since June 2008 and asChief Financial Officer of Sunoco Logistics PamseP since October 2012. Mr. Salinas
previously served as the Controller and Treasur&T® from September 2004 to June 2008. Prioritdrjg ETP, he was a Senior Audit Mane
with KMPG in San Antonio, Texas, from September20dr. Salinas also serves on the board of direadérSunoco Logistics Partners LP.
earned his B.B.A. in Accounting from the Universif Texas at San Antonio in 1994 and is a Certiffablic Accountant. Mr. Salinas w
selected as a member of our board of directorsthaisdnis extensive public company experience iarfae, accounting and strategic planning.

K. Rick Turner-Director.Mr. Turner was appointed to the board of director8ugust 2014. Mr. Turner is presently a managlirgctol
of Altos Energy Partners, LLC. Mr. Turner previguslas a private equity executive with several geoafier
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having retired from the Stepherfgmily entities, which he had worked for since 198 first became a private equity principal in Q9%te
serving as the Assistant to the Chairman, Jacks@téphens. His areas of focus have been the dijas exploration, natural gas gathering
processing industries, and power technology. Ragoining Stephens, he was employed by Peat, MdgwWiitchell and Company. Mr. Turr
also serves on the board of directors of Energyndfea Equity, L.P., and is a director of North Aican Energy Partners Inc. Mr. Turner eal
his B.S.B.A. from the University of Arkansas anaisonpracticing Certified Public Accountant. Mr. Turrdrairs our Compensation Commil
and also serves on our Audit Committee. Mr. Tus@ras selected to serve as a member of the boaliceofors based on his industry knowle:
his background in corporate finance and accounting, his experience as a director and audit comenitiember on the boards of several «
companies.

William P. Williams-Director.Mr. Williams was appointed to the board of direstor August 2014. Mr. Williams began his careethie
oil and gas industry in 1967 with Texas Power aight. Company as Manager of Pipeline ConstructiarBieStone Fuel Company, a predece
of Texas Utilities Fuel Company. In 1980, he wapkayed by Endevco as Vice President of Pipeline Rlaaht Construction, Engineering,
Operations. Prior to Endevco, he worked for Cotosies Natural Gas followed by Vice President of BEegrring and Operations at ETP ending
career as Vice President of Measurement on May11.2Mr. Williams was selected to serve on our Bazfrdirectors based on his exten:
management and industry experience.

Board of Directors

Our general partner oversees our operations artiast on our behalf through its board of direstofhe board of directors of ¢
general partner appoints our officers, all of whare employed by affiliates of ETP, and managesdayrtoday affairs. Neither our gene
partner, nor the board of directors of our genpeatner, are elected by our unitholders and neitlikébe subject to election by our unitholder:
the future. Rather, the directors of our generatnea are appointed by ETP, which directly owns %00f our general partner. Our boarc
directors met ten times during fiscal year 2014 aadh of our directors, following their appointmeattended, or properly recused themse
from, at least 75% of those meetings, and 75%efitbetings of any committees on which they served.

Director Independence

NYSE rules generally do not require that the basrdirectors of our general partner be composea mijority of independent directc
We are, however, required to have an audit comenitfeat least three members, all of whom are reduio meet the independence stanc
established by the NYSE and SEC rules. The boadirettors of our general partner has affirmativééfermined that Messrs. Ramsey, Tu
and Williams meet the independence standards estaedlby the NYSE and SEC rules.

In accordance with our Corporate Governance Guidslithe board of directors of our general partodils executive sessions of non-
management directors not less than twice annuatiyvehich are presided over, on a rotating basighbychairman of the audit committee or
compensation committee of the board of directarterésted parties may contact the chairman of odit @r compensation committee, or
independent or nomanagement directors individually or as a grouplizitg the contact information set forth on our hsite a
http://www.sunocolp.com/investor-relations

Committees of the Board of Directors

The board of directors of our general partner hasaadit committee and a compensation committee.sMesfkamsey, Turner a
Williams are members of the audit committee anddviesRamsey and Turner are the members of our asapen committee. We do not hay
nominating and corporate governance committeeaw\of the fact that ETP, which owns our generatrar controls and appoints the boar
directors of our general partner.

Audit Committee

We are required to have an audit committee of adtléhree members, and all its members are reqtoredeet the independence
experience standards established by the NYSE amdExchange Act. The board of directors of our gainpartner has determined that ¢
director appointed to the audit committee is “ficitly literate,” and Mr. Ramsey, who serves asrchan of the audit committee, haactountin
or related financial management expertiaet constitutes an "audit committee financial ekpén accordance with SEC and NYSE rules
regulations. The audit committee of the board oédbrs of our general partner serves as our aoditmittee and will assist the board in
oversight of the integrity of our consolidated ficél statements and our compliance with legal segllatory requirements and partner:
policies and controls. The audit committee operatgsder a written charter that is publicly availablen our website
http://www.sunocolp.com/investor-relatioasd has the sole authority to (1) retain and teateiour independent registered public accountimg,

(2) approve all auditing services and related &®bthe terms thereof performed by our indepenayistered public accounting firm, and (3) pre-
approve any
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non-audit services and tax services to be renderedibindependent registered public accounting firtme &udit committee is also responsible
confirming the independence and objectivity of oudependent registered public accounting firm. @dependent registered public accour
firm has been given unrestricted access to thet @odimittee and our management, as necessary. tdiec@mmittee met eight times dur
2014.

The board of directors adopts the charter for thditCommittee. Matthew S. Ramsey, K. Rick Turned &Villiam P. Williams serve
elected members of the Audit Committee. Mr. Ramzayently serves as the Chair of the Audit Commaittelr. Ramsey currently serves ¢
member or chairman of the audit committee of thotkeer publicly traded companies, including Energgrisfer Equity, L.P. in addition to |
service as a member of the Audit Committee of oenéal Partner. Mr. Turner also serves on the aaditmittee of three other publicly trac
companies, including Energy Transfer Equity, L.B.rAquired by Rule 303A.07 of the NYSE Listed Comp®anual, the board of directors
our General Partner has determined that such simaedus service does not impair Mr. Ramsey’s orldrner’s ability to effectively serve on c
Audit Committee.

Compensation Committee

Although we are not required under NYSE rules tpoit a compensation committee or a nominatingfa@ie governance commit
because we are a limited partnership, our boarddicéctors established a compensation committee stabksh standards and m
recommendations to ETP concerning the compensafiaur officers and directors concurrently with thequisition of our general partner
ETP. In addition, the compensation committee deatezmand establishes the standards for any awar@sployees and officers provid
services to us under the equity compensation @dopted by our unitholders, including the perforoeastandards or other restrictions pertai
to the vesting of any such awards. Pursuant tcchizeter of the compensation committee, a direatovisg as a member of the compens:
committee may not be an officer of or employed by general partner, us or our subsidiaries. Thetehaf the compensation committe:
publicly available on our website ttp://www.sunocolp.com/investor-relation¥he compensation committee is currently chained/b. Turner
Mr. Ramsey also serves on the compensation conemilaring 2014, none of the members of the committere an officer or employee
affiliates of ETP, or served as an officer of amynpany with respect to which any of our executiffecers served on such company's boar
directors. In addition, neither Mr. Turner nor MRamsey are former employees of affiliates of ETRe Tompensation committee held tt
meetings between the date of its formation on Atg8s2014 and the end of fiscal year 2014.

Section 16(a) Beneficial Ownership Reporting Compdince

Each director and executive officer (and, for acefpel period, certain former directors and exeauifficers) of our general partner i
each holder of more than 10 percent of a classioéquity securities is required to report to tleCShis or her pertinent position or relationshig
well as transactions in those securities, by sgetiflates. Based solely upon a review of reportsams 3 and 4 (including any amendme
furnished to us during our most recent fiscal yeat reports on Form 5 (including any amendments)ighed to us with respect to our most re
fiscal year, and written representations from efficand directors of our general partner that nonFe was required, we believe that all filii
applicable to our general partner's officers amdators, and our beneficial owners, required bytiSed 6(a) of the Exchange Act were filed ¢
timely basis during 2014 with the exception of darasaction involving the acquisition of our commarits by Christopher Curia as to whic
Form 4 was filed on December 3, 2014 with respeet teportable transaction that occurred on OctdBeR014.

Code of Ethics

Our general partner's board of directors has aggrevCode of Business Conduct and Ethics whicbptiGable to all directors, office
and employees of our general partner and its atiti, including the principal executive officer ghé principal financial officer. The Code
Business Conduct and Ethics is available on oursitelathttp://www.sunocolp.com/investor-relatiofsnder the 'Investor Relations/Corpo
Governance' tab) and in print without charge to amy holder who sends a written request to ouretary at our principal executive offices at
East Airtex Drive, Houston, Texas 77073. We intémghost any amendments of this code, or waiveiitsgirovisions applicable to directors
executive officers of our general partner, inclgits principal executive officer and principaldimcial officer, at this location on our website.

Corporate Governance Guidelines

The board of directors of our general partner hdepted a set of Corporate Governance Guidelinegsrémote a common set
expectations as to how the board and its committkesld perform their functions. These principles gublished on our
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website ahttp://www.sunocolp.com/investor-relatioasd reviewed by the board annually or more oftethadoard deems appropriate.

Reimbursement of Expenses of our General Partner

Our general partner does not receive any managefaendr other compensation for its management ofQug general partner
reimbursed for all expenses incurred on our befiiése expenses include all expenses necessapprapaate to the conduct of our business

are allocable to us, as provided for in our paghigr agreement. There is no cap on the amountbgtbe paid or reimbursed to our gen
partner.

54




Iltem 11. Executive Compensation

As is commonly the case for many publicly tradeditéd partnerships, we have no management employeter the terms of o
partnership agreement, we are ultimately managealibgeneral partner. All of our management emmsyé@cluding our executive officers,
employees of ETP or its affiliates and, while oompensation committee makes advisory recommendatmiETP and our board of direct
regarding officer and director compensation, ETRe$ponsible for setting the compensation of oecative officers.

Compensation Committee Report

As discussed below, the responsibility and authddat compensation related decisions for our exeeutfficers, who are all employe
of ETP or its affiliates, resides with ETP and oampensation committee acts only in an advisonaciéyp with regard to compensation decis
impacting those officers. Nevertheless, the comgéors committee of the board of directors of oungral partner has reviewed and discusse
section of this report entitled “Compensation Digian and Analysis” and approved its inclusion imere

Compensation Committee

K. Rick Turner (Chairman)
Matthew S. Ramsey

The foregoing report shall not be deemed to berparated by reference by any general statemergferance to this Annual Report
Form 10K into any filing under the Securities Act of 193% amended, or the Securities Exchange Act of , 1@34mended, except to the ex
that we specifically incorporate this informatiop ieference, and shall not otherwise be deemedl diteler those Acts.

Compensation Discussion and Analysis

Named Executive Officer

We do not have officers or directors. Instead, reeraanaged by the board of directors of our germgendher, and the executive officer:
our general partner perform all of our managementtions. As a result, the executive officers af general partner are essentially our exec
officers. References to “our officers” and “oureditors”refer to the officers and directors of our geng@attner. This Compensation Discus:
and Analysis is, therefore, focused on the totahpensation of the executive officers of our geneatner as set forth below. The exect
officers we refer to in this discussion as our “ea@nexecutive officers,” or “NEOsfor the 2014 fiscal year are the following officeagoul
general partner:

Name Principal Position
Sam L. Susser (1) Chairman of the Board
Robert W. Owens (2) President and Chief Execu@iffecer
Rocky B. Dewbre (3) Executive Vice President, Channel Operations
Mary E. Sullivan (4) Executive Vice President, €Htinancial Officer and Treasurer
Gail S. Workman (5) Senior Vice President, Sales and Operations

(1) Prior to the completion of the ETP Merger amghist 29, 2014, Mr. Susser served as Chairmanrdiaard of directors and as President and Chief
Executive Officer of Susser. Because he was arage@ of Susser and participated in the day tonrdagagement of our general partner, a portion ¢
compensation was allocated to us and our generalguand we elected to classify his position aai@fan of our general partner as an executive one.
Although Mr. Susser remains Chairman of our boddirectors, effective August 29, 2014, he is noger an employee of Susser and is no longer ¢
in the day to day management of our general pagner consequently, is no longer considered anutixecofficer.

(2) Effective August 29, 2014, Mr. Owens was appairPresident and Chief Executive Officer of oungyal partner.

(3) Mr. Dewbre served as President and Chief Exee@fficer of our general partner until the apgoient of Mr. Owens to that office effective Auga&,
2014. Mr. Dewbre has notified our board of direstof his resignation, effective April 21, 2015.

(4) Ms. Sullivan has notified our board of directorshef resignation, effective April 25, 20

(5) Prior to August 29, 2014, Ms. Workman serve@anior Vice President and Chief Operating Offafesur general partner. As of August 29, 2014, Ms.
Workman is no longer considered an executive affice
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We do not and will not directly employ any of thergons responsible for managing our business. &agctr NEOs was an employee
Susser, ETP or one of their affiliates for the 2€isdal year, and they allocated their time in 2@&fween managing our business and man
the business of Susser, ETP and/or their affilidtesccordance with the terms of our partnersigiie@ment and the Omnibus Agreement
reimburse ETP and its affiliates for compensatelated expenses attributable to the portion oettexutives time dedicated to providing servi
to us. During 2014, until the ETP Merger was corgaleon August 29, 2014, Mr. Susser, Mr. Dewbre, Biglivan and Ms. Workman ec
devoted approximately 15%, 75%, 15% and 75%, reisedg, of their total business time to us and general partner. Following the E
Merger, Mr. Susser ceased devoting business times tand our general partner, other than in hisagpas a director, and Mr. Owens, |
Dewbre, Mrs. Sullivan and Ms. Workman each devaiggroximately 15%, 75%, 50% and 75%, respectivalyheir total business time to us i
our general partner.

NEO allocation of time in future years and, in tuaur future compensation allocations may diffamirthe time and compensat
allocated for each NEO in 2014. Following the ETErdr, the board of directors of our general parés¢éablished a compensation committe
establish standards and make recommendations tocBi¢erning the compensation of our officers andatiors. In addition, the compensa
committee determines and establishes the standardany awards to employees and officers providgggvices to us under the eq
compensation plans adopted by our unitholdersudhiof the performance standards or other restristigertaining to the vesting of any s
awards. Although it consults with the compensatiommittee of the board of directors of our gengeatner in making compensation decisi
ETP has the ultimate decision making authority wehpect to the total compensation of our CEO, anbject to the terms of our partner:
agreement, determining the portion of NEO compémsdhat is allocated to us based on the time spgmsuch officers in managing our busir
and operations. We expect future compensation idasigor our NEOs, other than our CEO, to be mauelys by our compensation commit
pursuant to a delegation of authority by ETP. Allbads made under the Sunoco LP 2012 Long-Term tiveeRlan (the “LTIP")to our executiv
officers, key employees, and independent directoust be approved by the board of directors of cemegal partner or the compensa
committee.

Compensation Philosophy and Objectives

Prior to the ETP Merger, the compensation commibfethe board of directors of Susser made compmseecisions for our executi
officers and any such compensation decisions wetrsubject to any approvals by the board of dimsctd our general partner, or any commit
thereof, except for general approvals for the issaaf our equity awards pursuant to the LTIP.

During 2014, as a result of the ETP Merger, we hety@ process of transitioning to a compensatiatogbphy and set of objectiv
similar to those of ETP. The philosophy for comgimn of our executive officers is based on thenpse that a significant portion of et
executive officer's total compensation should beemtive-based or “at risk” compensation and thatcakive officers’'total compensation leve
should be highly competitive in the marketplacedrecutive talent and abilities. ETP and the corspon committee of the board of director
our general partner believe the incentbased balance is achieved by (i) the payment ofiandiscretionary cash bonuses that conside
achievement of the our financial performance objestfor a fiscal year set at the beginning of siistal year and the individual contribution:
our named executive officers to our success an@dthevement of the annual financial performandedatives and (ii) the annual grant of time-
based restricted unit awards under our LTIP, whiehrds are intended to provide a longer term imeeaind retention value to our key employ
to focus their efforts on increasing the market@of our publicly traded units and to increaseddEh distribution we pay to our unitholders.

Compensation decisions for 2014 with respect toexaccutive officers (other than Mr. Owens, who \appointed as the President
Chief Executive Officer of our general partner oaglist 29, 2014) before the ETP Merger were madédgompensation committee of the b
of directors of Susser. Compensation decisions2@i#4 with respect to our executive officers follagithe ETP Merger were made by
compensation committee of the board of directorsusfgeneral partner, in consultation with the gahpartner of ETP. All of the compensal
provided for in 2014 and discussed below was deterthby the compensation committee of the boardirgfctors of Susser except for (i)
grants of phantom units of 50,000, 15,000 and 15#@0Mr. Owens, Mrs. Sullivan and Mr. Dewbre, ragpely, and (ii) the increase in N
Owens'’base salary to $600,000 or 9.7% from its previavell of $546,763 effective in January 2015, eaclwloth were determined by t
compensation committee of the board of directorsusfgeneral partner, in consultation with the gahpartner of ETP. Mr. Owengicrease we
based principally on his increase of duties relédeTP’s acquisition of Susser in 2014.

Our compensation program is structured to provigefollowing benefits:

« reward executives with an industgmpetitive total compensation package of competibase salaries and significant incer
opportunities yielding a total compensation packaggroaching the top-quartile of the market;
e attract, retain and reward talented executive effi@nd key management employees by providing d¢otapensatic
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competitive with that of other executive officersdekey management employees employed by publialjett limited partnerships
similar size and in similar lines of business;

« motivate executive officers and key employees toeae strong financial and operational performe

« emphasize performance-based or “at-risithpensation; at

e reward individual performanc

Components of Executive Compensation
For the year ended December 31, 2014, the compemsetid to our named executive officers consistetthe following components:

¢ annual base sala

e nonequity incentive plan compensation consisting gadélcash bonuse
¢ longterm equity awards; a

*  benefit plans

Compensation Framework

During 2014, we transitioned from our pre-ETP Mergempensation framework in which nexquity compensation decisions w
determined solely by Susser to a compensation framkeproviding our general partner more control rotlee compensation of our execu
officers, including the recommendation of compeiosatby the compensation committee of the board ioéctbrs of our general partn
Additionally, premerger compensation decisions for Mr. Owens, whuafye our CEO and NEO on August 29, 2014, were realgdy by ETP'
general partner. Because our compensation commitisenot formed until late in the third quarter26f14, the compensation committee did
undertake a wholesale esraluation of the 2014 NEO compensation programsmpplace by the Susser compensation committet asr legac
NEOSs, or by the ETP general partner, as to Mr. Gwanthe beginning of the 2014 fiscal year. Mosrpeertain compensation compon-suct
as payment of performance bonusese governed by contractual provisions in the meegreement between Susser and ETP relating t©TiF
Merger. Mr. Owens, our CEO, is also a named exeeutifficer of ETP LLC, the general partner of ETAccordingly, full year 201
compensation information for Mr. Owens relatingotath his services to ETP and to us (following tAéPEMerger) is included in ETB’annue
report on Form 10-K for the 2014 fiscal year.

The compensation committee of our general parteeexglly considers relevant data available to #gsess our competitive position v
respect to base salary, annual short-term incentine longerm incentive compensation for our executive effic The compensation commi
of the board of directors of our general partneo @onsiders individual performance, levels of oesgbility, skills and experience.

Under ETPS compensation methodology, we expect that the easgiion committee will consider relevant data labé to it to asse
our competitive position with respect to base galannual short-term incentives and lalegm incentive compensation for our NEOs, as w&
each NEO's individual performance, levels of resploitity, skills and experience.

The compensation committee may also periodicaljage a thirgparty consultant to provide market information dompensation leve
at peer companies in order to assist in its detetitin of compensation levels for our executivecefls. The compensation committee may
utilize information obtained from other sources;tsas third party surveys, in its determinatiocahpensation levels for our NEOs.

Base salary. Base salary is designed to provide for a comipetifixed level of pay that attracts and retaing@nive officers, ar
compensates them for their level of responsibdityl sustained individual performance (includingezignce, scope of responsibility and res
achieved). We expect that the compensation cormenittk review the salaries of the NEOs on an antuaais.

Annual Bonuslin addition to base salary, the compensation cotamibf the board of directors of our general parengects to make
determination whether to award our named execufieers discretionary annual cash bonuses follgvilre end of the year. These discretio
bonuses, if awarded, are intended to reward ourdasmecutive officers for the achievement of finahperformance objectives during the y
for which the bonuses are awarded in light of thietigbution of each individual to our profitabilignd success during such year.

Long-Term Equity Award©ur LTIP is designed to provide maximum flexibilityith respect to the design of compensatory arnaeg:
for individuals providing services to us. The LTi#¥or the benefit of employees, consultants, anectbrs of our general partner and its affilie
who perform services for us. Each of our NEOsigildk to participate in the
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LTIP. Any awards that are made under the LTIP toexecutive officers must be approved by the badirdirectors of our general partner ¢
committee thereof that may be established for quaipose. The LTIP provides us with the flexibiltty grant unit options, restricted un
phantom units, unit appreciation rights, cash awjadistribution equivalent rights, substitute aveardnd other unibased awards, or a
combination of the foregoing. These awards arended to align the interests of plan participantel(iding our NEOs) with those of ¢
unitholders and to give plan participants the opputy to share in our lonterm performance. All awards granted to our exeeubfficers unde
the LTIP have consisted of restricted phantom umitards that are subject to vesting over a spdceriod of time. A restricted phantom t
entitles the grantee to receive a common unit upoas soon as reasonably practicable followingpti@ntom unit's settlement date. Recipi
have full distribution, but no voting rights on ffeeawards until they vest

In November 2014, the compensation committee obtiard of directors of our general partner, in cdtasion with the general partner
ETP, granted phantom units awards to Mr. Owens,Ddmwbre and Ms. Sullivan of 50,000, 15,000 and 08,0espectively. These awards, o
than the award to Mr. Susser in respect of hisisesvas the chairman of the board of directorsgevmeade in connection with the acquisitiol
Susser by ETP in 2014, and the additional respitisib to be undertaken by the NEOs as part ofdbiebined retail and marketing segmer
ETP.

Additionally, the compensation committee of theroloaf directors of our general partner, in condidtawith the general partner of E°
increased Mr. Owens’ annual lobgrm incentive target from 200% of his annual bselary to 300% of his base salary in consideraiohis
additional responsibilities related to ETP’s aciigis of Susser. Mr. Owens received two lomgm incentive awards under our LTIP for 2(
The first award of 50,000 restricted phantom umitss awarded in November 2014 by the compensatiomitiee of our general partner
consultation with the general partner of ETP. Tvisard of 50,000 was made in connection with theusttgpn of Susser by the ETP in 2014
the additional responsibilities to be undertakerMry Owens as the President and Chief Executivéc@ffof our general partner. In addition
January 2015, the compensation committee of ouergéipartner finalized and approved, in consultatidth the general partner of ETP, 2!
longterm incentive awards to legacy Sunoco, Inc. persbmnder our LTIP. Mr. Owens was awarded 39,16ricted phantom units
connection with those awards.

The issuance of common units pursuant to our eguigntive plans is intended to serve as a meaiteehtive compensation; therefc
no consideration will be payable by the plan pgrtints upon vesting and issuance of the commos.unit

As discussed below under “Potential Payments Updareination or Change of Controkertain equity awards automatically accele
upon a change in control event, which means vestirtgmatically accelerates upon a change of coimedpective of whether the officer
terminated. In addition, the aforementioned Jan20¥5 award to Mr. Owens included a provision ie #pplicable award agreement
acceleration of unvested restricted unit/restrigtdntom unit awards upon a termination of emplaynwathout “cause”For purposes of tl
awards the term “causshall mean: (i) a conviction (treating a nolo cowtere plea as a conviction) of a felony (whethanatrany right to appe
has been or may be exercised), (ii) willful refusithout proper cause to perform duties (other thiay such refusal resulting from incapacity
to physical or mental impairment), (iii) misapprigion, embezzlement or reckless or willful destiart of property of the partnership or any o
affiliates, (iv) knowing breach of any statutory @mmon law duty of loyalty to the partnership oy af its or their affiliates, (v) improp
conduct materially prejudicial to the businesstad partnership or any of its or their affiliates, Ifyi) material breach of the provisions of .
agreement regarding confidential information ertteiréo with the partnership or any of its or thaffiliates or (vii) the continuing failure
refusal to satisfactorily perform essential dutethe partnership or any of its or their affiliate

We believe that permitting the accelerated vestihgquity awards upon a change in control createisn@ortant retention tool for us
enabling employees to realize value from these dsvar the event that we undergo a change in cottaolsaction. In addition, we belie
permitting acceleration of vesting upon a changeointrol and the acceleration of vesting awardswptermination without “causéri the case «
the awards to Mr. Owens creates a sense of syainilithe course of transactions that could createnainty regarding their future employmr
and encourage these officers to remain focuseti@njbb responsibilities.

Benefit Plans. Susser historically provided compensation in fitven of other benefits, including medical, life,dal, and disabilit
insurance in line with competitive market condiso®ur NEOs have historically been eligible for zme benefit plans provided to our o
nonstore employees, including insurance plans andlsogmtal plans chosen and paid for by employeesdesoe additional coverage. At
end of fiscal 2014, Susserplans terminated and our NEOs became eligibpatticipate in plans provided by Sunoco, Inc. amt&esubstantiall
consistent with those of the terminated Sussersplan

Susser maintained a 401(k) benefit plan for theefieaf its employees. All fullime employees who were over 21 years of age ane
greater than six months tenure are eligible toigipete. Under the terms of the 401(k) plan, empks/can contribute up to 100% of their wa
subject to IRS limitations, which, for 2014, werngrally a maximum contribution amount

58




of $17,500 on maximum compensation of $260,000s&unatched 20% of the first 6% of salary thatetmployee contributes as a “guaranteed”
match. Additionally, Susser historically consideradking a discretionary match, determined in th&t fjuarter of each year, based on the
year's financial performance against internal targ&usser historically maintained a rguelified deferred compensation plan to a
compensation deferrals in addition to those alloweder the 401(k) plan. However, that plan was iteated at the time of the ETP Merger an
balances were distributed to plan participantsedife January 1, 2015, we adopted a new 401(k) folacorporate personnel providing serv

on our behalf, including our NEOs, which provides & guaranteed employer ‘matatf 50% of employee contributions, up to 10% ofh
covered employee’s base salary.

Risk Assessment Related to Our Compensation Stme

We believe our compensation plans and programsuionamed executive officers, as well as the othgployees who provide service:
us, are appropriately structured and are not redmprikely to result in material risk to us. Weliege our compensation plans and program
structured in a manner that does not promote eixeessk+taking that could harm our value or reward poomgjuént. We also believe we hi
allocated our compensation among base salary awtlahd long-term compensation in such a way amta@ncourage excessive rigidng. We
use restricted phantom units rather than unit optior equity awards because restricted phantots tetiain value even in a depressed mark
that employees are less likely to take unreasonéMe to get, or keep, options “in-the-money.” &y, the timebased vesting over five years
our long-term incentive awards ensures that oud@yeps’ interests align with those of our unithetdfor our long-term performance.

Accounting and Tax Consideration

We account for the equity compensation expenseuofgeneral partnes’ employees, including the NEOs, in accordance WitB
generally accepted accounting principles (“GAAR#Vjich requires us to estimate and record an expmssach equity award over the ves
period of the award. For performanicased restricted phantom units that are paid othtdrform of common units, the value of our comraits
on the date of grant is used for determining theeege, with an adjustment for the actual performgactors achieved. Thus, the expens
performancesased restricted phantom units payable in unitemgdly is not adjusted for changes in the tradirigepof our common units after 1
date of grant. For markétased awards, the value is determined using a Moautl® simulation. The expense for restricted phiamntinits settled |
common units is recognized ratably over the vegtiexgod. For cash compensation, the accounting mglguire us to record it as an expense i
time the obligation is accrued. Because we arerm@ahip, and our general partner is a limitedbility company, Internal Revenue Cc
(“Code”) Section 162(m) does not apply to the congagion paid to our NEOs and, accordingly, our garngartners Compensation Commiti
did not consider its impact in making the compengsatecommendations discussed above.

Tabular Information Relating to NEO and Director Compensation

As of December 31, 2014 , a total of 241,28&ntom units had been issued under the LTIP Flatal securities remaining available
issuance under the LTIP Plan as of December 314 2@te as follows:

Common Units Remaining Available for Issuance UndeOur Equity Compensation Plans

Number of
securities to be

issued upon Weighted-average Number of securities

exercise of exercise price of remaining available

outstanding outstanding for future issuance

options, warrants options, warrants under equity

Plan Category and rights and rights compensation plans (
Equity compensation plans approved by securityédrsid —  $ — 799,!
Equity compensation plans not approved by sechdtgers — —
Total — % — 799,

(1) As of January 1, 2015, the number of units aedrfor future issuances increased by 500,0002@01596, as the Partnership completed a qualifyaig
its common units during 2014.
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Summary Compensation Table

The following table provides a summary of total gamsation allocated to us in connection with theises provided to us by the NE¢
For 2014, prior to the ETP Merger, Susser andffikates allocated to us (i) 15% of the cash comgstion expense associated with the ser
provided by Mr. Susser and Ms. Sullivan, (ii) 75%fe cash compensation expense associated witethiees provided by Mr. Dewbre and
Workman, and (iii) 100% of the grant date fair valof phantom unit awards made under the LTIP Réathé NEOs and directors in 20
Following the ETP Merger, ETP began allocating 1&Rthe cash compensation expense associated witbetivices provided by Mr. Owen, i
Mrs. Sullivan's allocation of cash compensationesge allocated to us increased to 50%. Cash corummsexpenses for each NEO w
allocated on the basis of total cash compensatiomee by the NEO during the period. For purpose¢b@summary compensation table prese
below we have disaggregated that allocated expatelely among the various components reflectedtal tompensation.

Non-Equity
Incentive Plan All Other
Unit Awards Compensation ($) Compensation ($)
Name and Principal Position Year Salary (%) (1) Bonus ($) (2) (%) 3) 4) (5) Total ($)
Sam L. Susser 2014 62,30¢ (6) — 33,98¢ 56,42: 9,55¢ 162,27
Chairman of the Board 2013 75,000 (6) — 188,52: 10,22 7,07¢ 280,81¢
2012 19,72¢ (6) 16,32(  (7) — — 3,84¢ 39,89
Robert W. Owens 2014 20,50¢ 30,75t 2,275,00! — 1,217 2,327,471
President and Chief
Executive Officer
Rocky B. Dewbre 2014 236,45 — 682,50( 211,19: 13,66( 1,143,81.
Executive Vice President, 2013 173,59( — — 58,82¢ 3,57 235,99
Channel Operations 2012 41,72¢ 39,65 92,10( — 4,92¢ 178,40¢
Mary E. Sullivan 2014 70,75 — 682,50( 65,86+ 3,56¢ 822,68!
Executive Vice President, 2013 43,04( — — 7,19¢ 882 51,11¢
Chief Financial Officer 2012 10,25¢ 9,65¢ 92,10( — 1,21« 113,22¢
and Treasurer
Gail S. Workman (8) 2014 186,58 — — 111,57¢ 11,64( 309,80:
Senior Vice President, Sale
and Operations 2013 142,63: — — 57,70 2,37¢ 202,71

(1) Includes the portion of base salary paid bys8uand allocated to work performed for us by &40 during 2014, 2013 and 2012. Messrs. Susser
and Owens were only employees of affiliates ofgemeral partner for a portion of the 2014 fiscaryeAs such, the amounts above reflect only the
compensation allocated to us for the periods df #raployment (or, in the case of Mr. Owens, far freriod of time after which ETP became our
affiliate). Please see the section captioned “Gamption Discussion and Analysis-Named Executiiie€@8” for more discussion on the basis of
presentation reflected in the above table. The 26&® is pr-rated for the period subsequent to September 24.

(2) Amounts included in the bonus column are thitipn of the amounts earned for the 2012 fiscal ynd allocated to work performed for us by each
NEO. Such amounts were paid in March of the folliywear. 2012 is p-rated for the period subsequent to September 24.

(3) The amounts reported for unit awards repretbentull grant date fair value of phantom unitarged to each of our NEOs, calculated in accordance
with the accounting guidance on share-based paynéfe have adjusted our presentation of prior geasunts to be consistent with the current
guidance. 2014 unit awards reflected for Mr. Dewdimd Ms. Sullivan are subject to forfeiture upoeirtipreviously announced resignatio

(4) Beginning in 2013, certain allocated bonus amt® are being reflected as "Non-Equity IncentilnRzCompensation” in the above table, as they were
covered by Susser Holdings 162(m) Plan, which vepsaved by their shareholders during 2013. 2013wetsowere paid in March 2014. 2014
amounts were partially paid in 2014 as a resulth@ETP Merger, with the balance paid in March®2Mr. Susser's 2013 bonus includes only the
allocated portion of a cash bonus, as a portidnisobonus was awarded in shares of Susser redtgtiek, the cost of which is not allocated to

(5) The details of amounts listed “All Other Compensatic’ are presented in tt“ All Other Compensatic’ table below

(6) Mr. Susser received $100,000 of his 2012 bat#y, $150,000 of his 2013 base salary and $56@&2his 2014 base salary as shares of Susser
restricted stock instead of cash. The value ofethestricted stock grants are not included in giarg column

(7) Mr. Susser requested that he receive one-tiiihis bonus for 2012 in SUN phantom units instebdash, which were awarded in March 2013. The
grant date fair values of those phantom units efteated in the stock awards column for the yeavliich
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they were received (2013), rather than for the yleay were earned (2012). Consequently, the 20bRsoolumn for Mr. Susser does not give effect

to this award.

(8) Ms. Workman became one of our named execoffieers upon her promotion to Chief Operating ©4fiin 2013. Consequently, compensation

information was not reported for periods prior.detive with the ETP Merger, we determined that Werkman is no longer a NE(

All Other Compensation

Matching
Contributions
Perquisites to 401(k) and
and Other Deferred
Personal Compensation
Benefits Plans Other
Name Year (%) 1) (%) (2) (%) 4) Total
Sam L. Susser 2014 5,65( 3,90« — 9,55¢
2013 5,42¢ 1,64¢ —_ 7,07¢
2012 1,35¢ 2,49: — 3,84¢
Robert W. Owens 2014 — 29z 92t 1,215
Rocky B. Dewbre 2014 — 13,66( — 13,66(
2013 — 3,57¢ — 3,57¢
2012 — 4,92¢ — 4,92¢
Mary E. Sullivan 2014 — 3,56¢ — 3,56¢
2013 — 882 — 882
2012 — 1,21¢ — 1,21¢
Gail S. Workman (3) 2014 — 11,64( — 11,64(
2013 — 2,37¢ — 2,37¢

(1) For Sam L. Susser, perquisites consistedeétimated value of personal bookkeeping and tseizieservices provided by Susser
personnel. The above amounts reflect an allocatidghe total "all other compensation” attributatdeeach NEO, based on the percent
allocation of each NEO's time.

(2) Each of our NEOs is eligible to participateaid01(k) plan that is generally available to als§er employees. Additionally, certain highly
compensated employees, including our NEOs, arébkditp participate in the Susser NQDC plan. Thegtment options in the NQDC plan
mirror those available in the 401(k) plan, and dbgontain any above-market or preferential eamiyisser's contributions to the 401(k)
and NQDC plans accrued for 2012 and 2014 includdidaetionary match of 80% on the first 6% of paldeferred in addition to the 20%
guaranteed match. No discretionary match was nm&d20fl3. We were allocated a portion of this mdtctour NEOs based on the percent
allocation of each NEO's time.

(3) Ms. Workman became one of our named execofiieers upon her promotion to Chief Operating €dfiin 2013. Consequently,
compensation information is not reported for pesipdor.

(4) Includes profit sharing contributions madetBunoco, Inc. savings plan and the dollar vallgeoinsurance premiums paid on behalf of
Mr. Owens.



61




Grants of Plan-Based Awards
For Fiscal Year Ended December 31, 2014

The table below reflects awards granted to our N&@ter the LTIP Plan during 2014.

All Other
Estimated Future Payouts Stock
Under Equity Incentive Plan Awards:
Awards Number of Grant Date
Shares of Fair Value of
Type of Approval Threshold Target Maximum Stock Stock Awards
Name Grant Date Award (1) Date #) #) #) #) (1) %) (1)
Robert W. Owens  11/10/2014 Phantom units  11/10/2014 — — — 50,00( 2,275,001
Rocky B. Dewbre 11/10/2014 Phantom units  11/10/2014 — — — 15,00( 682,50(
Mary E. Sullivan 11/10/2014 Phantom units  11/10/2014 — — — 15,00¢ $ 682,50(

(1) The grant date value per unit was $45.50,thedinits vest 60% on December 5, 2017 and 40%emember 5, 2019. The reported grant date fair vaflue
stock awards was determined in compliance with FASIE Topic 718 and are more fully described in NifeUnit-Based Compensation in our Notes to
Consolidated Financial Statements. 2014 unit awafiiscted for Mr. Dewbre and Ms. Sullivan are sabjto forfeiture upon their previously announced

resignations.

Outstanding Equity Awards at December 31, 2014

The following table reflects NEO equity awards dgeahunder the LTIP Plan that were outstanding aeber 31, 2014.

Unit Awards (1)

Equity
Equity Incentive
Incentive Plan Awards:
Number Market Plan Awards: Market or
of Shares Value of Number of Payout Value of
or Units Shares or Unearned Unearned
of Stock Units Shares, Units or Shares, Units or
That That Other Rights Other Rights
Have Not Have Not That Have Not That Have Not
Vested Vested Vested Vested
Name (#) $) 2 (#) $) (2
Robert W. Owens 50,00( 2,488,50! — —
Rocky B. Dewbre 15,00( 746,55( — —
Mary E. Sullivan 15,00( 746,55( — —

(1) Reflects phantom units granted under the LHIEh. The unvested portion of these phantom unislieduled to vest 60% on December 5, 2017 andof0%
December 5, 2019. For additional information rééeNote 19-UniBased Compensation in our Notes to Consolidatedri€ial Statements. 2014 unit awe

reflected for Mr. Dewbre and Ms. Sullivan are sabje forfeiture upon their previously announcesigeations.
(2) Based on the closing market price of our commoiswfi$49.77 on December 31, 2(

Units Vested

The following table provides information regardithg vesting of phantom units held by our NEOs dyé14. There are no options

outstanding on our common units.
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Unit Awards

Number of
Units
Acquired on Value Realized on
Name Vesting (#) Vesting ($) (1)
Sam L. Susser 3,51¢ 201,32:
Rocky B. Dewbre 4,00( 228,84l
Mary E. Sullivan 4,00( 228,84(

(1) These units all vested concurrently with thesiig of the ETP Merger. The value realized refidse closing price per unit of $57.21 on AugustZ&L4.

Non-Qualified Deferred Compensation

The following table provides information regarditogal contributions by Susser and each NEO pagtitig in its non-qualified deferred
compensation plan during 2014. The table also ptesach NEO’s total earnings and year-end balandég plan. The amounts included in the
All Other Compensation table reflects the portidiBosser contributions allocated to us based oaltbeation formulas described above.

Executive Susser Aggregate Aggregate Aggregate
Contributions Contributions Earnings Withdrawals/ Balance at Last
in 2014 in 2014 in 2014 Distributions in 2014 Fiscal Year-End
Name ) @) %@ ($) (3 ($) 4 ($)
Sam L. Susser 108,45 5,20¢ 77,78¢ 4,840,36! —
Robert W. Owens (5) — — — — —
Rocky B. Dewbre 15,14 3,02¢ 24,56¢ 542,02! —
Mary E. Sullivan 9,69 1,93¢ 13,00: 334,82( —
Gail S. Workman 12,91( 2,582 5,71( 49,40¢ —

(1) The amounts shown reflect the executive’sroations to the NQDC plan during the fiscal yemportion of which are included in the salary amceintive
compensation numbers shown in the Summary Compenskdble, based on the allocation formula.

(2) The amounts included in this column reflecs&ar's total matching contributions to the NQDQp&nd only the allocated portion of those amoargs
included within the amounts reported in “All Oth@ompensation” for 2014 in the Summary Compensaketrie. The allocated amounts for the NEOs were
(in the order in which they appear) $781 , $0, $2,2$291 and $1,937 , respectively.

(3) Reflects net earnings in each participants@ccount. These amounts do not constitute abavieetrinterest or preferential earnings, and tloeeséire not
included in the Summary Compensation Table above.

(4) Susser's NQDC plan was terminated in 2014, in atfforewith the ETP Merger, and all balances westrithuted

(5) Mr. Owens is eligible to participate, and dpesticipate, in a non-qualified deferral compeigaplan administered by ETP. However, as no corsg@on
expense associated with that plan is allocated to@amounts associated with that plan are pregémthe table above.

Potential Payments Upon Termination or Change of Qatrol

Pursuant to the terms of the award agreementsdssuger the LTIP Plan, in the event of a (i) Chan§€ontrol or (ii) termination ¢
employment due to death or disability, all phantomits shall vest. In the event of a terminatioreofployment for any other reason, all phar
units that are still unvested shall be forfeited.

Under the Plan, a “Change of Contrafieans, and shall be deemed to have occurred upooromore of the following events: (i) ¢
“person” or “group”within the meaning of those terms as used in Sestk8(d) and 14(d)(2) of the Exchange Act, othantmembers of ti
General Partner, the Partnership, or an affilidteither the General Partner or the Partnershigll ffiecome the beneficial owner, by way
merger, consolidation, recapitalization, reorgatidraor otherwise, of 50% or more of the voting govef the voting securities of the Gen
Partner or the Partnership; (ii) the limited parsnef the General Partner or the Partnership ajpliovone transaction or a series of transactia
plan of complete liquidation of the General Partoerthe Partnership; (iii) the sale or other dispms by either the General Partner or
Partnership of all or substantially all of its @ssia one or more transactions to any Person dttzr an affiliate; (iv) the General Partner o
affiliate of the General Partner or the Partnersi@ipses to be the general partner of the Partpelshiany other event specified as@hange ¢
Control” in the equity incentive plan maintained 8ysser at the time of such “Change of Control;(Mdrany other event specified as @Hang:
of Control” in an applicable award agreement. Ndtatianding the above, with respect to a 409A awart;hange of Controlshall not occt
unless that Change of Control also constitutesharige in the ownership of a corporation,” a “chaimgine effective control of a corporatiorgf
a “change in the ownership of a substantial porobma corporation's assets,” in each case, withenrheaning of 1.409A&({i)(5) of the 409/
regulations, as applied to non-corporate entities.
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The following table shows the amount of incrementdlie that would have been received by each oNE®s upon certain events
termination or a change of control resulting in #lteelerated vesting of the phantom units heldusyNiEEOs on December 31, 2014:

Change of
Control
Termination with or
Due to Death Termination without Continued
or Disability for any other reason Employment
Name Benefit ($) () ($) (%) (1)
Robert W. Owens Unit Vesting 2,488,50! — 2,488,50!
Rocky B. Dewbre Unit Vesting 746,55( — 746,55(
Mary E. Sullivan Unit Vesting 746,55( — 746,55(

(1) The amounts reflected above represent theugtaf the number of phantom units that were suhligeeesting/restrictions on December 31, 2014 ipligd
by the closing price of our common units of $ 49%rithat date. 2014 unit awards reflected for Mewbre and Ms. Sullivan are subject to forfeiturerup
their previously announced resignations.

Compensation of Directors

Directors of our general partner who are not offaer employees of our general partner or ETPsoaffiliates, or directors of ETP or
affiliates, receive a compensation package inclydin annual retainer of $50,000 and an annual gfaphantom units under the LTIP PI
Additionally, a retainer and meeting fees are gaidservice on the audit, compensation and speoiaiflict committees. Prior to the ETP Mer¢
the directors of our general partner received amuahretainer of $60,000, an additional retainer dommittee chairs, and an annual grar
phantom units under the LTIP Plan.

Under the LTIP Plan, the director will forfeit alhvested phantom units upon a termination of hieedas a director for any reason. If
director ceases providing services due to deatlisability (as defined by the LTIP Plan) prior teetdate all phantom units have vested, the
restrictions lapse and all phantom units become ediately vested. If a Change of Control occursdeined under the LTIP Plan), then
unvested phantom units become fully vested aseotiglie of the Change of Control. In addition, dueators will be reimbursed for out-giacke
expenses incurred in connection with attending mgetwf the board of directors or its committees.

The following table provides a summary of compeinsgpaid to those directors for 2014 service:

Fees
Earned or

Paid in Unit Option All Other

Cash Awards Awards Compensation Total
Name ® O ® @ ®) (%) %)
Sam L. Susser 16,66 33,98¢ = — 50,65¢
Richard Brannon (3) 27,08 33,98¢ — — 61,07:
Matthew S. Ramsey 35,73 33,98¢ — — 69,72:
K. Rick Turner 34,90( 33,98¢ — — 68,88¢
William P. Williams 19,90( 33,98¢ — — 53,88¢
Rob L. Jones (3) 53,33: 70,40z — — 123,73¢
Frank A. Risch (3) 40,00( 70,40z = — 110,40:
Bryan F. Smith, Jr. (3) 46,66 70,40z — — 117,06¢

(1) The amounts in this column reflect the aggregatieidamount of fees earned or paid in cash inclgdire prorated annual retainer

(2) The amounts reported for unit awards representull grant date fair value of the awards gednn 2014, calculated in accordance with the attog
guidance on shareased payments. These amounts do not correspohe &ztual value that may be recognized by theiesti upon any disposition of ves
units and do not give effect to any decline oréase in the trading price of our common units stheeadate of grant. For a discussion of the assomgpand
methodologies used in calculating the grant datevédue of the unit awards reported above, seeN8t-Unit-Based Compensation in our Notes to
Consolidated Financial Statements.

(3) Mr. Brannon, Mr. Jones, Mr. Risch and Mr. Smate former board members. Mr. Brannon resignam four board of directors effective January 20,5201
Messrs. Jones, Risch and Smith resigned from thedtat the closing of the ETP Merger.
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The following table presents additional informati@garding unit awards granted to our non-emplalpexetors during 2014

Grant Date Fair

Unit Awards: Value of Unit and
Number of Option Awards ($)

Name Grant Date Approval Date Units (#) 1)
Sam L. Susser 11/10/2014 (2) 11/10/201+ 747 33,98¢
Richard Brannon (4) 11/10/2014 (2) 11/10/201+ 747 33,98¢
Matthew S. Ramsey 11/10/2014 (2) 11/10/201¢ 747 33,98¢
K. Rick Turner 11/10/2014 2) 11/10/201¢ 147 33,98¢
William P. Williams (4) 11/10/2014 (2) 11/10/201¢ 747 33,98¢
Rob L. Jones (5) 3/1/2014 ) 2/12/201¢ 2,11¢ 70,40:
Frank A. Risch (5) 3/1/2014 3) 2/12/201¢ 2,11¢ 70,40:
Bryan F. Smith, Jr. (5) 3/1/2014 ) 2/12/201¢ 2,11¢ 70,40:

(1) The reported grant date fair value of the ptiantinit awards was determined in compliance witlSBAASC Topic 718 and are more fully described irieNtE
Unit-Based Compensation in our Notes to Consol@i&ieancial Statements.

(2) The phantom units vest 60% on December 57 20d 40% on December 5, 2019.

(3) Reflects phantom units scheduled to vestchdr 2015, but which became fully vested uporctbsing of the ETP Merger.

(4) Mr. Brannon resigned from our board of directofedfve January 20, 2015. William P. Williams remg from our board of directors effective Decembig
2014 and was re-appointed on January 30, 2015.

(5) Messrs. Jones, Risch and Smith resigned @onboard of directors at the closing of the ETéxgyér.

The following table presents the outstanding egantyards held by our non-employee directors as aebder 31, 2014:

Unit Awards

Market Value of Units
that Have Not Vested ($)

Number of Units that

Name Have Not Vested (#) a)

Sam L. Susser 747 (2) $ 37,17¢
Richard Brannon (3) 747 (2) 37,17¢
Matthew S. Ramsey 747 (2) 37,17¢
K. Rick Turner 747 (2) 37,17¢

(1) Based on unit closing market price of $49.7Dacember 31, 2014.
(2) The unvested portion of this award will ves#&6n December 5, 2017 and 40% on December 5, 2019.
(3) Mr. Brannon resigned from our board of diresteffective January 20, 2015.

Iltem 12.  Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners andManagement and Related Unitholder Matters
SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT

The following table sets forth the beneficial owstep of common units and subordinated units of $arid® that are issued and
outstanding as of February 20, 2015 and held by:

e each person or group of persons known by us teeheflrial owners of 5% or more of our common u
¢ each director, director nominee and named execauffieer of our general partner; €

« all of our directors and executive officers of general partner, as a gro
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Common Units Percentage of Percentage of Common
Beneficially Owned  Percentage of Commons  Subordinated Units Subordinated Units and Subordinated Units

Name of Beneficial Owner (1) ) Units Beneficially Owned  Beneficially Owned Beneficially Owned Beneficially Owned
ETP (2) 4,062,84 16.9% 10,939,436 100.0% 42.8%
Oppenheimer Funds, Inc. (3) 2,129,80: 8.8% — — 6.1%
Goldman Sachs Asset Management

4) 1,412,48 5.9% — — 4.0%
UBS Group AG (5) 1,287,451 5.3% — — 3.7%
Sam L. Susser (6) 270,45: 1.1% — — *
Robert W. Owens — — — — —
Rocky B. Dewbre 18,90¢ * — — *
Mary E. Sullivan 30,00( * — — *
Christopher P. Curia 1,21« & — — &

Marshall McCrea lll — — — — _
Matthew S. Ramsey — — — — —
Martin Salinas, Jr. — — — — _
K. Rick Turner — — — — —
William P. Williams — — — — —

All executive officers and directors as
group (ten persons) 320,57 1.3% 10,939.436 100.0% *

* Represents less than 1%.

(1) As of the date set forth above, there arerremgements for any listed beneficial owner to &eqwithin 60 days common units from options,
warrants, rights, conversion privileges or simdatigations. Unless otherwise indicated, the addfesall beneficial owners in this table is
555 East Airtex Drive, Houston, Texas 77073.

(2) The address for Energy Transfer Partners, L.Pitarsdibsidiaries is 3738 Oak Lawn Avenue, Dallaak 7521

(3) The information contained in the table and th@note with respect to Oppenheimer Funds, kbaised solely on a filing on Schedule 13G
filed with the Securities and Exchange Commissioifrebruary 2, 2015. The business address of ttoetieg party is Two World Financial
center, 225 Liberty Street, New York, New York 1028

(4) The information contained in the table and fbiotnote with respect to Goldman Sachs Asset emant LP is based solely on a filing on
Schedule 13G/A filed with the Securities and Exge@ommission on February 13, 2015. The businet®ssl of the reporting party is 200
West Street, C/O Goldman Sachs & Co., New York, Nenk 10282.

(5) The information contained in the table and footnote with respect to UBS Group AG is basdelgon a filing on Schedule 13G filed with
the Securities and Exchange Commission on Janda3(5. The business address of the reporting gaBahnhofstrasse 45, PO Box CH-
8021, Zurich, Switzerland.

(6) Excludes 87,805 common units held in trustdlierbenefit of Mr. Sam L. Susser's children andriugrandchildren.

(7) Does not include unvested phantom units thet not be voted or transferred prior to vestingoABebruary 20, 2015 , there wet4¢,099,17
common units and 10,939,436 subordinated units dde¢mbe beneficially owned for purposes of thevaliable.
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The following table sets forth, as of February 2@15, the number of common units of ETP owned by ed¢hendirectors of our genel
partner and all directors and executive officerswfgeneral partner as a group.

ETP Common Units Beneficially Ownedt

Number of Common Percentage of Total Common
Name of Beneficial Owner (1) Units (2) Units (3)
Sam L. Susser (4) 1,777,26! *
Robert W. Owens 18,85t &
Rocky B. Dewbre 82,94¢ *
Mary E. Sullivan 80,16: *
Christopher P. Curia 18,54 *
Marshall McCrea lll 283,21 *
Matthew S. Ramsey — —
Martin Salinas, Jr. 53,32t &
K. Rick Turner 10,63: *
William P. Williams — —
All executive officers and directors as a group f&@sons) 2,324,93 *

*  Less than 1.0

T Although our, ETP's and ETE's common units atevating securities, officers and directors of general partner may be deemed to indirectly
beneficially own certain limited partnership intst®in us or ETP, by virtue of owning common umt&TP or ETE, respectively, or based
upon their simultaneous service as officers oratiims of ETP or ETE. Any such deemed ownershiptgeflected in the table.

(1) Unless otherwise indicated, the address for alébeial owners in this table is 555 East Airtex \&rj Houston, Texas 770°

(2) Beneficial ownership for the purposes of thewe table is determined in accordance with thesrahd regulation of the Securities and
Exchange Commission. These rules generally prawigiea person is the beneficial owner of securifidsey have or share the power to vote
or direct the voting thereof, or to dispose or ditbe disposition thereof, or have the right tquae such powers with sixty (60) days.

(3) As of February 18, 2015, there were 357, 48B¢®@mmon units of ETP deemed to be beneficially owioeghurposes of the above tal

(4) The total number of common units includes unitgltela limited partnership, the general partnewbich is controlled by Mr. Suss
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Item 13. Certain Relationships, Related Transactions and D&ctor Independence
Transactions with ETP and its Subsidiaries

The following table summarizes the distributionsl @ayments made by us to ETP or its subsidiariesg2014.

Transaction Explanation Amount/Value
2014 Quarterly distributions on limited Represents the aggregate amount of $24.8 million
partner interests held by affiliates. distributions made to affiliates of our

general partner, including Susser, in respect
of common and subordinated units during
2014.

Fuel sold to affiliates. Total revenues we recgivader the Susser $3.1 billion
Distribution Contract for fuel gallons sold
by us to affiliates of our general partner,
including Susser, for 2014.

Payments to affiliates for transportation  Total payments we made to affiliates of our $57.8 million
services. general partner, including Susser, during

2014 for transportation services under the

Susser Transportation Contract.

Bulk purchases of motor fuel from ETP andRepresents payments made to ETP and its $52.5 million
its affiliates. affiliates for bulk motor fuel purchases.

Reimbursement to our general partner for Total payment to our general partner for $18.6 million
certain allocated overhead and other reimbursement of overhead and other

expenses. expenses, including employee compensation

costs relating to employees supporting our

operations, for 2014 pursuant to the

Omnibus Agreement fiscal year.
Sale and leaseback transactions with affiliafesal amount paid by us to affiliates of our $152.1 million
of our general partner. general partner, including Susser, during

2014 for the 33 properties we acquired

pursuant to the sale and leaseback option in

our Omnibus Agreement.

Rent from affiliates. Total amount of rents weeaiged from $15.4 million
affiliates of our general partner, including
Susser, during 2014 for properties we lease
to them.

Other Transactions with Related Persons
MACS Acquisition

On September 25, 2014, we entered into a Contabuiigreement (the “Contribution Agreement”) with @&, ETC MA Acquisition
LLC (“ETC") and ETP. Pursuant to the terms of the Contributigreement, we agreed to acquire from ETC all ofifflseied and outstandi
membership interests of MACS. Pursuant to the texiise Contribution Agreement, ETP agreed to gu@eall of the obligations of ETC uni

the Contribution Agreement. We completed the adtpisof MACS on October 1, 2014. At the closingtbé MACS acquisition, we paid E
$556 million in cash and issued to ETC 3,983,54@m0on units.

68




Financing Transactions with Affiliates

Our indebtedness under our revolving credit agre¢naed term loan agreement, which was $683.4 millio the aggregate
December 31, 2014 , is guaranteed up to $180.7omliily Susser. In addition, ETP and Susser provideitcsegport to certain of our suppli
under certain of our supply contracts.

Procedures for Review, Approval and Ratification Bfansactions with Related Persol

Our general partner's audit committee's writtenrtehaequires the audit committee to review andulis with management and
independent auditor any transactions or courseealings with related parties that are signifidansize or involve terms or other considerat
that differ from those that would likely be negttid with independent parties. Our Code of Busit@ssduct and Ethics, in turn, requires tha
potential conflicts of interest (including relatpdrty transactions) be disclosed to our Generah€eluPayments to or from Susser and its affil
and the carrying out of our other performance atians pursuant to the Omnibus Agreement, the $uUdsdribution Contract, the Sus:
Transportation Agreement and the other agreemettisSusser and its affiliates entered into at ime tof our IPO, including the majority of thc
described above, do not ordinarily require addalapproval.

If a conflict or potential conflict of interest ads between our general partner or its affiliabesthe one hand, and us and our lirr
partners, on the other hand, the resolution ofsarch conflict or potential conflict will be addresisby the board in accordance with the provis
of our partnership agreement. At the discretiornthef board in light of the circumstances, the rasmiumay be determined by the board ir
entirety or by a special committee.

In the case of any sale of equity by us in whicloamer or affiliate of an owner of our general partparticipates, we anticipate that
practice will be to obtain approval of the boardtfte transaction.

For information regarding the independence of tleenimers of the board of director of our generalnmartsee “Director Independence”
under Item 10. of this annual report on Form 10-K.

Item 14. Principal Accounting Fees and Services

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTANT FEES AND SERVICES

Audit Fees

The following table presents fees for audit sewicendered by Ernst & Young LLP (“Ernst & Yound®r the audit of our annu
consolidated financial statements for 2013 and 28mtd fees billed for services rendered by Ern3tofing during the same periods.

Fiscal 2013 Fiscal 2014
Audit Fees $ 566,11 $ 851,91¢
Audit-Related Fees — —
Tax Fees — —
All Other Fees — —
Total $ 566,11( $ 851,91¢

Fees for audit services billed or expected to Bedconsisted of the audit of our annual finanstatements, reviews of our interim
financial statements, services associated with &gStration statements and other SEC matters ezwlating and financial reporting
consultations and research to comply with the stedwlof the PCAOB.

In considering the nature of services provided bysE& Young, the audit committee determined thathsservices are compatible v
the provisions of independent audit services. Tuditaommittee discussed these services with Erédung and our management to deterr
that they are permitted under the rules and reigaiconcerning auditor independence promulgatetthé&\SEC to implement the Sarbanes C
Act of 2002, as well as the American Institute efr@ied Public Accountants.
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Policy for Approval of Audit and Non-Audit Services

Our audit committee charter requires that all sswiprovided by our independent public accountaats, audit and non-audit, must be
pre-approved by the audit committee. The pre-agrovaudit and non-audit services may be giveemgttime up to a year before
commencement of the specified service.

In determining whether to approve a particular tadpermitted noraudit service, the audit committee will considenoag other thing
whether such service is consistent with maintaitirggindependence of the independent public acaatsitThe audit committee will also cons
whether the independent public accountants are faestioned to provide the most effective and @fic service to us and whether the ser
might be expected to enhance our ability to mamag®ntrol risk or improve audit quality.
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Iltem 15. Exhibits and Financial Statement Schedules

(a) Financial Statements, Financial Statement Schedulesid Exhibits - The following documents are filed a part of this Annual Report
on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2014.

1. Sunoco LP Audited Consolidated Financial Statem

Page
Report of Independent Registered Public Accourtingn F-2
Consolidated Balance Sheets for the PredecessdiCecember 31, 2013 and the Successor as of Dereditb2014 F-3

Consolidated Statements of Operations and Compsefeeimcome for the Predecessor Years Ended Deaedibe
2012, December 31, 2013 and the period Januar§14 through August 31, 2014 and the Successorgp&eptember
1, 2014 through December 31, 2014 F-4

Consolidated Statements of Changes in Partner#yHquthe Predecessor Years Ended December 32,20
December 31, 2013 and the period January 1, 20dd4gh August 31, 2014 and the Successor periockSdyetr 1,
2014 through December 31, 2014 F-6

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the Besder Years Ended December 31, 2012, Decemb2033,and
the period January 1, 2014 through August 31, 20f#the Successor period September 1, 2014 thidagbémber 31,
2014 F-7

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements F-9

2. Financial Statement Schedules - No scheduéemealuded because the required information ispltieg@ble or is presented in the
consolidated financial statements or related nibte®to.

3. Exhibits:

The list of exhibits attached to this Annual ReportForm 10-K is incorporated herein by reference.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 1é&f(the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the Regyisthas duly caused this Annual
Report on Form 10-K to be signed on its behalfi®/undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.

Sunoco LP
By: Sunoco GP LLC, its general partner
By: /sl Robert W. Owens

Robert W. Owens
President and Chief Executive Officer
(On behalf of the registrant, and in his capyaa#t principal executive officer)

Date: February 27, 2015

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities &xgh Act of 1934, this Annual Report on Form 10as been signed below by the
following persons on behalf of the registrant amthie capacities and on the dates indicated.

Signature Title Date
/s/ Robert W. Owens Director, President and Chief Executive Officer February 27, 2015
Robert W. Owens (Principal Executive Officer)
/sl Mary E. Sullivan Executive Vice President and Chief Financialicgif February 27, 2015
Mary E. Sullivan (Principal Financial Officen@ Principal Accounting Officer)
/sl Sam L. Susser Chairman of the Board February 27, 2015

Sam L. Susser

/sl Christopher P. Curia Director February 27, 2015
Christopher P. Curia

/sl Marshall McCrea Ill Director February 27, 2015
Marshall McCrea lll

/sl Matthew S. Ramsey Director February 27, 2015
Matthew S. Ramsey

/s/ Martin Salinas, Jr. Director February 27, 2015
Martin Salinas, Jr.

/sl K. Rick Turner Director February 27, 2015
K. Rick Turner

/s/ William P. Williams Director February 27, 2015
William P. Williams
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accountingrirm

The Board of Directors of Sunoco GP LLC and
Unitholders of Sunoco LP

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balsineets of Sunoco LP (formerly Susser Petroleammé&'s LP) as of December 31, 2014
and 2013, and the related consolidated stateménfseoations and comprehensive income, partneaityegnd cash flows for the periods from
September 1, 2014 through December 31, 2014 andah, 2014 through August 31, 2014, and the yeaded December 31, 2013 and 2012.
These financial statements are the responsibilithePartnership's management. Our responsilility express an opinion on these financial
statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with thedstials of the Public Company Accounting OversighafBqUnited States). Those standards
require that we plan and perform the audit to abtaasonable assurance about whether the finastataiments are free of material misstatement.
An audit also includes examining, on a test basiglence supporting the amounts and disclosurdifinancial statements. An audit also
includes assessing the accounting principles usddignificant estimates made by management, dsawelvaluating the overall financial
statement presentation. We believe that our apdigide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements referr@dbove present fairly, in all material respedtis,donsolidated financial position of Sunoco LP at
December 31, 2014 and 2013, and the consolidasedtsef its operations and its cash flows forgleeods from September 1, 2014 through
December 31, 2014 and January 1, 2014 through ABJL2014, and the years ended December 31, 2@12@12, in conformity with U.S.
generally accepted accounting principles.

We also have audited, in accordance with the stasd# the Public Company Accounting Oversight Bio@/nited States), Sunoco LP’s internal
control over financial reporting as of December3&114, based on criteria established in Internait@dIntegrated Framework issued by the
Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Tred®ommission (1992 Framework) and our report deiatuary 27, 2015 expressed an
unqualified opinion thereon.

/s/ ERNST & YOUNG LLP

Houston, Texas
February 27, 2015




Sunoco LP
Consolidated Balance Sheets

Predecessor

December 31,
2013

Assets
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents

Accounts receivable, net of allowance for doubsfttounts of $323 and $1,220 at December 31, 20:
and 2014, respectively

Receivables from affiliate@ACS: $3,484 at December 31, 2014)
Inventories, net
Other current assets

Successor

December 31,
2014

(in thousands, except units)

$ 8,15(

69,00t
49,87¢
11,12:

66

Total current assets
Property and equipment, né@MACS: $45,340 at December 31, 2014)
Other assets:

Marketable securities

Goodwill

Intangible assets, net

Deferred tax asset, long-term portion

Other noncurrent ass€tdACS: $3,665 at December 31, 2014)

138,22:
180,12

25,95;
22,82
22,77

18¢

Total assets

$ 390,08

Liabilities and equity
Current liabilities:
Accounts payabl@MACS: $6 at December 31, 2014)
Accounts payable to affiliates
Accrued expenses and other current liabili{MACS: $484 at December 31, 2014)
Current maturities of long-term deff!ACS: $8,422 at December 31, 2014)

$ 110,43:

11,427
52t

Total current liabilities

Revolving lines of credit

Long-term deb{MACS: $48,029 at December 31, 2014)
Deferred tax liability, long-term portion

Other noncurrent liabilitieEMACS: $1,190 at December 31, 2014)

122,38
156,21(
29,41¢
222
2,15¢

Total liabilities

310,39:

Commitments and contingencies:
Partners' capital:
Limited partner interest:

Common unitholders - public (10,936,352 units issaed outstanding as of December 31, 2013 and
20,036,329 units issued and outstanding as of DieeeB1, 2014)

Common unitholders - affiliated (79,308 units is$aad outstanding as of December 31, 2013 and
4,062,848 units issued and outstanding as of DeeeB1h 2014)

Subordinated unitholders - affiliated (10,939,43@&sissued and outstanding at each December 338,
and December 31, 2014)

210,26
1,56:

(132,139

Total partners' capital
Noncontrolling interest

79,69:

Total equity

79,69:

Total liabilities and equity

$ 390,08

$ 67,15:

64,08:
36,71¢
48,64¢

8,54¢

225,14:
905,46!

863,45¢
172,10t
14,89:
16,41¢

14,89:

$ 2,197,48

$ 95,93:
3,117

41,88

13,757

154,68:
683,37¢
173,38

49,30¢

1,060,74!

874,68t
31,37¢

236,31(

1,142,371
(5,649

1,136,73

$ 2,197,48

Parenthetical amounts represent assets and ligsliattributable to consolidated variable interestities of Mid-Atlantic Convenience Stores, LLAGS) as of the year ended

December 31, 2014.

See accompanying notes






Sunoco LP

Consolidated Statements of Operations and Comprehsive Income

Revenues:
Motor fuel sales to third parties
Motor fuel sales to affiliates
Merchandise sales
Rental income
Other income

Total revenues

Cost of sales:
Motor fuel cost of sales to third parties
Motor fuel cost of sales to affiliates
Merchandise cost of sales
Other

Total cost of sales

Gross profit

Operating expenses:
General and administrative
Other operating
Rent

Loss (gain) on disposal of assets and impairmeantgeh
Depreciation, amortization and accretion

Total operating expenses

Income from operations

Interest expense, net

Income before income taxes

Income tax expense

Net income and comprehensive income

Less: Net income and comprehensive income atttiteita

noncontrolling interest

Net income and comprehensive income attributabpattmers
Less: Predecessor income prior to initial publiefiig on

September 25, 2012

Partners' interest in net income subsequent talipitiblic

offering

Predecessor Successor

September 1,

January 1, 2014 2014 through

Year ended Year ended through August December 31,
December 31, 201 December 31, 201 31, 2014 2014

(dollars in thousands, except unit and per unit aonas)

$ 1,73809 $  1,502,78 $ 127542 | $ 941,24
2,570,75 2,974,12; 2,200,39. 873,84
— | — 52,27

5,04¢ 10,06( 11,69( 16,02(
7,51¢ 5,611 4,68: 6,447
4,321,41; 4,492,57" 3,492,18 1,889,82
1,704,80. 1,476,47" 1,252,14. 872,98
2,562,97! 2,942,52! 2,177,02 861,47
— — — 38,82(

2,13( 2,611 2,33¢ 1,30z
4,269,91 4,421,61! 3,431,50: 1,774,58
51,50: 70,96 60,68 115,24
12,01 16,81« 17,078 16,35¢
5,17¢ 3,187 4,96¢ 29,28¢
3,521 1,01¢ 72¢ 3,45¢
341 324 (39) 2,67(
7,031 8,681 10,45’ 16,49¢
28,09( 30,02¢ 33,18¢ 68,27:
23,41 40,93¢ 27,498 46,97:
(809) (3,47)) (4,767) (9,567)
22,60: 37,46 22,72t 37,41(
(5,039 (440) (21¢) (2,139
17,57 37,02 22,51( 35,27¢
— — — 1,04¢
17,57 37,02 22,51( 34,23:
8,42( — — —
9,15 $ 37,027 $ 2251 | $ 34,23




Successor

Predecessor
Year ended Year ended
December 31, December 31,
2012 2013

January 1, 2014
through August
31, 2014

September 1, 201.

through
December 31,
2014

(dollars in thousands, except unit and per unit aomts)

Net income per limited partner unit:
Common - basic and diluted $ 04z $ 1.6¢
Subordinated - basic and diluted $ 04z $ 1.6¢

Weighted average limited partner units outstanding:

Common units - basic 10,939,43 10,964,25

Common units - diluted 10,943,15 10,986,10

Subordinated units - affiliated (basic and diluted) 10,939,43 10,939,43
Cash distribution per unit $0.47 $1.84

See accompanying notes
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$ 1.0z
$ 1.0Z

11,023,61
11,048,74
10,939,43

$1.02

$
$

0.8t
0.8¢

20,572,37
20,578,75
10,939,43

$1.15




Sunoco LP
Consolidated Statements of Changes in Partners' Edy

Predecessor
Susser Petroleun] Common Units- Common Units- Subordinated Noncontrolling
(in thousands) Company, LLC Public Affiliated Units-Affiliated Interest Total Equity
Predecessor:
Balance at December 31, 2011 $ 115,81 | $ — % — % — 3 — —
Net income through September 24,
2012 8,42( — — — — —
Balance at September 24, 2012 124,23: — — — — —
Net liabilities not assumed by the
Partnership (54,657 — — — — —
Allocation of net Susser investment
unitholders (69,58() — 91 69,48¢ — 69,58(
Proceeds from initial public offering,
net of underwriters' discount — 210,64 — — — 210,64
Offering costs — (4,497 — — — (4,497
Cash distributions to Susser — — (273) (206,069 — (206,347)
Distribution to unitholders — (311 — — — (311
Unit-based compensation — 51 — 50 — 101
Partnership net income September
2012 through December 31, 2012 — 4,56¢ 7 4,57¢ — 9,15(
Balance at December 31, 2012 — 210,46:. (175) (131,95) — 78,33:
Equity issued to Susser — — 2,00C — — 2,00¢
Cash distributions to Susser — — (316 (19,659 — (19,969
Cash distributions to unitholders — (19,639 — — — (19,639
Unit-based compensation — 96t 3 967 — 1,93t
Partnership net income — 18,47 50 18,50t — 37,02
Balance at December 31, 2013 — 210,26¢ 1,562 (132,139 — 79,69
Cash distributions to Susser — — (184) (16,489 — (16,66%)
Cash distributions to unitholders — (16,489 — — — (16,489
Unit-based compensation — 2,34( 16 2,33¢ — 4,692
Unit retirements — (125) — — — (125)
Partnership net income — 11,217 80 11,21 — 22,51(
Balance at August 31, 2014 — 207,21¢ 1,47¢ (135,07 — 73,61"
Successor:
Allocation of ETP merger "push
down" — 253,23 2,65¢ 366,27¢ — 622,16¢
Equity offering, net — 405,10« — — — 405,10«
Contribution of MACS from ETP — — 591,52( — (6,687) 584,83:
Cash distribution to ETP for MACS — — (565,81°) — — (565,81°)
Cash distributions to unitholders — (10,35¢) (2,472) (5,970 — (18,799
Unit-based compensation — 74¢ 93 547 — 1,38¢
Partnership net income — 18,73¢ 3,921 10,53( 1,04: 34,23
Balance at December 31, 2014 $ — 1| $ 874,68 $ 31,37¢ $ 236,31 $ (5,649 $ 1,136,73

See accompanying notes




Sunoco LP

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

Cash flows from operating activities:
Net income
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net caskigeal by
operating activities:
Depreciation, amortization and accretion
Amortization of deferred financing fees
Loss (gain) on disposal of assets and impairmeantgeh
Non-cash unit based compensation expense
Deferred income tax
Changes in operating assets and liabilities, net of
acquisitions:
Accounts receivable
Accounts receivable from affiliates
Inventories
Other assets
Accounts payable
Accounts payable to affiliates
Accrued liabilities
Other noncurrent liabilities

Predecessor

Successor

Year ended Decembe

Year ended

January 1, 2014
through August

September 1, 2014
through December

Net cash provided by operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities:

Capital expenditures

Purchase of intangibles

Purchase of marketable securities

Redemption of marketable securities

Acquisition of MACS, net of cash acquired
Acquisition of Aloha, net of cash acquired
Proceeds from disposal of property and equipment

Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities

Cash flows from financing activities:

Proceeds from issuance of long-term debt

Payments on long-term debt

Revolver, net

Loan origination costs

Proceeds from issuance of common units, net ofinffecosts
Distributions to Parent

Other cash from financing activities, net

Distributions to Unitholders

Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities

Net increase (decrease) in cash

31, 2012 December 31, 2013 31, 2014 31, 2014
(in thousands)

17,57C % 37,020 % 22,51( $ 34,23:
7,031 8,681 10,45 16,49¢
10z 381 31z 1,98
341 324 (39 2,67(
911 1,93¢ 4,692 1,38¢
2,42¢ 70 (19 (90€)
(57,745 (16,087 (3,939 39,72¢
(36,36¢) 9,664 (22,819 38,90
(7,912 (7,777) (10,559 4,49(
(63) 757 (93¢€) 3,141
93,19: 9,691 30,83¢ (79,809
— — — 672
(2,272) 6,32¢ 1,71 12,11(
(730 (31¢) 1,13¢ (2,496
16,48¢ 50,68( 33,36: 72,611
(41,499 (113,59() (89,330 (82,015
(2,519 (2,667) (3,660 (1,29¢)
(497,420 (844,359 — —
349,16: 966,67: 25,95: —
— — — (505,019
— — — (236,40
1,321 297 — —
(190,949 6,35¢ (67,03¢) (824,73))
180,66t — — —
(32,529 (137,17 (25,88)) (1,93
35,59( 120,62( 88,38( 438,78t
(1,909 (270 — (7,587
206,15¢ — — 405,10¢
(206,347 (19,969 (16,66%) (8,442)
(354) 784 (125) —
(317 (19,63 (16,489 (10,35¢)
180,97: (55,640 29,22 815,57¢
6,51 1,39¢ (4,455 63,45¢




Predecessor Successor
January 1, 2014 September 1, 2014
Year ended Decembe Year ended through August through December
31, 2012 December 31, 2013 31, 2014 31, 2014
(in thousands)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period 24C 6,752 8,15( 3,69t
Cash and cash equivalents at end of period $ 6,75z $ 8,15( $ 3,69¢ $ 67,151
Supplemental disclosure of non-cash investing actties:
"Pushdown" accounting from ETP merger — — — $ 624,21!
Contribution of MACS assets from ETP — = = $ 584,83:
Supplemental disclosure of non-cash financing actites:
Contribution of net assets from Susser $ (69,58() — — —
Contribution of debt from Susser —  $ (21,850 — —
Issuance of units to Susser for net assets — % (2,000 — —
Increase in partners' equity related to ETP Merger — — — $ 622,16¢
Issuance of common units to ETP — — = $ 212,00:
Supplemental disclosure of cash flow information:
Interest paid $ 94C $ 3,35¢ $ 4,51¢ $ 7,652
Income taxes paid $ —  $ 18 $ — $ 1,60(

See accompanying notes
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Sunoco LP
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

1. Organization and Principles of Consolidatior

The Partnership was formed in June 2012 by Susse#dirgis Corporation ("Susser") and its wholly owrmsdbsidiary, Sunoco GP LI
(“SGP”, formerly known as Susser Petroleum Partners GP Lb@) general partner. On September 25, 2012, weplated our initial publi
offering (“IPO”") of 10,925,00Gcommon units representing limited partner intereBte information presented in this annual reporttains th
audited consolidated financial results of SussdroReim Company LLC ("SPC"), for periods presentbtbugh September 24, 2012. -
consolidated financial results for the year endestédnber 31, 2012 also include the results of ojpasatfor the Partnership for the per
beginning September 25, 2012, the date the Pahnipezemmenced operations. See Note 2 for furthfernmation.

On April 27, 2014, Susser entered into an Agreeraet Plan of Merger with Energy Transfer PartnerB, (“ETP”) and certain oth
related entities, under which ETP would acquire @ahéstanding common shares of Susser ("ETP Mergéhiy transaction was completed
August 29, 2014. By acquiring Susser, ETP acqui@6 of the noreconomic general partner interest and incentivigiliigion rights in us, ar
directly and indirectly acquired approximately 1in@lion of our common and subordinated units (esganting approximately 50.166 our thel
outstanding units). Unvested phantom units thaeveartstanding on April 27, 2014 vested upon corngriedf the ETP Merger. See Note 4
further information.

Effective October 27, 2014, Susser Petroleum PaxthB (ticker symbol: SUSP) changed its name tooSarLP ("SUN", ticker symbc
SUN). These changes align the Partnership's leghhsarketing name with that of ETP's iconic breBiginoco. As used in this document, the t
"Partnership”, "SUN", "we", "us" or "our", should lunderstood to refer to Sunoco LP including, ptioOctober 27, 2014, Susser Petrol
Partners LP.

The consolidated financial statements are compade8unoco LP, a publicly traded Delaware limitedtpership, its majorityewnec
subsidiaries, and variable interest entities (VIEs)which it is the primary beneficiary. We distwile motor fuels in Texas, New Mexi
Oklahoma, Louisiana, Kansas, Virginia, Marylandniessee, Georgia and Hawaii. Starting in fiscal20i are also an operator of convenit
retail stores in Virginia, Maryland, Tennessee, @&n and Hawaii. Our recent acquisitions are ideghto complement and expand our whole
distribution business. Results of operations fer Mid-Atlantic Convenience Stores ("MACS") acquisitiomethed a transaction between ent
under common control, have been included in ousclidated results of operations since Septemb2014, the initial date of common cont
See Note 4 for further information.

Prior to the fourth quarter of 2014, we operatedbusiness as one segment, which was primarilygadya wholesale fuel distribution. W
the addition of convenience store operations weetelded a retail operating segment. Our primaryatipes are conducted by the follow
consolidated wholly owned subsidiaries:

. Susser Petroleum Operating Company LLC ("SPOC'Dekaware limited liability company, distributes raptfuel to Susser's retail &
consignment locations, as well as third party custis in Texas, New Mexico, Oklahoma and Louisiana.
. T&C Wholesale LLC and Susser Energy Services LLdthTexas limited liability companies, distribute@tor fuels, propane and lubricat
oils, primarily in Texas, Oklahoma and Kansas.
. Susser Petroleum Property Company LLC (“PropCa’Pelaware limited liability company, primarily owrand leases convenience s
properties.
. Southside Oil, LLC and MACS Retail LLC, both Virggnlimited liability companies (collectively "MACS$," distribute motor fuel and ov
and operate convenience stores, respectively, ghinma Virginia, Maryland, Tennessee, and Georgia.
. Aloha Petroleum, Ltd, a Hawaii corporation, distitdss motor fuel and owns and operates convenig¢ooesson the Hawaiian islan

All significant intercompany accounts and transatdihave been eliminated in consolidation.
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2. Initial Public Offering

On September 20, 2012 , the Partnership’s publitneon units began trading on the New York Stock Bxgfe under the symbol “SUSP”.
On September 25, 2012 , we completed the IPO 8250000 common units at a price of $20.50 per Hffective October 27, 2014, our public
common units began trading under the symbol "SUN".

In connection with the IPO, the following transact occurred:

Susser contributed to the Partnership substantdilyf its wholesale motor fuel distribution busss, other than its motor fuel consignment
business and transportation assets, which included:

. marketer, distributor and supply agreements;
. fuel supply agreements to distribute motor foetdnvenience stores and other retail fuel outlets;
. real property owned in fee and personal property;
. leases and subleases under which it was a teanaoht;
. leases and subleases under which it was a lahdlor
The property and equipment was contributed by Suswtits subsidiaries in exchange for:

. 14,436 common units and 10,939,436 subordinatéd,uepresenting at the time, an aggregate 5Urhfed partner interest in the
Partnership;

. All of the incentive distribution rights; and
. An aggregate cash distribution of $206.0 million

All of the contributed assets and liabilities wezeorded at historical cost as this transactionceasidered to be a reorganization of entities
under common control.

We received net proceeds of $206.2 million fromshke of 10,925,000 units, net of related offeemgenses. Additionally, we entered into
a term loan and security agreement (“Term Loanfylrich we borrowed $180.7 million and entered at$250.0 million revolving credit
agreement (“2012 Revolver”), which together werargnteed by Susser in a maximum aggregate amo@®i86t7 million . See Note 11 for
additional information regarding our credit andridoan facilities.

The following is a summary of statement of operatiand cash flow information for the year endededdmer 31, 2012 disaggregated
between the period before and after the IPO:

January 1, 2012 September 25, 2012
through September 24, through December 31, Year ended December
2012 2012 31, 2012

(in thousands)

Revenues $ 3,240,27 $ 1,081,14 $ 4,321,411
Cost of sales 3,204,27 1,065,63: 4,269,911
Gross profit 35,99 15,50¢ 51,50z
Total operating expenses 22,49¢ 5,59¢ 28,09(
Income from operations 13,49¢ 9,91« 23,41:
Interest expense, net (269) (540) (809)
Income before income taxes 13,22¢ 9,37¢ 22,60:
Income tax expense (4,809 (229 (5,039
Net income $ 8,42( $ 9,15 $ 17,57(




January 1, 2012

through September 24,

September 25, 2012

through December 31,

Year Ended December

2012 2012 31, 2012
(in thousands)

Cash flows from operating activities:
Net cash provided by operating activities $ 9,18: $ 7,308 % 16,48t
Cash flows from investing activities:
Purchase of intangibles and capital expenditures (9,806 (34,200 (44,009
Purchase of marketable securities — (497,429) (497,420)
Redemption of marketable securities — 349,16. 349,16.
Proceeds from disposal of property and equipment 754 567 1,321
Net cash used in investing activities (9,057) (181,89) (190,949
Cash flows from financing activities:
Proceeds from issuance of long-term debt — 216,25t 216,25t
Loan origination costs — (1,907 (1,907
Payments on long-term debt 17 (32,509 (32,529
Proceeds from issuance of common units, net ofinffecosts — 206,15: 206,15:
Distributions to Susser — (206,347) (206,347)
Cash retained by Susser (354) — (354)
Distributions to Unitholders — (311) (31))
Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities (377) 181,34 180,97:
Net increase (decrease) in cash (240 6,752 6,51%
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 24C — 24C
Cash and cash equivalents at end of period $ — % 6,75 $ 6,752

3.  Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Fiscal Year

The Partnership uses calendar month accountinggserand ends its fiscal year on December 31.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in confoymiith accounting principles generally acceptethie United States requires
management to make estimates and assumptiondféetthe reported amounts of assets and lialsliied disclosure of contingent assets and
liabilities at the date of the financial statemeantsl the reported amounts of revenues and expdnseg the reporting period. Actual results cc
differ from those estimates.

Consolidation of Variable Interest Entities

The Partnership uses a qualitative approach irssisgethe consolidation requirement for variabternest entities. The approach focuses
on identifying which enterprise has the power tecli the activities that most significantly imp#ue variable interest entity’s economic
performance and which enterprise has the obligati@bsorb losses or the right to receive benéita the variable interest entity. In the event
that the Partnership is the primary beneficiarg ofiriable interest entity, the assets, liabiljteesd results of operations of the variable interes
entity will be included in the Partnership’s conidated financial statements.

Fair Value Measurements

We use fair value measurements to measure, ambagiteéms, purchased assets and investments, eadeterivative contracts. We
also use them to assess impairment of propergespment, intangible assets, and goodwill.

Where available, fair value is based on observataleket prices or parameters, or is derived front quices or parameters. Where
observable prices or inputs are not available ofismobservable prices or inputs are used to etgitha
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current fair value, often using an internal valoatmodel. These valuation techniques involve s@wel lof management estimation and judgment,
the degree of which is dependent on the item bedhged.

Segment Reportin

Beginning with the acquisition of MACS in 2014, wperate our business in two primary segments, dotthich are included as
reportable segments. Our retail segment operatego@nce stores selling a variety of merchandis®] items, services and motor fuel. Our
wholesale segment sells motor fuel to our retajhsent and external customers (see Note 20).

Acquisition Accounting

Acquisitions of assets or entities that includeuitspand processes and have the ability to credpeisuare accounted for as business
combinations. The purchase price is recorded fugibde and intangible assets acquired and liagdiissumed based on fair value. The excess of
fair value of the consideration conveyed over tievalue of the net assets acquired is recordgmagwill. The Consolidated Statements of
Operations and Comprehensive Income for the yagasepted include the results of operations for @adfuisition from their respective date of
acquisition.

Acquisitions from entities under common controliged are accounted for similar to a pooling o€nessts, in which the acquired assets
and assumed liabilities are recognized at theiphiscarrying values. The results of operationghefaffiliated business acquired are reflected in
the Partnership's consolidated results of operati@ginning on the date of common control.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash on handyrdkdeposits, and short-term investments with maiginaturities of three months or
less, but exclude debt or equity securities clesbiis marketable securities.

Marketable Securitie:

Debt or equity securities are classified into thiéofving reporting categories: held-to-maturitygdmg or available-fosale securities. Tl
investments in debt securities at December 31, 20hi&h mature in one year or less, were classHigetield-to-maturity and valued at amortized
cost, which approximates fair value. The fair vadfienarketable securities is measured using Lewapats (see Note 11 for more information
concerning fair value measurements). At Decembg@13, included in the marketable securities line itemtlee Consolidated Balance Sheet
approximately $16.0 million in money market fun@lee carrying value of these money market funds@pprated fair value as of the balance
sheet date and were measured using Level 1 inplgsgross unrecognized holding gains and losseS@scember 31, 2013 were not material.
These investments were previously used as colldatesgcure the Term Loan and were redeemed ifirdiguarter of 2014.

Accounts Receivabl

The majority of trade receivables are from wholega&l customers and amounts due from credit camtpanies related to retail credit card
transactions. Wholesale customer credit is extebdsdd on evaluation of the customer's financiatlition. Receivables are recorded at face
value, without interest or discount. The Partngrghovides an allowance for doubtful accounts basehistorical experience and on a specific
identification basis. Credit losses are recordearesy the allowance when accounts are deemed entble.

Receivables from affiliates have risen from tratisas with non-consolidated affiliates and are ity due to the sale of fuel and other
miscellaneous transactions with Susser. Theseviadules are recorded at face value, without interediscount.

Inventories

Fuel inventories are stated at the lower of cosharket. Effective September 1, 2014, we adoptedast-in-first-out (LIFO) inventory
method for fuel inventories to align our accountpoddicy with that of ETP. Prior to September 1, 20del inventories were valued at average
cost. Merchandise inventories are stated at therd@fvaverage cost, as determined by the retadritory method, or market. We record an
allowance for shortages and obsolescence relatingetchandising inventory based on historical tsegmad any known changes. Shipping and
handling costs are included in the cost of mercis@ndventories.




Advertising Cost:
Advertising costs are expensed as incurred.
Property and Equipmen

Property and equipment are recorded at cost. Diggi@t is computed on a straight-line basis overukeful lives of the assets, estimated
to be forty years for buildings, three to fifteegays for equipment and thirty years for storagkgaAssets under capital leases are depreciated
over the life of the corresponding lease.

Amortization of leasehold improvements is basedupe shorter of the remaining terms of the leasgading renewal periods that are
reasonably assured, or the estimated useful lvieish approximate twentyears. Expenditures for major renewals and bettetsritbat extend th
useful lives of property and equipment are cagitali Maintenance and repairs are charged to opesadis incurred. Gains or losses on the
disposition of property and equipment are recoiidete period incurred.

Long-Lived Assets

Long-ived assets (including intangible assets) aretefir possible impairment whenever events or chsungcircumstances indicate
carrying amount of the asset may not be recover#fhledicators exist, the estimated undiscountgdre cash flows related to the asset are
compared to the carrying value of the asset. Ittreying value is greater than the estimated wodisted future cash flow amount, an impairr
charge is recorded within loss on disposal of assetl impairment charge in the statement of omgrsfior amounts necessary to reduce the
corresponding carrying value of the asset to falo®. The impairment loss calculations require rgangent to apply judgment in estimating fu
cash flows and the discount rates that reflectidieinherent in future cash flows.

Goodwiill

Goodwill represents the excess of consideratiod pagr fair value of net assets of businesses esjuisoodwill and intangible assets
acquired in a purchase business combination aceded at fair value as of the date acquired. Aeglintangibles determined to have an
indefinite useful life are not amortized, but anetead tested for impairment at least annually,aaadested for impairment more frequently if
events and circumstances indicate that the asgét imé impaired. The annual impairment test of galbénd indefinite lived intangible assets is
performed as of the first day of the fourth quadieeach fiscal year.

The Partnership uses qualitative factors to detegmihether it is more likely than not (likelihoofiroore than 50%) that the fair value of a
reporting unit is less than its carrying amountjuding goodwill.

Based upon the analysis of qualitative factors tagnership determines if it is more likely thast that the reporting unit has a fair value
which exceeds the carrying value. Some of the tpiadé factors considered in applying this testude the consideration of macroeconomic
conditions, industry and market considerationst faxtors affecting the business, the overall feiahperformance of the business and the
performance of the unit price of the Partnership.

If qualitative factors are not deemed sufficientémclude that the fair value of the reporting undre likely than not exceeded the carrying
value of the reporting unit, then the two-step apph would be applied in making an evaluationtép ®ne, multiple valuation methodologies,
including a market approach (market price multiglesomparable companies) and an income approastof{thted cash flow analysis) would be
used. The computations require management to nigikidicant estimates and assumptions. Criticahestes and assumptions that are used as
part of these evaluations would include, amongrdttiags, selection of comparable publicly tradechpanies, the discount rate applied to future
earnings reflecting a weighted average cost oftaebyzte, and earnings growth assumptions. A distealicash flow analysis requires management
to make various assumptions about sales, openatamgins, capital expenditures, working capital grmvth rates.

If after assessing the totality of events or cirstamces an entity determines that it is more likiefyn not that the fair value of a reporting
unit is greater than its carrying amount then penfog the two-step test is unnecessary.

If the estimated fair value of a reporting unitdss than the carrying value, a second step iseeid to compute the amount of the
impairment by determining an “implied fair valuef’goodwill. The determination of the Partnershiirsplied fair value” requires the Partnership
to allocate the estimated fair value of the repgrtinit to the assets and liabilities of the
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reporting unit. Any unallocated fair value reprasahe “implied fair value’df goodwill, which is compared to the correspondiagrying value. |
the "implied fair value" is less than the carryiregue, an impairment charge would be recorded.

Other Intangible Assets

Other finite-lived intangible assets consist of@y@greements, customer relations, non-compeateenames, loan origination costs and
favorable lease arrangements. Separable intaragiskets that are not determined to have an indefifétare amortized over their useful lives and
assessed for impairment only if and when circunt&amnvarrant. The determination of the fair markati® of the intangible asset and the
estimated useful life are based on an analysifi pedinent factors including (1) the use of wiglelccepted valuation approaches, the income
approach or the cost approach, (2) the expectedfube asset by the Partnership, (3) the expadetul life of related assets, (4) any legal,
regulatory or contractual provisions, includingeefal or extension period that would cause substiaciists or modifications to existing
agreements, and (5) the effects of obsolescenosamt competition, and other economic factors. 8hany of the underlying assumptions
indicate that the value of the intangible assetghiribe impaired, we may be required to reduce &ng/ing value and subsequent useful life of the
asset. If the underlying assumptions governingathertization of an intangible asset were latermeiteed to have significantly changed, we may
be required to adjust the amortization period ehsasset to reflect any new estimate of its uddéulAny write-down of the value or unfavorable
change in the useful life of an intangible assetildancrease expense at that time.

Debt issuance costs are being amortized usinghiglst-line method, over the term of the debt. [By@greements are being amortized
on a straight-line basis over the remaining terfrth® agreements, which generally range from fovéfteen years. Favorable lease arrangements
are amortized on a straight-line basis over theameimg lease terms.

Environmental Liabilities

Environmental expenditures related to existing dions, resulting from past or current operationd &om which no current or future
benefit is discernible, are expensed by the PatiierExpenditures that extend the life of theteglgroperty or prevent future environmental
contamination are capitalized. We determine anabéish a liability on a site-by-site basis wheisiprobable and can be reasonably estimated. A
related receivable is recorded for estimable prigbsmbursements.

Revenue Recognitio

Revenues from our two primary product categoriestomfuel and merchandise, are recognized at the tihat fuel is delivered to the
customer or at the time of sale. Revenue recognitioconsignment sales differ and are discussgcemter detail below. Shipment and deliver
motor fuel generally occurs on the same day. The®ahip charges its wholesale customers for 4béndy transportation costs, which are
recorded net in cost of sales. Through PropCowtadly owned corporate subsidiary, we may sell métel to wholesale customers on a
consignment basis, in which we retain title to imeey, control access to and sale of fuel inventand recognize revenue at the time the fuel is
sold to the ultimate customer. We derive otherinedrom rental income, propane and lubricating aild other ancillary product and service
offerings. In our retail segment, we derive otmsoime from lottery ticket sales, money orders, giephone cards and wireless services, ATM
transactions, car washes, movie rentals and ottegtaay product and service offerings. We recadanue on a net commission basis when the
product is sold and/or services are rendered.

Rental Income

Rental income from operating leases is recognized the term of the lease on a straight line basis.
Cost of Sales

We include in cost of sales all costs we incurdguare fuel and merchandise, including the costsunEhasing, storing and transporting
inventory prior to delivery to our customers. Iteane removed from inventory and are included irt obsales based on the retail inventory
method for merchandise. For motor fuel, prior tpt8mber 1, 2014 we used the average cost methbdpbwuse the LIFO method since

September 1, 2014. Cost of sales does not inclugleepreciation of our property, plant and equiptnas any amounts attributed to cost of sales
would not be significant. Depreciation is sepasathssified in our Consolidated Statements of @pens and Comprehensive Income.
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Motor Fuel and Sales Taxe

Certain motor fuel and sales taxes are collectam frustomers and remitted to governmental ageediasr directly or through suppliers
by the Partnership. The Partnership's accountitigypfmr wholesale direct sales to dealer and contimécustomers is to exclude the motor fuel
tax collected from motor fuel sales and motor fiadt of sales. For retail locations where the Rastnip holds inventory, including consignment
arrangements, motor fuel sales and motor fuelafostles include motor fuel taxes and such amdonthe years ended December 31, 2012 and
2013 and for the periods January 1, 2014 throughudu31, 2014 and September 1, 2014 through Deae®ih@014 were $44.1 million , $18.3
million , $10.3 million and $60.3 million , respaetly.

Sales taxes on merchandise sales were approxin§&elymillion for the period from September 1, 2@vbugh December 31, 2014 ,
and are reported net in merchandise sales andftostrchandise sales in the accompanying Consetidatatements of Operations and
Comprehensive Income.

Vendor Allowances, Rebates and Deferred Brandingémtives

We receive payments for deferred branding incestreéated to our fuel supply contracts. Unearnedidiing incentives are deferred and
amortized as earned over the term of the respeatjteement. Deferred branding incentives are apealtbn a straight line basis over the term of
the agreement as a credit to cost of sales. Sjartin014 with the acquisition of MACS and Aloha veceive payments from certain merchandise
suppliers in the form of vendor allowances and r@uebates. Earned payments are recorded as @itbéuction to cost of sales or as income to
which the payment relates. For the period from &apter 1, 2014 through December 31, 2014 , we rézegearned rebates of $2.1 million as a
reduction to cost of sales and $0.2 million as imeo

Lease Accounting

The Partnership leases a portion of its propeuigter non-cancelable operating leases, whosel itdtias are typically five to fifteen
years, along with options that permit renewalsaiditional periods. Minimum rent is expensed atraight-line basis over the term of the lease
including renewal periods that are reasonably askat the inception of the lease. The Partnershiypically responsible for payment of real
estate taxes, maintenance expenses and insurdre@aftnership also leases certain vehicles, varelypically less than five years.

Fair Value of Financial Instruments

Cash, accounts receivable, certain other curresgtsismarketable securities, accounts payablejed@xpenses and other current
liabilities are reflected in the consolidated fineh statements at fair value because of the gbam-maturity of the instruments.

Concentration Risk

Motor fuel sold to Susser, mostly in Texas, repnesg 60% , 66% , 63% and 48% of total motor fuldsséor the years ended
December 31, 2012 and 2013 and the periods Jatua14 through August 31, 2014 and September14 #frough December 31, 2014 ,
respectively. Prior to the IPO, these sales induntdy Susser's retail locations and were at aodtr® profit was reflected on these sales.
Subsequent to the IPO, these sales include bot#eBsisetail locations and consignment locationssiant to the Distribution Contract, sales
subsequent to the IPO reflect a margin of approteéipahree cents per gallon.
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The Partnership has contracts with Valero and Girethrat expire in July 2018 and April 2017, resiwety. With the acquisition of
MACS in the fourth quarter of 2014, we now havetcacts with Exxon expiring in 2015 and 2018. Thetipo of fuel volumes purchased from
suppliers who accounted for 10% or more of our iwdanbined volume during the years ended December& as follows:

Predecessor Successor
Twelve Months Ended

January 1, 2014

December 31, December 31, through August 31, September 1, 2014 through
2012 2013 2014 December 31, 2014
Valero 36% 34% 28% 22%
Chevron 1% 17% 12% 9%
Exxon 6% 6% 9% 24%

Earnings Per Unit

In addition to the common and subordinated unitshave identified the incentive distribution rigfitdbRs") as participating securities and
compute income per unit using the two-class methmater which any excess of distributions declarest oet income shall be allocated to the
partners based on their respective sharing of iecepecified in the partnership agreement. Net ircpar unit applicable to limited partners
(including common and subordinated unitholdergpisiputed by dividing limited partners' intereshigt income, after deducting any incentive
distributions, by the weighted-average number ¢$tamding common and subordinated units.

Prior to September 25, 2012, we were wholly owng&bsser and, accordingly, we did not calculateeport earnings per unit.
Stock and Uni-based Compensation

Certain employees supporting our operations padhé ETP Merger were historically granted longrténcentive compensation awards
under the Susser stock-based compensation progrdrits, primarily consisted of stock options andniesed common stock. Susser allocated
expenses for stock-based compensation costs, whacimcluded in general and administrative expenies allocated expense was $0.8 million ,
$1.4 million , $4.1 million , and $1.0 million fdne years ended December 31, 2012 and 2013 apetivels ended January 1, 2014 through
August 31, 2014 and September 1, 2014 through DieeeB1, 2014 , respectively.

In connection with our IPO, our general partnerpdd the Susser Petroleum Partners LP 2012 Long-Trezentive Plan (thel'TIP Plan®),
now known as the Sunoco LP Plan, under which varigpes of awards may be granted to employeesuftants and directors of our general
partner who provide services for us. We amortizegtant-date fair value of these awards over tséingperiod using the straight-line method.
Expenses related to unit-based compensation drelegttin general and administrative expenses. QgusiR9, 2014, effective with the ETP
Merger, all then outstanding unvested awards bedaliyevested. During the years ended Decembef812 and December 31, 201the period
ended January 1, 2014 through August 31, 2014 epte&ber 1, 2014 through December 31, 2014 , wagrezed $0.1 million , $0.5 million ,
$0.6 million and $0.4 million , respectively, ofgense related to unit awards.

Income Taxes

We are organized as a pass-through entity for éderome tax purposes. As a result, our partrnrersesponsible for federal income taxes
based on their respective share of taxable incblaeincome for financial statement purposes mafedsignificantly from taxable income
reportable to unitholders as a result of differenoetween the tax basis and financial reportingslidsassets and liabilities and the taxable income
allocation requirements under the partnership agee¢. We are subject to the Texas franchise tebighmased on our Texas sourced taxable gros:s
margin for federal income tax purposes.

The Partnership recognizes deferred income taiitiab and assets related to its subsidiary, Pmpizferred income tax liabilities and
assets are recognized for the expected future iadamconsequences of temporary differences betfirgmcial statement carrying amounts and
the related income tax basis.




We recognize the impact of a tax position in timaficial statements, if that position is more likiblgn not of being sustained, based on the
technical merits of the position. See Note 17 fistiional information regarding decognition, classification, interest and penajteounting it
interim periods and disclosure.

Recently Issued and Adopted Accounting Pronouncersk

FASB ASU No. 2015-02n February 2015, the Financial Accounting Stand@dard ("FASB") issued Accounting Standards Update
("ASU") ASU 2015-02Consolidation (Topic 810) - Amendments to the Clatestion Analysis, which provides guidance on evaluating whether a
reporting entity should consolidate certain legditees. Specifically, the amendments modify thalesation of whether limited partnerships and
similar legal entities are VIEs or voting interestities. Further, the amendments eliminate theymmption that a general partner should
consolidate a limited partnership, as well as affiee consolidation analysis of reporting entitiest are involved with VIEs, particularly thosett
have fee arrangements and related party relatipastie are currently evaluating the impact, if gahgt adopting this new accounting standard
will have on our current and future consolidatiatig@es.

FASB ASU No. 2014-17n November 2014, the FASB issued ASU 2014Rirsiness Combinations (Topic 805 ushdown Accountit
(a Consensus of the FASB Emerging Issues Task)rordech provides guidance on whether and at whastiold an acquired entity that is a
business or nonprofit activity can apply pushdowecoanting in its separate financial statements. 28W4-17 was effective upon issuance. The
adoption of ASU 2014-17 did not have a materiad&tfbn our financial position and we do not beligweill in the future.

FASB ASU No. 2014-151In August 2014, the FASB issued ASU 2014-1Brésentation of Financial Statements — Going Camcer
(Subtopic 205-40). This update provides guidance about managemegfsonsibility to evaluate whether there is suligthdoubt about an
entity’s ability to continue as a going concerrt@provide related footnote disclosures. ASU 2054€lquires management to assess an entity's
ability to continue as a going concern by incorfiagpand expanding upon certain principles thatcameently in U.S. auditing standards.
Specifically, the amendments (1) provide a defimitof the term substantial doubt, (2) require aauation every reporting period including
interim periods, (3) provide principles for considg the mitigating effect of management's plaa¥ réquire certain disclosures when substantial
doubt is alleviated as a result of consideratiomahagement's plans, (5) require an express stateme other disclosures when substantial doubt
is not alleviated, and (6) require an assessmetat feriod of one year after the date that thenfired statements are issued (or available to be
issued). ASU 2014-15 is effective prospectivelyffecal years beginning after December 15, 2018, iaterim periods within those years. We do
not anticipate that the adoption of ASU 2014-19 hélve a material effect on our financial positioesults of operations or cash flows.

FASB ASU No. 2014-09n May 2014, the FASB issued ASU 2014-&&venue from Contracts with Customers (Topic 6@8)ich
clarifies the principles for recognizing revenuadion the core principle that an entity shouldgeze revenue to depict the transfer of prom
goods or services to customers in an amount tlatte the consideration to which the entity expaotbe entitled in exchange for those goods or
services. ASU 2014-09 is effective for annual réipgrperiods beginning after December 15, 2018uiting interim periods within that reporting
period, with earlier adoption not permitted. ASUL2E09 can be adopted either retrospectively to gaoh reporting period presented or as a
cumulative-effect adjustment as of the date of #dopWe are currently evaluating the impact, i ativat adopting this new accounting standard
will have on our revenue recognition policies.

FASB ASU No. 2013-11In July 2013, the FASB issued ASU 2013-11n¢ome Taxes - Presentation of an UnrecognizedBEsoefit
When a Net Operating Loss Carryforward, a Similax Toss, or a Tax Credit Carryforward Exists- Suydito/40-10."An unrecognized tax
benefit, or a portion of an unrecognized tax bensfiall be presented in the financial statemesis reduction to a deferred tax asset for a net
operating loss carryforward, a similar tax lossadax credit carryforward. To the extent a netrafieg loss carryforward, a similar tax loss, or a
tax credit carryforward is not available at theartimg date, the unrecognized tax benefit shoulgresented in the financial statements as a
liability and should not be combined with defertad assets. The ASU is effective for annual anerint periods beginning after December 15,
2013 but early adoption is permitted. The adoptibthis guidance did not have a material effecbanfinancial position, results of operations or
cash flows.

FASB ASU No. 2013-04 In February 2013, the FASB issued ASU 2013-Q4abilities (Topic 405) — Obligations Resulting rinaJoint
and Several Liability Arrangements for Which théalémount of the Obligation Is Fixed at the RepagtDate (a consensus of the FASB
Emerging Issues Task Forc" This update provides guidance for the recognjtrneasurement and disclosure of obligations reguftom joint
and several liability arrangements for which thiatamount of the obligation within the scope d$thuidance is fixed at the reporting date (ex
for obligations addressed within existing guidaimcll.S. GAAP). Examples of obligations within theope of ASU 2013-04 include debt
arrangements, other contractual obligations arttedditigation and judicial rulings. ASU 2013-04 éffective prospectively for fiscal years, and
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interim periods within those years, beginning aBecember 15, 2013. The adoption of ASU 2013-04ndichave a material effect on our
financial position, results of operations or caskwé.

4. Merger and Acquisitions
ETP Merger

As a result of the ETP Merger, we became a cora@itlentity of ETP and applied “push dowaccounting that required our assets
liabilities to be adjusted to fair value as of thete of the merger on August 29, 2014. Due to i@ieation of "push down" accounting, ¢
consolidated financial statements and certain fatetdlisclosures are presented in two distinct gerio indicate the application of two differ
bases of accounting between the periods presehtedperiods prior to the ETP Merger are identified“Predecessoind the period after t
ETP Merger is identified as “Successdrbr accounting purposes, management has desigtietdelT P Merger date as August 31, 2014, a
operating results and change in financial positorthe intervening period is not material.

Management, with the assistance of a third paryaten firm, has estimated the fair value of cainsl Susser's assets and liabilities as ¢
date of acquisition by ETP. Our identifiable intérlg assets consist primarily of dealer relatiopshihe fair value of which were estimatec
applying a discounted cash flow approach which agjasted for customer attrition assumptions angepted market conditions. The amoun
goodwill recorded represents the excess of oumestid enterprise value over the fair value of @sets and liabilities. The value of certain a:
and liabilities are preliminary in nature, and aubject to adjustment as additional informationhsained about the facts and circumstance:
existed at the acquisition date. Management isevang the valuation and confirming the results étedmine the final purchase price allocat
As a result, material adjustments to this preliminallocation may occur in the future. The folloginable summarizes the "push do
accounting allocation to our assets and liabiliis®f the date presented (in thousands):

August 31, 2014

Current assets $ 171,43
Property and equipment 272,93(
Goodwill 590,04.
Intangible assets 70,47
Other noncurrent assets 811
Current liabilities (154,61)
Other noncurrent liabilities (255,289

Net assets $ 695,78:

Acquisitions

During the years ended December 31, 2013 and 20d£artnership completed the acquisition of séwerapanies. The Partnership
allocated the total purchase consideration to $iseta acquired and liabilities assumed based anréspective fair values as of the acquisition
date. In making its purchase price allocationsabeets and liabilities acquired in these acqaisitivere valued based upon estimated fair values
at the date of acquisition. The estimates usedlimivg all intangible assets were based upon agsomsfbelieved to be reasonable at the date of
acquisition. The acquisitions are discussed below.

Mid-Atlantic Convenience Stores, LLC Acquisition

On October 1, 2014, we acquired Midlantic Convenience Stores, LLC ("MACS") from ETér a total consideration of approximat:
$768.0 million , subject to certain working capiggjustments. The consideration paid consiste8l 383,540newly issued Partnership comn
units and $556.0 milliorin cash. We initially financed the cash portionutyizing availability under the 2014 Revolver.pdrtion of the revolve
borrowing was repaid during the fourth quarterngstash from proceeds of an equity offering. MAGS bheen determined to be the prin
beneficiary of certain variable interest entitiasgd therefore the Partnership consolidates thasabl@ainterest entities.
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The assets owned by MACS include approximatelycd@fpany-operated retail convenience stores andi@aler-operated and

consignment sites that were previously acquire&Bl. The combined portfolio includes locations ingihia, Maryland, Tennessee and Georgia.

This was the first transaction completed in a sasfepreviously announced drop-down plans by wiEER intends to transfer its retail and fuel

distribution business to the Partnership. The aitipm was accounted for as a transaction betwetties under common control. Specifically,

Partnership recognized the acquired assets anthaddiabilities at their respective carrying valaesl no additional goodwill was created. The
Partnership's results of operations include the IBA@sults of operations beginning September 14 2t date of common control. As a result,
the Partnership retrospectively adjusted its firelrstatements to include the balances and opemtbMACS from September 1, 2014. The
following table presents the recast unaudited regsmnd net income for the three and nine monttisce8eptember 30, 2014 to include the
operations of MACS effective September 1, 2014KHousands):

Three Months Ended September 30, 2014

Nine Months Ended September 30, 2014

Successor September 1, Predecessor January 1, Successor September 1,
Predecessor July 1, 2014] 2014 through September 2014 through August 31 2014 through September
through August 31, 2014 30, 2014 2014 30, 2014
(unaudited) (unaudited) (unaudited)
Revenues:
Partnership $ 899,57 $ 405,34! $ 3,492,18! $ 405,34!
MACS — 142,86( — 142,86(
Combined $ 899,57 $ 548,20! $ 3,492,18! $ 548,20!
Net income:
Partnership $ 2,78 | $ (1,756) $ 2251 | $ (1,75¢€)
MACS = 5,87¢ — 5,87¢
Combined $ 2,78: $ 4,12: $ 22,51( $ 4,12:

Included in our Successor results of operationgHerperiod September 1, 2014 through Decembe@14 is $509.3 million an831.¢
million of revenue and net income, respectively, relatati¢cacquisition of MACS. The following table sunmimas the preliminary recording
the assets and liabilities at their respectiveyoagrvalues, including the initial tax accountiredated to the transaction (in thousands):

August 31, 2014

Current assets $ 96,74¢
Property and equipment 463,77
Goodwill 118,61(
Intangible assets 90,67¢
Other noncurrent assets 46,83¢
Current liabilities (45,15))
Other noncurrent liabilities (186,66.)

Net assets 584,83:
Net deemed contribution (19,020)
Cash acquired (60,799

Total cash consideration, net of cash acquired $ 505,01t

The goodwill recorded in connection with the MAG&aisition is deductible for tax purposes.
Aloha Petroleum, Ltd Acquisitior

On December 16, 2014, we completed the acquisdfoh00% of the stock of Honolulu, Hawdiased Aloha Petroleum, Ltd ("Aloha
Aloha is the largest independent gasoline markaatelrone of the largest convenience store operatdiawaii, with an extensive wholesale 1
distribution network and six fuel storage terminafsthe islands. Aloha currently markets throughreximately 100Aloha, Shell, and Maha
branded fuel stations throughout the state, abalfiohwhich are company
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operated. We believe the entry into the retailvemience store market combined with our wholesadtiblution network will allow us to achie

greater returns on our investments. The adjustechpse price for Aloha was approximately $267.Mianiin cash, subject to a post-closing earn-

out we have estimated at $13.0 million , and cenpaist closing adjustments, and before transactists and other expenses totaling $2.8 million
As of December 31, 2014 , we have recorded on onsalidated balance sheet under other non-cunaritities the $13.0 milliorcontingen
consideration, which we based on the internal etedn of the earnings level that Aloha is expediedichieve during the earnout perioc
December 16, 2014 through December 31, 2022. Appately $2.1 millionof the cash consideration was placed in an escooouat to satisi
indemnification obligations of the seller and certanvironmental claims, pursuant to the termsha&f purchase agreement. Included in
Successor results of operations for the period Dbee 16, 2014 through December 31, 2014 is $24lllomand $0.7 millionof revenue and n
income, respectively, related to the acquisitiorlaha.

Management has preliminarily estimated the faiugalf its assets and liabilities as of the dataagfuisition. The carrying values of as
and liabilities (excluding intangibles and nourrent liabilities) in this preliminary estimateeve assumed to approximate their fair values.
identifiable intangible assets consist primarilydefaler relationships. The amount of goodwill pnétiarily recorded represents the excess o
estimated enterprise value over the fair valueunfassets and liabilities. The value of certairetssand liabilities are preliminary in nature, aame
subject to adjustment as additional informatioroligained about the facts and circumstances thategkiat the acquisition date. As a re
material adjustments to this preliminary allocatioay occur in the future. Management is reviewimg taluation and confirming the result:
determine the final purchase price allocation.

The following table summarizes the preliminary edition of the assets and liabilities as of the ga¢sented (in thousands):

December 16, 2014

Current assets $ 68,26
Property and equipment 99,29:
Goodwill 154,80°
Intangible assets 10,68¢
Other noncurrent assets 63€
Current liabilities (20,617
Other noncurrent liabilities (33,099

Total consideration 279,98
Cash acquired (30,59)
Contingent consideration (12,979

Total cash consideration, net of cash acquired and

contingent consideration $ 236,40°

The Aloha acquisition was a stock purchase traisadt is being treated as such for tax purposeksamy resulting goodwill is not
deductible for tax purposes.

Pro Forma Financial Information

The unaudited financial information in the tabléopesummarizes the combined results of our opeanatand those of Aloha and MACS
on a pro forma basis, as though Aloha and MACSHesmh acquired on January 1, 2013. The pro fornaadiial information is presented for
informational purposes only and is not indicatifé¢h® results of operations that would have bedwesaed. The pro forma adjustments include the
effect of purchase accounting adjustments, intengstnse, and related tax effects, among othethdusands):

Unaudited Pro Forma
MACS and Aloha
Twelve Months Ended

December 31, December 31,

2013 2014
Revenues $ 6,733,35. $ 7,132,27.
Net income attributable to partners $ 63,30. $ 87,63¢




5. Variable Interest Entities

MACS has entered into agreements with entitiesrotietl by the Uphoff Unitholders (members of MACS8I#ings prior to the acquisition
by ETP) to lease the property, buildings and imprognts of 35 sites that are now operated by th@adétahip. Under the terms of the agreement,
the Partnership has the right to purchase the lymdigrassets of 35 of these leases, along witlagisamption of associated debt of up to $54.3
million , for $20.0 million less any unreimburseokts or claims against the Uphoff Unitholders acat@ed excess rent, plus any funds disbursed
from the excess rent account to the Partnersh@gatterton (members of MACS Holdings prior to thguisition by ETP). Because of the purch
option described above, as well as the terms oietiees, the Partnership is determined to be thapr beneficiary of these entities, and there
the Partnership has consolidated these entitiedetermining whether we are the primary beneficiamy took into consideration the following:

« Identified the significant activities and the fies that have the power to direct them;
« Reviewed the governing board composition and@gation ratio;

« Determining the equity, profit and loss ratio;

« Determining the management-sharing ratio;

¢ Reviewed employment terms; and

« Reviewed the funding and operating agreements.

The assets and liabilities of the VIEs consisthef following:

December 31,

2014

(in thousands)
Receivables from affiliates $ 3,48¢
Property, plant and equipment, net $ 45,34(
Other non-current assets $ 3,66¢
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities $ 49C
Long-term debt, including current maturities of4®, (see Note 11) $ 56,45
Other non-current liabilities $ 1,19(C

The creditors under the VIES' borrowing arrangemseotnot have recourse to the Partnership’s aaghis event of default on the VIE long-

term debt (see Note 11).

6. Accounts Receivable

Accounts receivable, excluding receivables fronliafés, consisted of the following:

Predecessor Successor

December 31, December 31,
2013 2014
(in thousands)

Accounts receivable, trade $ 68,47 $ 56,00¢
Credit card receivables — 3,681
Vendor receivables for rebates, branding, and other — 2,82(
Other receivables 85¢E 2,79
Allowance for doubtful accounts (329) (1,220
Accounts receivable, net $ 69,00" $ 64,08:




Accounts receivable from affiliates are $49.9 rilliand $36.7 million as of December 31, 2013 aridt2@espectively. For additional
information regarding our affiliated receivablese \Note 13.

An allowance for doubtful accounts is provided ltage management's evaluation of outstanding acsaaneivable. Following is a
summary of the valuation accounts related to adsoamd notes receivable:

Amounts
Balance at Additions Written Allowance Acquired Balance at
Beginning of  Charged to Off, Netof  Retained by through Business End of
Period Expense Recoveries Parent Acquisitions Period
(in thousands)
Allowance for doubtful accounts:
Predecessor:
Balance at December 31, 2012 $ 167 10¢ — % 167 $ —  $ 10¢
Balance at December 31, 2013 10z 36C 14C — — 32¢
January 1, 2014 through August 31, 2014 activity 32z 27C 72 — — 521
Successor:
September 1, 2014 through December 31, 2014 activie 521 36( 321 $ — 3 66C 1,22(




7. Inventories

Effective September 1, 2014, we adopted the LIR@rnitory method for fuel inventory, to align our aaating policy with that of ETP. TI
preliminary impact of this change was an incregsg0d8 million to fuel inventory in September 2014, with a cormesfing decrease to cost
sales. As the LIFO method is only permitted to ppliad to yearend inventory levels, we recorded an additionalstdjent to increase fu
inventory by $ 7.2 milliorin December 2014, with a corresponding decreasegbof sales. Additionally, due to the declindual prices in lat

2014, we recorded a $13.6 million million write-dowf the LIFO value of fuel inventory in Decemb&r12.

Inventories consisted of the following:

Predecessor Successor
December 31, December 31,
2013 2014
(in thousands)
Fuel-retail $ — $ 20,28(
Fuel-other wholesale 8,16( 11,50:
Fuel-consignment 2,10z 4,521
Merchandise — 11,50:
Other 85¢ 84C
Inventories, net $ 11,12: $ 48,64¢
8. Property and Equipment
Property and equipment consisted of the following:
Predecessor Successor
December 31, December 31,
2013 2014
(in thousands)
Land $ 68,21: $ 311,77:
Buildings and leasehold improvements 83,32¢ 331,76:
Equipment 34,70: 289,84
Construction in progress 7,322 4,22¢
Total property and equipment 193,56t 937,60:
Less: accumulated depreciation (13,439 (32,13¢)
Property and equipment, net $ 180,12 $ 905,46!

Depreciation expense on property and equipmentb®asmillion , $5.3 million and $7.6 million foh¢ Predecessor twelve month
periods ending December 31, 2012 and December03B &nd the period January 1, 2014 through Augus2@14 , respectively. Depreciation

expense for the Successor period September 1,tBédgh December 31, 2014 was $12.6 million .




9. Goodwill and Intangible Assets
Goodwill

The following table reflects goodwill balances adivity for the years ended December 31, 2013241} :

Segment

Wholesale Retail Consolidated

(in thousands)

Balance at December 31, 2012 (Predecessor) $ 12,93t $ — % 12,93¢
Goodwill related to GFI acquisition 9,887 — 9,88’
Balance at December 31, 2013 (Predecessor) 22,82 — 22,82
Goodwill related to ETP "push down" accounting, ofgpreviously recognized
goodwill 567,21¢ — 567,21¢
Goodwill related to MACS acquisition 57,77¢ 60,83: 118,60¢
Goodwill related to Aloha acquisition 59,44¢ 95,36 154,80
Balance at December 31, 2014 (Successor) $ 707,26« $ 156,19 $ 863,45t

Goodwill represents the excess of the purchase pfian acquired entity over the amounts assigndiokt assets acquired and liabilities
assumed in a business combination. During 2014ls@recorded goodwill in conjunction with the ETish down” accounting and the MACS
and Aloha acquisitions discussed in Note 4. Goddsviecorded at the acquisition date based orlninary purchase price allocation and
generally may be adjusted when the purchase pltazation is finalized. In accordance with ASC 380-35 Goodwill - Subsequent
Measurements, during the fourth quarter of 2014peréormed an impairment test of our goodwill aedetimined that there was no impairmer
these assets.

Other Intangibles

In accordance with ASC 350 Intangibles-Goodwill @ttier, the Partnership has definite-lived intalegéssets recorded that are
amortized. The definite-lived assets consist opsupgreements, customer relations, favorable leddearrangements, non-competes, tradename:
and loan origination costs, all of which are anzedi over the respective lives of the agreements@r the period of time the assets are expected
to contribute directly or indirectly to the Partskeip's future cash flows. Customer relations amqgpluagreements are being amortized over a
weighted average period of approximately five toy2@rs. Favorable leasehold arrangements are heindized over an average period of
approximately 15 years. Non-competition agreemargseing amortized over the terms of the respeeijreements. Tradenames relate to our
retail segment and were determined to be indefiiviéal intangibles and as such, are not amorti¥éel evaluate the estimated benefit periods and
recoverability of other intangible assets whendaatd circumstances indicate that the lives mayea@ppropriate and/or the carrying values of
the assets may not be recoverable. If the carmahge is not recoverable, impairment is measuradeamount by which the carrying value
exceeds its estimated fair value. Loan originatiosts are amortized over the life of the underlydegt as an increase to interest expense.

During the fourth quarter of 2014 , MACS implemehégere-branding initiative for its retail convenienstores. As part of the beanding
we recorded an impairment charge of $2.6 milliarhich represented the net carrying value of a fie&cagreement intangible asset. We also
recorded a $1.6 million charge related to unamedtipan fees as a result of the pay down and dasfiour 2012 Revolver (see Note 11), which
is included in interest expense, net, in our cadatéd statement of operations and comprehensiveria for the period from January 1, 2014
through August 31, 2014 .




The following table presents the gross carrying am@and accumulated amortization for each majasctd intangible assets, excluding
goodwill, at December 31, 2013 and 2014 :

Predecessor Successor
December 31, 2013 December 31, 2014
Gross Gross
Carrying Accumulated Net Carrying Accumulated Net
Amount Amortization Book Value Amount Amortization Book Value

(in thousands)
Definite-Lived

Trade name $ —  $ — 3 — |9 8,937 $ — % 8,931
Franchise rights — — — 32¢ — 32¢
Customer relations including supply
agreements 31,98 11,70¢ 20,27 176,99° 25,08: 151,91t
Favorable leasehold arrangements, net 23€ 51 18t 2,81( 14C 2,67(
Loan origination costs 2,431 482 1,95¢ 7,611 381 7,23(
Other intangibles 38¢ 33 35¢€ 1,30¢ 288 1,02¢
Intangible assets, net $ 35,04: $ 12,27: $ 22,77 $ 197,99: $ 25,88 $ 172,10¢

Total amortization expense on definite-lived irgitates included in depreciation, amortization andration for the Predecessor twelve
month periods ended December 31, 2012 and Dece3itb@013 and the period January 1, 2014 throughudiugl, 2014 , was $3.3 million , $3.4
million and $2.9 million , respectively, and was®#illion for the Successor period September 1420rough December 31, 2014 . The
amortization of deferred financing fees includedhiterest expense for the Predecessor twelve nmpmrthds ended December 31, 2012 and
December 31, 2013 and the period January 1, 20&4gh August 31, 2014 , was $0.1 million , $0.4liovil and $0.3 million , respectively, and
was $2.0 million for the Successor period Septertb&014 through December 31, 2014 . The followatge presents the Partnership's estimate
of amortization includable in amortization expeasé interest expense for each of the five succgdtinal years and thereafter for definite-lived
intangibles as of December 31, 2014 (in thousands):

Amortization Interest
2015 $ 13,43t $ 1,52z
2016 12,96¢ 1,52:
2017 12,51: 1,52z
2018 11,95 1,52;
2019 11,67¢ 1,14z
Thereafter 102,33: —
10. Accrued Expenses and Other Current Liabilites
Current accrued expenses and other current ligsilionsisted of the following:
Predecessor Successor
December 31, December 31,
2013 2014

(in thousands)

Wage and other employee-related accrued expenses $ — | $ 6,23(
Franchise agreement termination accrual — 4,57¢
Accrued tax expense 5,815 18,32¢
Deposits and other 5,61( 12,74¢

Total $ 11,427 | $ 41,88:




11. Long-Term Debt

Long-term debt consisted of the following:

Predecessor Successor
December 31, December 31,
2013 2014
(in thousands)

Term loan, bearing interest at Prime or LIBOR @usapplicable margin $ 25,86¢ $ —

Sale leaseback financing obligation — 126,64

Senior term loan on Uphoff properties ("VIE Delst&e Note 5) — 56,45

2012 Revolver, bearing interest at Prime or LIBORs@n applicable margin 156,21( —
2014 Revolver, bearing interest at Prime or LIBO&s@n applicable margin

— 683,37¢

Notes payable, bearing interest at 6% and 4% 4,07¢ 3,552

Capital lease obligations — 49z

Total debt 186,15: 870,51¢

Less: current maturities 52t 13,757

Long-term debt, net of current maturities $ 185,62t $ 856,76:

At December 31, 2014 , scheduled future debt gralanaturities are as follows (in thousands):

2015 $ 13,757

2016 12,10«

2017 38,87(

2018 5,42

2019 689,08

Thereafter 111,27

Total $ 870,51¢

Term Loan and Security Agreement

On September 25, 2012, in connection with the W®gntered into a Term Loan and Security AgreemithtBank of America, N.A. for a
$180.7 million term loan facility, expiring Septean®5, 2015 (the “Term Loan”). Borrowings undez ferm Loan bore interest at (i) a base rate
(a rate based off of the higher of (a) the Fedeualds Rate plus 0.5% , (b) Bank of America's pniatie or (c) LIBOR plus 1.00% ) or (ii) LIBOR
plus 0.25% . The Term Loan was repaid in the §rstrter of 2014.

Revolving Credit Agreemen

On September 25, 2012, in connection with the lW®entered into a $250 milliaevolving credit agreement with a syndicate of Isafike
“2012 Revolver”) expiring September 25, 2017. Th&2Revolver commitments were increased to $40Bomiin December 2013, while
retaining the ability to increase the 2012 Revolwean additional $100 million . Borrowings undlee revolving credit facility bore interest at (i)
a base rate plus an applicable margin ranging 0% to 2.25% or (ii) LIBOR plus an applicable giarranging from 2.00% to 3.25% ,
(determined with reference to our consolidated teteerage ratio). In addition, the unused portidrour revolving credit facility was subject to a
commitment fee ranging from 0.375% to 0.50% , basedur consolidated total leverage ratio.
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On September 25, 2014, we entered into a new $ill#H revolving credit facility (the "2014 Revolver") vaita syndicate of banks expiri
September 25, 2019 (which date may be extendectrdance with the terms of the credit agreem@imig. 2014 Revolver includes an accordion
feature thus providing flexibility to increase tlaeility by an additional $250 million , subject ¢ertain conditions. Borrowings under the 2014
Revolver were used to repay and cancel the 2018lRay of which $1.6 milliorin unamortized loan fees were fully amortized teiast expens

Borrowings under the 2014 Revolver bear interest base rate (a rate based off of the higher ofh@)Federal Funds Rate (as def
therein) plus 0.50% , (b) Bank of America’s prina¢eror (c) one-month LIBOR (as defined thereinsd00%) or LIBOR, in each case plus
applicable margin ranging from 1.50% to 2.50% thia case of a LIBOR loan, or from 0.50% to 1.50%the case of a base rate loan (detern
with reference to the Partnerstifieverage Ratio (as defined therein)). Upon ttet fichievement by the Partnership of an investmette cred
rating, the applicable margin will decrease torageaof 1.125% to 2.0% , in the case of a LIBOR Jaarfrom 0.125% to 1.00%in the case of
base rate loan (determined with reference to thditcrating for the Partnership’s senior, unsecunesh-credit enhanced lortgrm debt). Intere
is payable quarterly if the base rate appliesh@end of the applicable interest period if LIBObplées and at the end of the month if daily flog
LIBOR applies. In addition, the unused portiontaf 2014 Revolver is subject to a commitment fegirenfrom 0.250% to 0.350%based on tf
Partnerships Leverage Ratio (as defined therein). Upon thst fachievement by the Partnership of an investngeatle credit rating, tl
commitment fee will decrease to a range of 0.126%275% , based on the Partnership’s credit rasdescribed above.

The 2014 Revolver requires the Partnership to ragmird Leverage Ratio of not more than 5.50 to 1.08e maximum Leverage Ratic
subject to upwards adjustment of not more than &QN00for a period not to exceed three fiscal quarterthénevent the Partnership engage
an acquisition of assets, equity interests, (aseeéftherein) operating lines or divisions by thetRership, a subsidiary, (as defined thereir
unrestricted subsidiary (as defined therein) opiatjventure for a purchase price of not less tia@ million . Effective October 7, 201in
connection with the acquisition of MACS, we enteiret a Specified Acquisition period, as furthefided in the 2014 Revolver credit agreem
in which our leverage ratio compliance requiremevise adjusted upward. Indebtedness under the R@¢dlver is secured by a security inte
in, among other things, all of the Partnershipresent and future personal property and alhefgresent and future personal property ¢
guarantors, the capital stock of its material siibsies (or 66%of the capital stock of material foreign subsidiaji and any intercompany dt
Upon the first achievement by the Partnership ofirasestment grade credit rating, all security iatts securing the 2014 Revolver will
released.

As of December 31, 2014 , the balance on the 2@bRer was $683.4 million , and $11.8 million asdby letters of credit were
outstanding. The unused availability on the 2014dResr at December 31, 2014 was $554.8 millione Partnership was in compliance with all
financial covenants at December 31, 2014.

Guaranty by Susser of Term Loan and 2012 / 2014 Gtesr

Susser entered into a Guaranty of Collection (thedranty”) in connection with the Term Loan and 202 Revolver, which was
transferred to the 2014 Revolver. Pursuant to thar@ty, Susser guarantees the collection oféiptincipal amount outstanding under the Term
Loan and (ii) the 2012 Revolver and 2014 Revol@eisser's obligation under the Guaranty is limieefi80.7 million . Susser is not required to
make payments under the Guaranty unless and ahtih¢ Partnership has failed to make a paymettieferm Loan or the 2012 and 2014
Revolvers, (b) the obligations under such faciti@ve been accelerated, (c) all remedies of thkcaple lenders to collect the unpaid amounts
due under such facilities, whether at law or equigve been exhausted and (d) the applicable letdee failed to collect the full amount owing
on such facilities. In addition, Susser entered aReimbursement Agreement with PropCo, wherelsg&us obligated to reimburse PropCo for
any amounts paid by PropCo under the guarantyeo2@12 and 2014 Revolvers executed by our submdiaBusser's exposure under this
reimbursement agreement is limited, when aggregaitidts obligation under the Guaranty, to $18@iflion .

Variable Interest Entity Debt

Our consolidated VIE (resulting of the MACS acqtiisi) has a senior term loan ("VIE Debt"), collaiéred by certain real and personal
properties of the consolidated variable intereityerThe VIE Debt bears interest at LIBOR plus%4, with a floor of 4.5% . As dbecember 3:
2014 , the interest rate was 4.5% and the balamtstamding was $34.0 million . The VIE Debt prirglignd interest is repayable in equal monthly
installments over a 20 year period and includesitid to prepay all outstanding principal at aimpd, with a penalty of up to 3.0% depending on
the date of repayment.

The remaining VIE debt of approximately $22.4 mifliconsists of loans collateralized by equipmendt@operty. The
average stated interest rate for these loans wasxmately 5.4% as of December 31, 2014 . The ritgjof the debt requires monthly principal
and interest payments with maturities through 2034.

F-27




Sale Leaseback Financing Obligatic

On April 4, 2013, MACS completed a sale leasebeaksiaction with two separate companies for 50sadiéaler operated sites. As MACS
did not meet the criteria for sale leaseback adiogythis transaction was accounted for as a fimgnarrangement over the course of the lease
agreement. The obligations mature in varying démesigh 2033, require monthly interest and prinicgggyments, and bear interest at 5.125% .
The obligation related to this transaction is ideld in long-term debt and the balance outstandingf ®ecember 31, 2014 was $126.6 million .

Other Debt

In August 2010 we entered into a mortgage notarfioaggregate initial borrowing amount of $1.2 miili. Pursuant to the terms of the
mortgage note, we make monthly installment paymeatsare comprised of principal and interest tjfothe maturity date of July 1, 2016. The
balance outstanding at each December 31, 2013CGirtv2as $1.1 million . The mortgage note bearsesteat a fixed rate of 6.0%he mortgag
note is secured by a first priority security inttri a property owned by the Partnership.

In September 2013, we assumed a $3.0 million teen from Susser as part of the net asset trarmfeqtity as part of the acquisition of
Gainesville Fuel, Inc. by Susser. The $3.0 millierm loan had an outstanding balance of $2.5anillis of December 31, 2014 and $3.0 million
as of December 31, 2013 and bears a 4.0% fixed rate

The estimated fair value of long-term debt is clated using Level 3 inputs. The fair value of dabtof December 31, 2014 , is estimated to
be approximately $870.6 million , based on outstamtalances as of the end of the period usingeatiinterest rates for similar securities.

Capital Lease Obligations

Our capital lease obligations relate to vehicled @ffice equipment. The total cost of assets undgpital leases was $1.4 million with
accumulated depreciation of $1.2 million at Decen@ie 2014. We include depreciation of the cosigsfets under capital leases in depreciation
and amortization expenses in our consolidatedratates of operations.

Fair Value Measurements

We use fair value measurements to measure, ambegitems, purchased assets and investments, l@adeaterivative contracts. We also
use them to assess impairment of properties, equiprimtangible assets and goodwill. Fair valugeined as the price at which an asset could be
exchanged in a current transaction between knowksulg, willing parties. A liability’s fair value defined as the amount that would be paid to
transfer the liability to a new obligor, not the amt that would be paid to settle the liability vihe creditor. Where available, fair value is lohse
on observable market prices or parameters, origetefrom such prices or parameters. Where obbérvarices or inputs are not available, use of
unobservable prices or inputs is used to estinmeewrrent fair value, often using an internal asibn model. These valuation technigues involve
some level of management estimation and judgmieatiégree of which is dependent on the item bedihged.

ASC 820 “Fair Value Measurements and Disclosurgsforitizes the inputs used in measuring fair vahte the following hierarchy:

Level 1 Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markar identical assets or liabilities;
Level 2 Inputs other than quoted prices includétiiw Level 1 that are either directly or indirgctibservable;

Level 3 Unobservable inputs in which little or market activity exists, therefore requiring an gntid develop its own
assumptions about the assumptions that marketipantits would use in pricing.

Debt or equity securities are classified into thiéofving reporting categories: held-to-maturitygding or available-for-sale securities. The
investments in debt securities, which typically amatin one year or less, are classified as heltidturity and valued at amortized cost, which
approximates fair value. The fair value of markktaecurities is measured using Level 1 inputdutfedd in the marketable securities
classification on the Consolidated Balance Sheetsjaproximately $16.0 million in money market fara$ of December 31, 2013 . There were
none outstanding as of December 31, 20IHe carrying value of these money market fungs@pmates fair value and are measured using L
1 inputs. The gross unrecognized holding gainsl@sgks as of December 31, 2013 were not matehakd investments were used as collateral to
secure the Term Loan and were intended to be uslgdar funding future capital expenditures.




12. Employee Benefit Plans

We have qualified defined contribution plans, whadlow for voluntary pre-tax contributions by emyd@s supporting our operations,
offered historically through Susser and now thro&gt® following the ETP Merger. We pay all generad administrative expenses of the plans
and may make contributions to the plans. The ptaogide for discretionary contributions by us, apraved by the board of directors.

The net expense incurred for these plans for tedd®essor twelve month periods ending Decembe&t@P, , December 31, 2013 and
the period January 1, 2014 through August 31, 2@d< approximately $0.7 million , $0.7 million and.$ million , respectively, and was $0.5
million for the Successor period September 1, 26idugh December 31, 2014 .

13. Related-Party Transactions

We entered into two long-term, fee-based commeagjegdements with Susser effective upon our IPOnsanized as follows:

» Distribution Contract - a 10 -year agreementasmhich we are the exclusive distributor of mdteel to Susser's existing Stripes®
convenience stores and independently operatedgroment locations, and to all future sites purchdmsethe Partnership pursuant to the
sale and leaseback option under the Omnibus Agmeie(®ee below), at cost, including tax and trantsiom costs, plus a fixed profit
margin of three cents per gallon. In additionfatiire motor fuel volumes purchased by Sussert$oown account will be added to the
distribution contract pursuant to the terms of@manibus Agreement.

» Transportation Contract - a 10 -year transpiamdbgistics agreement, pursuant to which Sussiéamwange for motor fuel to be
delivered from our suppliers to our customers egsaonsistent with those charged by Susser t plairties for the delivery of motor
fuel.

Omnibus Agreement

In addition to the commercial agreements descrifE/e, we also entered into an Omnibus AgreemehtSusser pursuant to which,
among other things, we received a three -year optiggurchase from Susser up to 75 of Susser'onegcently constructed Stripeg®nvenienc
stores at their cost and lease the stores batleto &t a specified rate for a 15 -year initial teamd we will be the exclusive distributor of motor
fuel to such stores for a period of ten years ftbendate of purchase. We also received a ten figddrto participate in acquisition opportunities
with Susser, to the extent we and Susser are @béath an agreement on terms, and the exclugiietd distribute motor fuel to certain of
Susser's newly constructed convenience storedegéndently operated consignment locations. Theikm Agreement also provides for
certain indemnification obligations between Susset the Partnership.

Summary of Transaction:

Related party transactions with Susser and ETEhéoPredecessor twelve month periods ended Decedib2012 and 2013 and the period
January 1, 2014 through August 31, 2014 and fotexessor period September 1, 2014 through Dece3th2014 are as follows (in thousands
except store count data):
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Predecessor Successor
September 1, 201
Twelve months Twelve months January 1, 2014 through
ended December ended December through August December 31,
31, 2012 31, 2013 31, 2014 2014
Motor fuel sales to Susser $ 2,570,75 $ 2974,12. $ 2,200,39: | $ 873,84.
Motor fuel gross profit from sales to Susser 7,781 31,597 23,36¢ 12,36
Bulk fuel purchases from ETP — — — 52,47«
General and administrative expenses allocatedjdirg
equity-based compensation 1,621 2,15¢ 4,76¢ 1,45¢
Allocated cost of employees 2,891 11,40( 8,80z 3,52¢
Distributions to Susser / ETP 31z 19,96¢ 16,60: 8,18i
IDR distributions to Susser / ETP — — 64 25k
Transportation charges from Susser for delivemnofor
fuel 11,89: 49,99: 37,87 19,94¢
Purchase of stores from Susser 29,04: 104,15¢ 81,14¢ 70,91«
Rental income from Susser 147 6,441 9,113 6,29¢
# of stores purchased 8 25 18 15

Additional affiliate activity related to the Congtdted Balance Sheets and Statements of Operatimh€omprehensive Income are as
follows:

* Net accounts receivable from Susser w$49.9 million and $32.7 million at December 31, 2Gihd December 31, 2014espectively
which are primarily related to motor fuel purchaes us.

* Net accounts receivable from ETP v$0.5 million at December 31, 2014rimarily for fuel incentives related to purchas# bulk fue
inventory.

* Net accounts payable to ETP v$3.1 million as of December 31, 2014ttributable to operational expenses and fualiip purchase

» As of December 31, 2014 , we had $3.5 millafireceivables related to agreements with entit@srolled by the Uphoff Unitholde
(see Note 5).

14. Commitments and Contingencies

Leases

The Partnership leases certain convenience stdrethar properties under non-cancellable operdtiages whose initial terms are typically
5 to 15 years, with some having a term of 30 yearsore, along with options that permit renewalsafdditional periods. Minimum rent is
typically expensed on a straight-line basis overtdim of the lease. In addition, certain leasgaire additional contingent payments based on
sales or motor fuel volumes. We typically are resiole for payment of real estate taxes, maintemanpenses and insurance. These properties
are either sublet to third parties or used foraamvenience store operations.




The components of net rent expense are as follows:

Predecessor Successor
Twelve months ended
January 1, 2014 September 1, 2014
December 31, December 31, through August 31, through December 31,
2012 2013 2014 2014
(in thousands)
Cash rent:

Store base rent $ 3,07¢ % 81¢ $ 56z | $ 3,22(
Equipment rent 45¢ 17¢ 15¢ 20C
Total cash rent 3,521 994 717 3,42(C

Non-cash rent:
Straight-line rent — 20 12 39
Net rent expense $ 3,527 $ 1,012 $ 72¢ | $ 3,45¢

Equipment rent consists primarily of store equipt@rd vehicles. Sublease rental income for thed@essor twelve month periods ending
December 31, 2012 and December 31, 2013 and timplamuary 1, 2014 through August 31, 2014 was Blion , $0.9 million and $0.6
million , respectively, and was $0.6 million foetlBuccessor period September 1, 2014 through Dexe3th2014 .

Future minimum lease payments, excluding sale-leadefinancing obligations (see Note 11), for fetfiscal years are as follows (in
thousands):

2015 $ 16,21(
2016 15,34¢
2017 12,66
2018 11,18
2019 10,61°
Thereafter 91,94

Total $ 157,96:

Environmental Remediatiot

We are subject to various federal, state and lecaironmental laws and make financial expenditimesder to comply with regulations
governing underground storage tanks adopted bydedstate and local regulatory agencies. In paldic at the federal level, the Resource
Conservation and Recovery Act of 1976, as ameneedjres the EPA to establish a comprehensive atmyl program for the detection,
prevention and cleanup of leaking underground gttanks (e.g. ovefrfills, spills and undergrourmiagie tank releases).

Federal and state regulations require us to praaidemaintain evidence that we are taking finaneigponsibility for corrective action
and compensating third parties in the event ofease from our underground storage tank systenwdier to comply with these requirements, we
have historically obtained private insurance insteges we operate in. These policies provide ptiotefrom third-party liability claims. During
2014 , our coverage was $1.0 million per occurrength a range of $2.0 million to $3.0 million aggate and range of $0.1 million to $0.5
million self-insured retention. Our sites contirtaeébe covered by these policies.

We are currently involved in the investigation aathediation of contamination at 38 motor fuel sgeraites, all of which are legacy
issues related to our acquisition of MACS, 7 sited Aloha, 31 sites. We had no accrued liabiliegsemediation activities as of December 31,
2013 and $0.8 million at December 31, 2014 . Weenily have no remediation activities occurringat former Susser owned sites. Susser has
agreed to indemnify us for any environmental ctsis are determined to have been in existencesdirtte the properties were contributed to L
the time of our IPO. This indemnity expires Septen?015. Any new releases will be our responsihiliVe have $2.1 million in an escrow
account to satisfy environmental claims relatethéoAloha acquisition.
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Deferred Branding Incentive:

We receive deferred branding incentives and otiegritive payments from a number of our fuel supgliad portion of the deferred
branding incentives may be passed on to our whielésanded dealers under the same terms as redyjiredr fuel suppliers. Many of the
agreements require repayment of all or a portiath@famount received if we (or our branded deakdesit to discontinue selling the specified
brand of fuel at certain locations. As of Decentkier2014 , the estimated amount of deferred brgnidicentives that would have to be repaid
upon de-branding at these locations was $16.4amilliOf this amount, approximately $11.2 millimould be the responsibility of the Partnerst
branded dealers under reimbursement agreementsheitiealers. In the event a dealer were to dedauthis reimbursement obligation, we wo
be required to make this payment. No liabilityasarded for the amount of dealer obligations whiclhuld become payable upon de-branding as
no such dealer default is considered probable ee@ber 31, 2014 . We have $2.0 million and $1.%anikecorded for deferred branding
incentives, net of accumulated amortization, ontl@nce sheets as of December 31, 2013 and Dec&8hhi#014 , respectively, of which $2.0
million and $1.9 million , respectively, are inckdlin other non-current liabilities. The Partnepsiimortizes its retained portion of the incentives
to income on a straight-line basis over the terrinefagreements.

Contingent Consideration related to Acquisition

During the fourth quarter of 2014, we measuredairevalue of the contingent consideration relatethe acquisition of Aloha (see Note
4). We initially valued the contingent consideratigvhich is included in other non-current liabégion the consolidated balance sheet at
December 31, 2014, at $13.0 million and is basethe internal evaluation of the earnings levet fklaha is expected to achieve during the
earnout period of December 16, 2014 through DeceBhe2022. This fair value measurement is categdrivithin Level 3 of the fair value
hierarchy.

15. Rental Income under Operating Leases

The following schedule details our investment iogarty under operating leases:

Predecessor Successor

December 31, December 31,
2013 2014
(in thousands)

Land $ 66,93 $ 269,09:
Buildings and improvements 69,31 285,46t
Equipment 38,64« 87,66¢
Total property and equipment 174,88t 642,22
Less: accumulated depreciation (8,872 (37,999
Property and equipment, net $ 166,01¢ $ 604,23:

Rental income for the Predecessor twelve monttogerended December 31, 2012 , December 31, 201theneriod January 1, 2014
through August 31, 2014 was $5.0 million , $10.1lian and $11.7 million , respectively, and was $laillion for the Successor period
September 1, 2014 through December 31, 2014 .

The following is a schedule by years of minimunufetrental income under noncancelable operatirggkeas of December 31, 2014 (in
thousands):

2015 $ 52,74¢
2016 39,22¢
2017 31,79¢
2018 27 47"
2019 25,98:
Thereafter 210,59:

Total minimum future rentals $ 387,82




See Note 14 for information regarding rental incamd operating leases with Susser.

16. Interest Expense and Interest Income

The components of net interest expense are asviallo

Predecessor Successor
Twelve months ended
January 1, 2014 September 1, 2014
December 31, December 31, through August 31, through December
2012 2013 2014 31,2014

(in thousands)

Cash interest expense $ 924C $ 3,35¢ $ 451¢ | $ 7,652
Amortization of loan costs 10z 381 313 1,98i
Cash interest income (237) (26€) (62) (77)

Interest expense, net $ 80¢ $ 3471 $ 4,76 $ 9,562

17. Income Tax

As a limited partnership, we are generally not eabjo state and federal income tax, with the etkaef the state of Texas. Included in
our provision for income tax is a tax imposed by shate of Texas of 0.5% of gross margin in TeXaanchise tax”). Our taxable income or loss,
which may vary substantially from the net incomenet loss reported in the Consolidated Statemdr@perations and Comprehensive Income, is
includable in the federal and state income taxrnstof each unitholder in proportion to their retpee interests in the Partnership. We are,
however, subject to a statutory requirement thahon-qualifying income cannot exceed 10% of otaltgross income, determined on a calendar
year basis under the applicable income tax prowssiti the amount of our non-qualifying income e this statutory limit, we would be taxed
as a corporation. Accordingly, certain activitibattgenerate non-qualifying income are conductezlitth a separate taxable corporate subsidiary,
PropCo. PropCo is subject to federal and stateniiectax and pays income taxes related to the resuilis operations. For the year ended
December 31, 2014 , our non-qualifying income ditlexceed the statutory limit.

The net federal tax basis of the non-taxable Beship's assets and liabilities was less thangperted amounts on the consolidated
financial statements by approximately $10.0 millasnof December 31, 2013 . During the fourth quart®014, Susser Holdings Corporation's
sold its ownership interest in the Partnershiptega partner and as a result, the Partnership isnger consolidated with Susser Holdings
Corporation. The net federal tax basis of the rexaible Partnership's assets and liabilities istgreban the reported amounts on the consolidated
financial statements by approximately $4.7 millamof December 31, 2014 .

Prior to our IPO and Partnership formation, we wserigject to income tax and our taxable income welsided in the consolidated

income tax returns of Susser. For the period Jgnla2012 through September 24, 2012, income taxes allocated to us based on separate-
company computations of net income or loss. Compisnaf corporate income tax expense are preseeted/b
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Predecessor

Successor

Twelve months ended

September 1, 201

January 1, 2014 through
December 31, December 31, through August December 31,
2012 2013 31, 2014 2014
(in thousands)
Current:
Federal $ 2,321 % 68 $ s | $ 2,33t
State 284 302 252 70%
Total current income tax expense 2,60t 37C 237 3,04(
Deferred:
Federal 2,41¢ 70 (19 (90€)
State 12 — — —
Total deferred tax expense 2,42¢ 70 (29 (90€)
Net income tax expense $ 5,03: $ 44C  $ 21¢ $ 2,13‘
A reconciliation of the statutory federal incomg tate to the effective tax rate is presented below
Predecessor Successor
Twelve Months Ended
January 1, 2014 through September 1, 2014 throug
(amounts in thousands) December 31, 2012 December 31, 2013 August 31, 2014 December 31, 2014
Tax Tax Tax Tax
Amount Rate % Amount Rate % Amount Rate % Amount Rate %
Tax at statutory federal rate $ 7,911 35.(% $ 13,11 35.(% $ 7,95¢ 35.C% | $ 13,09t 35.C%
Partnership earnings not subject to tax (3,12¢) (13.% (13,029 (34.8%) (7,599 (33.9)% (8,329 (22.2%
MACS earnings prior to October 1,
2014 = — % — —% — — % (3,097 (8.9%
State and local tax, net of federal
benefit 217 1.C% 301 0.&% 164 0.7% 392 1.C%
Other & 0.1% 54 0.2% (309 (1.4%) 68 0.2 %
Net income tax expense $ 5,03 22:% $  44C 1.2% $  21¢ 0¢% | $ 2,13¢ 5.7%




Components of deferred tax assets and liabilitiesa follows:

Predecessor Successor
December 31, December 31,
2013 2014
(in thousands)
Deferred tax assets:
Trademarks and other intangibles $ — $ 35,09¢
Other — 3,011
Net operating loss carry forwards 1,17¢ —
Total deferred tax assets 1,17¢ 38,10
Deferred tax liabilities:
Fixed assets 1,381 20,29(
Other 15 30C
Total deferred tax liabilities 1,39¢ 20,59(
Net deferred income tax assets (liabilities) $ 222) | $ 17,517
Current net deferred tax assets $ = $ 2,62¢
Noncurrent net deferred tax assets (liabilities) $ (222) | $ 14,89:

PropCo had net operating losses of $3.4 millioofd3ecember 31, 2013 that were utilized in 2014.hdee determined that it is more
likely than not that all deferred tax assets wdlrealized, and have therefore determined thaahation allowance is needed as of December 31,
2014 .

Uncertain Tax Positions

It is our policy to recognize interest and penaltielated to uncertain tax positions in generaladinistrative expense. Historically,
interest and penalties incurred by us have not beserial. We file income tax returns in the U &ldral jurisdiction, Texas, Oklahoma, Louisi
and New Mexico. These returns are subject to exatmims in all jurisdictions for all returns for t2609 through 201thax years. Subsequent to
acquisition of MACS and Aloha, we are subject torgporting in Maryland, Virginia, Georgia, Tennessand Hawaii.

As of December 31, 2014 , all tax positions takgmd are considered highly certain. There are sitipas we reasonably anticipate will
significantly increase or decrease within 12 mowmththe reporting date, and therefore no adjustmkate been recorded related to unrecognized
tax benefits.

18. Partners' Capital

As of December 31, 2014 , ETP through its 100% aglip in Susser, owned 4,062,848 common units 8r@39,436 subordinated units,
which together constitute a 42.8% limited partnigrstwnership interest in us, and through its 108a@rship in Sunoco GP LLC owns 100% of
the non-economic general partner interest in ufA%cember 31, 2014, the public owned 20,036816.

Information presented below for net income allamatio Partners is presented for periods beforeafted the ETP Merger (see Note 4).
Allocations of Net Income

Our partnership agreement contains provisionshieatlocation of net income and loss to the underd. For purposes of maintaining
partner capital accounts, the partnership agreesparifies that items of income and loss shallllbe@ed among the partners in accordance with
their respective percentage interest. Normal allona according to percentage interests are madegting effect, if any, to priority income
allocations in an amount equal to incentive castridutions allocated 100% to ETP.




The calculation of net income allocated to thempamt is as follows (in thousands, except per uniunts):

Predecessor Successor
Twelve months Twelve months September 1, 2014
ended December ended December January 1, 2014 througt | through December 31,
31, 2012 31,2013 August 31, 2014 2014
Attributable to Common Units
Distributions (a) $ 5,09 % 20,25. $ 11,26. | $ 27,03:
Distributions in excess of net income (523%) (1,717 7 (9,532
Limited partners' interest in net income subseqtemitial
public offering $ 4578 % 18,53: $ 11,26¢ | $ 17,49¢
Attributable to Subordinated Units
Distributions (a) $ 509 % 20,167 $ 11,17¢ | $ 12,53¢
Distributions in excess of net income (523%) (1,679 — (3,229
Limited partners' interest in net income subseqtemitial
public offering $ 4578 % 18,49: $ 11,17¢ | $ 9,30¢
(a) Distributions declared per unit to unitholdeas of
record date $0.47 $1.84 $1.02 $1.15

Incentive Distribution Rights

The following table illustrates the percentage@dlibns of available cash from operating surplug/ben the unitholders and the holder of
our IDRs based on the specified target distribulgmels. The amounts set forth under “marginal @etage interest in distributions” are the
percentage interests of our IDR holder and the comumitholders in any available cash from operasimgplus we distribute up to and including
the corresponding amount in the column “total qeryrtdistribution per unit target amount”. The pawtage interests shown for our unitholders
and our IDR holder for the minimum quarterly distriion are also applicable to quarterly distribotaamounts that are less than the minimum
quarterly distribution. The percentage interestsa¢h below assume that there are no arrearagesmmmon units. ETP has owned our IDRs
since September 2014, prior to that date the IDB®wwned by Susser.

Marginal percentage interest in
distributions

Total quarterly distribution per unit target

amount Unitholders Holder of IDRs
Minimum Quarterly Distribution $0.4375 10C% —
First Target Distribution Above $0.4375 up to $IB525 10(% —
Second Target Distribution Above $0.503125 up to $0.546875 85% 15%
Third Target Distribution Above $0.546875 up taGE6250 75% 25%
Thereafter Above $0.656250 5C% 5C%

Cash Distributions

Our partnership agreement, as amended, sets ferttatculation to be used to determine the amauwhpaority of cash distributions that
the common and subordinated unitholders will regeiv




The following table presents our cash distributipail in 2012, 2013 and 2014:

Limited Partners Distribution to
Payment Date Per Unit Distribution Total Cash Distribution IDR Holders

(in thousands, except per unit amounts)
November 28, 2014 $ 0.5457 $ 18,54. $ 25¢
August 29, 2014 0.519% 11,41 64
May 30, 2014 0.502: 11,02¢ —
February 28, 2014 0.485! 10,65( —
November 29, 2013 0.468: 10,29( —
August 29, 2013 0.452¢ 9,907 —
May 30, 2013 0.437¢ 9,572 —
March 1, 2013 0.437¢ 9,572 —
November 29, 2012 0.028¢ 624 —

19. Unit-Based Compensation

Unit-based compensation expense related to thed?ahip that was included in our Consolidated 8tiatds of Operations and
Comprehensive Income was as follows (in thousands):

Predecessor Successor
Year Ended

January 1, 2014 September 1, 2014

through August through December

December 31, 201 December 31, 2013 31, 2014 31, 2014

Phantom common units $ 101 $ 53C $ 604 $ 394

Allocated expense from Parent 81C 1,40¢ 4,08¢ 994

Total unit-based compensation expense $ 911 % 1,93t $ 4,69: $ 1,38¢

Phantom Common Unit Award

Our general partner issued a total of 32,500 ,1E#hd 6,354 phantom unit awards to certain directod employees under the LTIP
Plan during 2012, 2013 and 2014 prior to the ETRgde respectively. Recipients of these awardsruadistribution or voting rights until they
vested, and are settled in common units repregglitinited partner interests. The fair value of epblantom unit on the grant date is equal to the
market price of our common units on that date redusy the present value of estimated dividends theevesting period, since the phantom units
do not receive dividends until vested. The estich&ai value of our phantom units was being amedinver the vesting period using the straight-
line method. Non-employee director awards vest@end of a one-to-three year period and employeeds vest ratably over a two-to-five year
service period. Concurrent with the ETP Mergeruallested phantom units vested and compensatiomt$8.4 million was recognized.
Additionally, $2.8 million of compensation cost watocated to us from Susser.

Subsequent to the ETP Merger, 241,235 phantom weits issued which also have the right to receisgibutions prior to vesting. The
units vest 60% after three years and 40% aftenfaags. The fair value of these units is the mapkiee of our common units on the grant date,
and is being amortized over the five-year vestiadqa using the straight-line method. Total unretpgd compensation cost related to our
nonvested phantom units totaled $9.7 million aBetember 31, 2014, which is expected to be recedrizer a weighted average period of 3.7
years. The fair value of nonvested service phantoits outstanding as of December 31, 2014, tot&ldd0 million . The fair value of phantom
units which vested during the period Septembef142hrough December 31, 2014 was $1.0 million .
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A summary of our phantom unit award activity foe years ended December 31, 2013 and 2014 , isrfietiielow:

Number of Phantom Weighted-Average Grant

Common Units Date Fair Value
Outstanding at January 1, 2013 (Predecessor) 32,50 $ 18.9¢
Granted 15,81¢ 27.1¢
Vested (11,359 21.5C
Outstanding at December 31, 2013 (Predecessor) 36,96: 21.6¢
Granted 6,354 33.2¢
Vested (40,317 23.72
Forfeited (3,000 18.4z%
Outstanding at August 31, 2014 (Predecessor) — —
Granted 241,23! 45.5(
Outstanding at December 31, 2014 (Successor) 241,231 $ 45.5(

20. Segment Reporting

Segment information is prepared on the same Hasiour chief operating decision maker reviewsrfoial information for operational
decision-making purposes. Beginning in 2014 , whthacquisition of MACS, we began operating ouiitess in twgorimary operating segmen
wholesale and retail, both of which are includedeg®rtable segments. As a result, the Predecpssiods operated as one segment, wholesale,
and the Successor period operated with our wh@esal retail segments. No operating segments reeredggregated in identifying the two
reportable segments.

Our wholesale segment purchases fuel from a nuoflrefiners and supplies it to our retail segmenur affiliate Susser, to
independently-operated dealer stations under lermg-supply agreements and to other end users afrriugl. Also included in the wholesale
segment are motor fuel sales to consignment latati/e distribute primarily in Texas, New Mexicdsl@homa, Louisiana, Kansas, Virginia,
Maryland, Tennessee, Georgia, and Hawaii. Salésebfrom the wholesale segment to our retail segraee delivered at cost plus a profit
margin. These amounts are reflected in intercomgéimjinations of motor fuel revenue and motor foas$t of sales.

Our retail segment operates branded retail conmeaistores in Virginia, Maryland, Tennessee, Gegmid Hawaii, offering motor fuel,
merchandise, food service, and a variety of otharises including car washes, lottery, ATM, monegess, prepaid phone cards and wireless
services and movie rentals.

There are no external customers who are indivigumfiterial. Amounts in the “All Otherolumn include Partnership overhead costs
other expenses not allocated to the two primaryneeds. It also includes rental income from our sale leaseback transactions with Susser.
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The following table presents a summary of our teportable segments, since the MACS and Aloha aitiguis, for the period from
September 1, 2014 through December 31, 2014 :

Wholesale Intercompany
Segment Retail Segment Eliminations All Other Totals

(dollars and gallons in thousands)

September 1, 2014 through December 31, 2014

Revenue:
Motor fuel sales to third parties $ 712,34¢ $ 228,89 $ —  $ —  $ 941,24
Motor fuel sales to affiliates 873,84. — — — 873,84.
Merchandise sales — 52,27t — — 52,27¢
Rental and other income 14,48( 1,68¢ — 6,29¢ 22,46
Intersegment sales 117,35: — (117,35) — —
Total revenue 1,718,02 282,85¢ (117,35) 6,29¢ 1,889,82
Gross profit:
Motor fuel sales to third parties 37,861 30,39: — — 68,25¢
Motor fuel sales to affiliates 12,361 — — — 12,36"
Merchandise — 13,45¢ — — 13,45¢
Rental and other income 13,177 1,68¢ — 6,29¢ 21,16«
Total gross profit 63,41 45,53¢ — 6,29¢ 115,24!
Total operating expenses 32,80z 23,59« — 11,87° 68,27
Operating income (loss) 30,60¢ 21,94: — (5,57¢) 46,97
Unallocated interest expense, net — — — (9,56%2) (9,56%2)
Income (loss) before income taxes $ 30,60¢ $ 21,94. $ — 3 (15,140 $ 37,41(
Capital expenditures $ 77,58: $ 443 $ — % — $ 82,01t
Gallons 774,01t 83,41¢ (58,319 — 799,12:
Total assets $ 1,150,74 $ 415/16! $ — % 631,56¢ $ 2,197,48

21. Net Income per Unit

Net income per unit applicable to limited partn@nsluding subordinated unitholders) is computedibwding limited partners' interest in
net income by the weighted-average number of qudstg common and subordinated units. Our net incisnadlocated to the limited partners in
accordance with their respective partnership peages, after giving effect to any priority inconlleations for incentive distributions and
distributions on employee unit awards. Net incormeumit is only calculated for the Partnershipratite IPO as no units were outstanding prior to
September 25, 2012 . Earnings in excess of disiilisiare allocated to the limited partners basetheir respective ownership interests.
Payments made to our unitholders are determineglation to actual distributions declared and arelbased on the net income allocations used in
the calculation of net income per unit.

In addition to the common and subordinated unitshave also identified the IDRs as participatingusiéies and use the two-class method
when calculating the net income per unit applicabliémited partners, which is based on the weidfgteerage number of common units
outstanding during the period. Diluted net incoree ymit includes the effects of potentially dil@iunits on our common units, consisting of
unvested phantom units. Basic and diluted net ircpar unit applicable to subordinated limited parsrare the same because there are no
potentially dilutive subordinated units outstanding
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We also disclose limited partner units issued artdtanding. A reconciliation of the numerators dedominators of the basic and diluted

per unit computations as follows:

Net income

Less: Net income and comprehensive income atttiteita
noncontrolling interest

Net income attributable to partners

Less:

Incentive distribution rights

MACS earnings prior to October 1, 2014

Distributions on nonvested phantom unit awards
Limited partners' interest in net income

Weighted average limited partner units outstanding:

Common - basic

Common - equivalents

Common - diluted

Subordinated - (basic and diluted)

Net income per limited partner unit:
Common - basic and diluted
Subordinated - basic and diluted

Predecessor

Successor

Year Ended

December 31,

December 31,

January 1, 2014
through August

September 1, 2014
through December

2012 2013 31, 2014 31, 2014
(dollars in thousands, except units and per unibants)
$ 9,15( 37,027 % 22,51( $ 35,27¢
— — — 1,04:
9,15( 37,027 22,51( 34,23
— — 64 1,14¢
— — — 5,87¢
— — — 40t
$ 9,15( 37,027 $ 22,44¢ $ 26,80¢
10,939,43 10,964,25 11,023,61 20,572,37
3,72 21,84« 25,12¢ 6,38-
10,943,15 10,986,10 11,048,74 20,578,75
10,939,43 10,939,43 10,939,43 10,939,43
$ 0.4z 16¢ $ 1.0Z $ 0.8t
$ 0.4z 16¢ $ 1.0Z $ 0.8t




22. Selected Quarterly Financial Data (unaudited

The following table sets forth certain unauditethficial and operating data for each quarter d@¥i and 2014 . The unaudited
quarterly information includes all normal recurriadjustments that we consider necessary for @fagentation of the information shown.

Predecessor Successor
2013 2014
1st 2nd 3rd 4th 1st 2nd 3rd 4th
QTR QTR QTR QTR QTR QTR QTR (1) QTR

Motor fuel sales $1,087,48 $1,117,41. $1,162,74 $1,109,25 $1,210,65 $1,370,120 $1,424,17. $1,285,94
Merchandise sales — — — — — — 12,99¢ 39,27
Rental and other income 2,92¢ 3,48: 4,051 5,20¢ 5,931 5,901 10,61( 16,39¢
Total revenue $1,09041 $1,120,89 $1,166,79 $1,11446; $1,216,58 $1,376,02! $1,447,78 $1,341,62
Motor fuel gross profit $ 1321* $ 14,01: $ 1490 $ 1577+ $ 1721 $ 17,0606 $ 25427 $ 67,56¢
Merchandise gross profit — — — — — — 3,24: 10,21
Other gross profit 2,341 2,94¢ 3,50( 427" 4,91( 5,13¢ 9,75( 15,40:
Total gross profit $ 1555¢ $ 16,95¢ $ 18,40: $ 20,04¢ $ 22,12( $ 22,200 $ 3841¢ $ 93,18
Income from operations $ 897¢ $ 1053 $ 1066: $ 10,76¢ $ 1164 $ 1148 $ 1169« $ 39,64
Net income attributable to
limited partners 8221 $ 9,68( $ 9597 $ 9,52 $ 10,13 $ 9,59t $ 6,90t $ 30,11:
Net income per limited partner
unit:
Common (basic and diluted)  $ 0.3 $ 04, $ 044 $ 04: $ 0.4 $ 04z $ 0.0 % 0.8
Subordinated (basic and diluted) $ 03¢ $ 04 % 0.4 % 04: % 0.4¢ % 04: $ 0.0¢ % 0.8¢
Fuel gallons 366,88: 389,04: 399,52: 415,58 433,39: 461,79: 510,14t 606,63!
Motor fuel margin: (2)
Wholesale - third party 5.0¢ 4.9¢ 5.2¢ 5.2¢ 5.7¢ 4.9¢ 6.9¢ 17.6¢
Wholesale - affiliated 3.0¢ 3.0¢ 3.0¢ 3.0¢ 3.0¢ 3.0¢ 3.0¢ 3.0¢
Retail — — — — — — 26.0¢ 44.5¢

(1) The third quarter of 2014 includes Successsulte of operations for the period September 1428dough September 30, 2014 following the ETP Merg
Also included are results of operations for MACStfe period September 1, 2014 through Septemhe2(0!, due to it being accounted for as a traiwact
of entities under common control. Quarterly restdtsthe third quarter of 2014 have been retrospelgt adjusted to include the operations of MACSCSi
September 1, 2014, the date of common controlNede 4).

(2) Concurrent with the ETP Merger, we adoptedLt® inventory method for fuel inventory, and begatluding the non-cash inventory fair value adpestts
from our calculation of fuel cents per gallon obgs profit (see note 7).




Exhibit No.

EXHIBIT INDEX

Description

3.1

10.z

10.c

10.€

10.7

10.¢

10.1(
10.11
10.1z
10.1:
10.1¢
10.1¢

10.1¢

10.1%

10.1¢

10.1¢

Certificate of Limited Partnership of Susser Petoh Partners LP (2)

Certificate of Amendment to the Certificate dfited Partnership of Susser Petroleum Partner&).P

First Amended and Restated Agreement of LimiRettnership of Susser Petroleum Partners LP, &dptember 25, 2012 (1)
Amendment No. 1 to the First Amended and Resdtaggeement of Limited Partnership of Susser Petnol Partners LP (7)
Certificate of Formation of Susser Petroleuntritas GP LLC (2)

Certificate of Amendment to the Certificate afrfhation of Susser Petroleum Partners GP LLC (7)

Amended and Restated Limited Liability Company Aggnent of Susser Petroleum Partners GP LLC, dateti®ber 25,
2012 (1)

Amendment No. 1 to Amended and Restated Linditedility Company Agreement of Susser Petroleuntrigais GP LLC (7)

Omnibus Agreement by and among Susser PetroleutmePat P, Susser Petroleum Partners GP LLC andeBHsddings
Corporation, dated September 25, 2012 (1)

Revolving Credit Agreement among Susser Petrolearm®rs LP, as Borrower, the lenders from timeént tparty thereto ar
Bank of America, N.A., as Administrative Agent, ®giLine Lender and L/C Issuer, dated Septembe@52 (1)

Amendment No.1 and Joinder to Credit Agreement an®usser Petroleum Partners LP, as Borrower, tfiets from time to
time party thereto and Bank of America, N.A., asvuistrative Agent, Swing Line Lender and L/C Issuwated December
17,2013 (4)

Amendment No. 2 to Credit Agreement among SussieolBem Partners LP, as Borrower, the lenders ftiome to time party
thereto and Bank of America, N.A. as Administrathgent, Swing Line Lender and L/C Issuer, dated #si@8, 2014 (10)

Credit Agreement among Susser Petroleum Partnerad fhe Borrower, the lenders from time to timeyptnereto and Bank
of America, N.A., as Administrative Agent, CollaéAgent, Swingline Lender and an LC Issuer, d&eptember 25, 2014

®)
Term Loan and Security Agreement between Sussesl@em Partners LP, as Borrower, and Bank of AnagefitA., as
Lender, dated September 25, 2012 (1)

Transportation Agreement between Susser Petroleuenaing Company LLC and Susser Petroleum Compéassy Hated
September 25, 2012 (1)

Fuel Distribution Agreement by and among SusseaoRetim Operating Company LLC, Susser Holdings Caan, Stripes
LLC and Susser Petroleum Company LLC, dated Sepmegt 2012 (1)

Contribution Agreement by and among Susser PetmoRartners LP, Susser Petroleum Partners GP LL€3eBiHoldings
Corporation, Susser Holdings, L.L.C., Stripes L@ &usser Petroleum Company LLC, dated Septemh@022 (1)

Susser Petroleum Partners LP 2012 Long-TermtiveePlan (2)
Form of Director Indemnification Agreement (2)

Revised Form of Director Indemnification Agreerhél)

Form of Phantom Unit Award Agreement (2)

Form of Restricted Phantom Unit Agreement (8)

Form of Lease Agreement (Stripes LLC) (3)

Branded Motor Fuel Marketer Agreement between Sudstoleum Operating Co. LLC and Chevron ProdGcisipany
effective May 1, 2014 (9)

Unbranded Supply Agreement, dated July 28, 200@&ndybetween Susser Petroleum Company, LP andd/elarketing and
Supply Company, L.P., and assigned to Susser BetroDperating Company LLC on September 25, 2012 (2)

Branded Distributor Marketing Agreement (Valero Batadated July 28, 2006, by and between Valero ktarg and Supply
Company and Susser Petroleum Company, LP, anchaslsig Susser Petroleum Operating Company LLC pteSder 25,
2012 (2)

Branded Distributor Marketing Agreement (Shamrocarigl) dated July 28, 2006, by and between Valerckéieng and
Supply Company and Susser Petroleum Company, ldPassigned to Susser Petroleum Operating Compa@ydrl
September 25, 2012 (2)




10.2( + Master Agreement, dated July 28, 2006, by and mtwklero Marketing and Supply Company and Sussgoleum
Company, LP, and assigned to Susser Petroleum yge@ompany LLC on September 25, 2012, as ame(®)ed

10.21 Contribution Agreement, dated as of September @b4 2by and among Mid-Atlantic Convenience Stokés;, ETC M-A
Acquisition LLC, Susser Petroleum Partners LP andr§y Transfer Partners, L.P (5)

10.22 Purchase and Sale Agreement, entered into as téi8bker 25, 2014, by and among Susser PetroleuneRydpompany LLC,
Susser Petroleum Partners LP and Henger BV Inc. (5)

10.2% Amendment No.1, entered into as of December 164 2@1Purchase and Sale Agreement, dated as ofrBkeet 25, 2014, by
and among Susser Petroleum Property Company LL&SeBtPetroleum Partners LP and Henger BV Inc. (6)

10.2¢ First Amendment to the Susser Petroleum Partrfe2012 Long Term Incentive Plan, dated Novemb&044 *
21.1 List of Subsidiaries of the Registrant *
23.1 Consent of Ernst & Young LLP, independent reggistl public accounting firm *
31.1 Certification of the Chief Executive Officer puiant to Rule 13a-14(a) of the Securities Exch#@ttgeas amended *
31.2 Certification of the Chief Financial Officer puant to Rule 13a-14(a) of the Securities Excha@wgeas amended *

32.1 Certification of the Chief Executive Officer pursudo 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursoadéction 906 of the
Sarbanes - Oxley Act of 2002 **

32.2 Certification of the Chief Financial Officer pursudo 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursoabéttion 906 of the
Sarbanes - Oxley Act of 2002 **

101 Interactive data files
*  Filed herewitr

** Filed herewith. Pursuant to SEC Release No8332, this certification will be treated as “accanping” this Annual Report on Form 10-K
and not “filed” as part of such report for purposéSection 18 of the Securities Exchange Act,rasraded, or otherwise subject to the
liability of Section 18 of the Securities Exchagygt, as amended, and this certification will notde=med to be incorporated by reference
into any filing under the Securities Exchange Ailc1 @33, as amended, except to the extent thaetyistrant specifically incorporates it by
reference.

+ Confidential treatment has been granted with regpgeortions of this exhib
(1) Incorporated by reference to the current repor-orm 8-K (File Number 00356531) filed by the registrant on September 232

(2) Incorporated by reference to the registrasittement on Form S-1 (File Number 333-1822763nasnded, originally filed by the registrant
on June 22, 2012.

(3) Incorporated by reference to the annual reporftorm 10-K (File Number 001-35653) filed by tlegistrant on March 29, 2013.

(4) Incorporated by reference to the annual repoiftorm 10-K (File Number 001-35653) filed by tlegistrant on March 14, 2014.

(5) Incorporated by reference to the current reporEorm 8-K(File Number 001-35653) filed by thgistrant on October 1, 2014.

(6) Incorporated by reference to the current reporEorm 8-K (File Number 001-35653) filed by tlegistrant on December 19, 2014.
(7) Incorporated by reference to the current reporEorm 8-K (File Number 001-35653) filed by tlegistrant on October 28, 2014.
(8) Incorporated by reference to the current reporEorm 8-K (File Number 001-35653) filed by tlegistrant on November 14, 2014.
(9) Incorporated by reference to the current reporEorm 8-K (File Number 001-35653) filed by tlegistrant on July 30, 2014.

(10) Incorporated by reference to the current repof-orm 8-K (File Number 001-35653) filed by tiegjistrant on September 4, 2014.



Exhibit 10.2¢

FIRST AMENDMENT TO THE
SUSSER PETROLEUM PARTNERS LP
2012 LONG TERM INCENTIVE PLAN

This Amendment (the Amendment) to the Susser Petroleum Partners LP 2012 LomghTecentive Plan, (thePlan”), is hereby adopted
as of November 4, 2014 by the Board of DirectoBdéard”) of Sunoco GP LLC (the Company’) as the general partner and on behalf of Su
LP (the “Partnership”). Terms used but not defined herein shall hagentteanings given such terms in the Plan.

WHEREAS, the Partnership maintains the Plan foptmposes set forth therein; and

WHEREAS, the Board has previously approved a chamtfge name of the Partnership from Susser Petmolartners LP to Sunoco LP
and the sole member of the Company has, similaggroved a change in the name of the Company fusaes Petroleum Partners GP LLC to
Sunoco GP LLC;

WHEREAS, the officers of the Company have causedifbrementioned changes in the names of the Congrahthe Partnership to
become effective in each of their respective jucisohs of formation and qualification as of Octol2&, 2014 and are now memorializing those
changes in the books and records of the Companyhan@artnership; and

WHEREAS, the Board now desires to amend the Plgiviofull and proper effect to such name changes.
NOW, THEREFORE, effective as of the date firstfeeth above, the Plan is amended as follows:

1. Allreferences in the Plan to “Susser Petrol®artners LP” (including in the name of the Plamglkbe, and hereby are, replaced with
“Sunoco LP.”

2. All references in the Plan to “Susser Petrol®artners GP LLC” shall be, and hereby are, replagéh “Sunoco GP LLC.”
All other provisions of the Plan shall remain tlaene and in full force and effect.

[Remainder of page intentionally left blank.]




IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the undersigned has executsditmendment, effective as of the date first sethfabove.

Sunoco LP
By: Sunoco GP LLC, its general partner

By: /s/Mary E. Sullivan

Name: Mary E. Sullivan
Title: Executive Vice President and Chief Financial
Officer



List of Subsidiaries

Exhibit 21.1

Susser Petroleum Operating Company, LLC
Susser Energy Services, LLC
T&C Wholesale, LLC
Southside Oil, LLC
Susser Petroleum Property Company, LLC
Mid-Atlantic Convenience Stores, LLC
MACS Retail, LLC

Delaware
Texas
Texas
Virginia
Delaware
Delaware
Virginia



Exhibit 23.1

Consent of Independent Registered Public Accountingirm

We consent to the incorporation by reference iféewing Registration Statements:
Registration Statement (Form S-8 No. 333-18403Bppeng to the 2012 Long Term Incentive Plan oh&epo LP, and
Registration Statement (Form S-3 No. 333-19233%wfoco LP, as amended

of our reports dated February 27, 2015 with resfettie consolidated financial statements of Sudt@and the effectiveness of internal control
over financial reporting of Sunoco LP includedhistAnnual Report (Form 10-K) for the year endead&meber 31, 2014.

/sl ERNST & YOUNG LLP

Houston, Texas
February 27, 2015



Exhibit 31.1
CERTIFICATION

I, Robert W. Owens, certify that:

1.
2.

cY

(b)

(©)

(d)

(@)
(b)

I have reviewed this annual report on Form 16fKunoco LP;

Based on my knowledge, this report does natadom@ny untrue statement of a material fact ortéonstate a material fact
necessary to make the statements made, in ligheafircumstances under which such statementswade, not misleading with
respect to the period covered by this report;

Based on my knowledge, the financial statemeamis other financial information included in théport, fairly present in all
material respects the financial condition, resofteperations and cash flows of the registrantfaaral for, the periods presented in
this report;

The registrant’s other certifying officer andre responsible for establishing and maintainisglasure controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15&))%nd internal control over financial reportirg @efined in Exchange Act
Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registramd &ave:

Designed such disclosure controls and proesgor caused such disclosure controls and proesdoibe designed under our
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the registrant, including its consolidhtbsidiaries, is made known to
us by others within those entities, particularlyidg the period in which this report is being pregh

Designed such internal control over finanoggdorting, or caused such internal control oveatditial reporting to be designed under
our supervision, to provide reasonable assuramadang the reliability of financial reporting attte preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordancegeitierally accepted accounting principles;

Evaluated the effectiveness of the registgagisclosure controls and procedures and presentbi report our conclusions about
the effectiveness of the disclosure controls andguiures, as of the end of the period coveredibyéport based on such
evaluation; and

Disclosed in this report any change in thastegnt’s internal control over financial reportititgat occurred during the registrant’s
most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fotigbal quarter in the case of an annual repod llas materially affected, or is
reasonably likely to materially affect, the regst's internal control over financial reporting;dan

The registrant’s other certifying officer anddve disclosed, based on our most recent evatuatimternal control over financial
reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and theitacmmmittee of the registrant’s board of direct@spersons performing the
equivalent functions):

All significant deficiencies and material waakses in the design or operation of internal cbotrer financial reporting which are
reasonably likely to adversely affect the regidgfgaability to record, process, summarize and refiwoancial information; and

Any fraud, whether or not material, that inxed management or other employees who have aisartifole in the registrant’s
internal control over financial reporting.

Date: February 27, 2015 /sl Robert W. Owens

Robert W. Owens
Chief Executive Officer of Sunoco GP LLC
(the general partner of Sunoco LP)



Exhibit 31.2
CERTIFICATION

I, Mary E. Sullivan, certify that:

1.
2.

cY

(b)

(©)

(d)

(@)
(b)

I have reviewed this annual report on Form 16fKunoco LP;

Based on my knowledge, this report does natadom@ny untrue statement of a material fact ortéonstate a material fact
necessary to make the statements made, in ligheafircumstances under which such statementswade, not misleading with
respect to the period covered by this report;

Based on my knowledge, the financial statemeamis other financial information included in théport, fairly present in all
material respects the financial condition, resofteperations and cash flows of the registrantfaaral for, the periods presented in
this report;

The registrant’s other certifying officer andre responsible for establishing and maintainisglasure controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15&))%nd internal control over financial reportirg @efined in Exchange Act
Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registramd &ave:

Designed such disclosure controls and proesgor caused such disclosure controls and proesdoibe designed under our
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the registrant, including its consolidhtbsidiaries, is made known to
us by others within those entities, particularlyidg the period in which this report is being pregh

Designed such internal control over finanoggdorting, or caused such internal control oveatditial reporting to be designed under
our supervision, to provide reasonable assuramadang the reliability of financial reporting attte preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordancegeitierally accepted accounting principles;

Evaluated the effectiveness of the registgagisclosure controls and procedures and presentbi report our conclusions about
the effectiveness of the disclosure controls andguiures, as of the end of the period coveredibyéport based on such
evaluation; and

Disclosed in this report any change in thastegnt’s internal control over financial reportititgat occurred during the registrant’s
most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fotigbal quarter in the case of an annual repod llas materially affected, or is
reasonably likely to materially affect, the regst's internal control over financial reporting;dan

The registrant’s other certifying officer anddve disclosed, based on our most recent evatuatimternal control over financial
reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and theitacmmmittee of the registrant’s board of direct@spersons performing the
equivalent functions):

All significant deficiencies and material waakses in the design or operation of internal cbotrer financial reporting which are
reasonably likely to adversely affect the regidgfgaability to record, process, summarize and refiwoancial information; and

Any fraud, whether or not material, that inxed management or other employees who have aisartifole in the registrant’s
internal control over financial reporting.

Date: February 27, 2015 /sl Mary E. Sullivan

Mary E. Sullivan
Executive Vice President and Chief Financial OfficESunoco GP LLC
(the general partner of Sunoco LP)



Exhibit 32.1
CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with this Annual Report on Form 1@KSunoco LP (the “Partnership”) for the year enBedember 31, 2014, as filed
with the Securities and Exchange Commission ord#tte hereof (the “Report”), I, Robert W. Owens, &liixecutive Officer of the Partnership,
certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. § 1350, as adoptedyant to 8§ 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

(1) The Report fully complies with the requirementsSeftction 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchangeoh
1934, as amended; and

(2) The information contained in the Report fairly gets, in all material respects, the financial cbadiand
results of operations of the Partnership.

Date: February 27, 2015

/sl Robert W. Owens

Robert W. Owens

Chief Executive Officer of Sunoco GP LLC
(the general partner of Sunoco LP)

This certification accompanies this Report on FAG¥K pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Okteyof 2002 and shall not, except to the
extent required by such Act, be deemed filed byRhdnership for purposes of Section 18 of the BisesiExchange Act of 1934, as amended.



Exhibit 32.2
CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO

18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with this Annual Report on Form 1@KSunoco LP (the “Partnership”) for the year enBedember 31, 2014, as filed
with the Securities and Exchange Commission ord#tte hereof (the “Report”), |, Mary E. Sullivan,dextive Vice President and Chief Financial
Officer of the Partnership, certify, pursuant tol%.C. § 1350, as adopted pursuant to § 906 dbénbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 that:

(1) The Report fully complies with the requirementsSeftction 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchangeoh
1934, as amended; and

(2) The information contained in the Report fairly gets, in all material respects, the financial cbadiand
results of operations of the Partnership.

Date: February 27, 2015

/sl Mary E. Sullivan
Mary E. Sullivan

Executive Vice President and Chief Financial OfficESunoco GP LLC
(the general partner of Sunoco LP)

This certification accompanies this Report on FAG¥K pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Okteyof 2002 and shall not, except to the
extent required by such Act, be deemed filed byRhdnership for purposes of Section 18 of the BiesiExchange Act of 1934, as amended.



